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TR Property Investment Trust plc

The investment cbjective of TR Property investment Trust
plcis to maximise shareholders’ total returns by investing
in the shares and securities of property companies and
property refated businesses internaticnally and also in

investment property located in the UK.

Introduction

TR Property Irvestment Trust pic {the ‘Compary’) was
formed 0 1905 ard has been a dedicated property
nMvestor since 1982 The Compary s an Investment
Trostand its shares are premiun usted on the London
Stock Excnarge

Benchmark
The benchmark ‘s the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed
Europe Capped Net Total Return Index in sterirg

Investment policy

The Comrpany seeks to achieve its objective by
Investing \n shares and securities of property
companies and property related hLsnesses on ar
internatcnal basis, aithough, witk a pan-Ecropear
benchmark the major ty of the ‘nvestments wil be
Iccated ir that gecgrapnical area The Corrpany also
nvests in mvestment property iocated in the UK only.

Furtner detars of the Investment Policies, the Asget
Alocation Guide'ines and pol:c’es regarding tre use of
gear ng are set oLt ir tne Strategic Report on page 34
and tme entire portfelio s shown on page 27

Investment manager

CoiLmb’a Threadneedle irvestment Business Lim ited
acts astne Compary's alterrat ve investment

fund manager (‘&IFM) with portfolio management

de egated to Thames Rwer Capnital LLP (the Portfolio
Marader or the ‘Manager) Marcus Phayre-Mudge
has managed the partfolio since 1 April 2071 and been
part of tve Furd Management tear since 1997

[olatalol
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Independent board

The Drectors are ail ndependent of the Marager

and meet regulary to consider investmert strategy,

to monitor adherence to the stated objective and
vestment pohcies and to review irvestment
performance Details of how the Board operates and
fulflis ts responsibities are set out in the Report of the
Directors on page 47/,

Performance

The Financ.al Highlights for the culrent year are set out
or: page 2 and Historical Performance can be found o
page 3. Key Performance Indicators are set out in the
Strategic Report on pages 35 ard 36

Retail investors advised by IFAs

The Campary currently conducts its affa.rs so that

its snares can be recommended by Independent
Financ.a- Advisers {IFAS) inthe UK to retail investors
inaccordance witn the Financial Conduct Authonty
(‘'FCAYrules in relation to non-mainstrean: mvestment
products and intends to continue to do 50. The shares
are excluded from the FCA's restrnictions, which apply
to non-mMa nstream Imvestment products, because they
are shares in ar author sed imvestment trast company

Further information

Gereral sharehoider nformatior and detars of how
toinvest inthe Company. including mvestument
through an 1SA or savings scheme, can be found o0
pages 118 cnwards Thig nformation can aso be
fourd on the Company's wehs'te www Tiproperty com
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Financial highlights and performance

Year ended
31 March

2023

Balance Sheet

Net asset value per share 305.13p
Shareholders’ funds (£°000) 968,346
Shares in issue af the end of the year (m) 3174
Net debt - 12.3%

Share Price
Share price 279.00p
Market capitalisation £885m

Year ended
31 March
2023
Revenue
Revenue earnings per share 17.22p

Dividends?

interm dividend per share 5.65p
Final dividend per share 9.85p
Total dividend per share 15.50p

Performance: Assets and Benchmark

Net Asset Value total return - -35.5%
Benchrmark total return’ -34.0%
Share price total return~’ -36.2%

including performance fee 0.73%
Excluding performance fee 0.73%
Excluding performance fee and direct properly costs 0.67%
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Year ended
31 March
2022

492 A3p
1,562,739
317.4
10.2%

456.50p
£7,449m

Year ended
31 March
2022

13.69p

530p
9.20p
14 50p

+21 4%
+12.2%
+19.9%

2.16%
0.60%
0.58%
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Change

=38 0%
-38.0%
+0.0%

-38.9%
-38.9%

+6 6%
+7.1%
+6 8%
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Historical performance

fortne vear erded 31 WMaic 2022

Performance for the year:

Total Return (%)
NAV
Benchmark: -

Share Price -

Shareholders’ funds (£'m}

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares

Net revenue (pence per
share)

Earnings
Dividends'-

NAY per share (pence}

Share price (pence)

Indices of growth

-t [P T T

Share price”

Net Asset Value
Dividend Net

RPI

Benchmark

Figures have been prepared in accordance with UK-adopted international accounting standards.
1A4) The NAY Total Return for each year s calculated by reinvestng the dw dends ntne assets of the Company Fo the retevant ex-d vidend date Divdends

2013

21.5
7.8
258

684

674
7.00

21525
186 30

100
100
100
100
100

2014

224
14.9
377

809

509
745

25464
24750

133
118
106
102
107

2015

283
233
295

1,010

8.89
7.70

318.12
310.50

167
148
110
103
128

2016

82
54
1.6

1,065

836

835

33596
297.50

160
156
19
105

131

2017

8.0
£5
91

1118

11.38
10.50

35242
314.50

169
164
150
108
136

2018

15.5
10.2
255

1,256

13.22
12.20

39564
382.50

205
184
174
112

146

2019

9.1
5.6
6.2

1,328

14.58
1350

418.54
394.00

211
194
193
115
149

2020

115
-14.0
-16.8

1136

14.62
14.00

358.11

31750

176G
166
200
118
124

2021

20.7
159
283

1,326

12.25
14.20

417.97
392,50

211
194
203
119
141

2022 pwiirx

21.4

102

19.9

1,563

1369
14.50

4G2.43

456.50

245
229
207
130

155

-35.5
-34.0
-36.2

568

17.22
15.50

30513

279.00

133
142
221
148

99

are deerned to be reinvested at e ex-diwidend dele as tnig s the protocol used by the Company's benchmark and otqes indices This s considered tobe an
alternzhive Performence Mceasuse as def ned on page 106
{8} Benzhmark ndex compos te index compns.ang the FTSELERRA-NARE T Developad Lurope TR index up to harch 2013 and tnereafter the FTSE EPRA, NARLIT
Deveioped Europe Capped index Source Thames River Dapital
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Chairman’s statement

E® Markets have had to
absorb huge increases
in the cost of capital and
real estate equities have
suffered consequential price
adjustments. However, this is
an unusuat cycle where both
interest rates and rents are
rising. In many of our markets
property fundamentals are
sound and we see few signs
of over-supply.

David Watson

This has been a very difficult year for the praperty
market, for property shares and for the Company. Net
asset value total return was -35.5%, slightly worse than
our benchmark at -34 0% The share price total return
was -36.2% as the discount between the NAV and the
share price widened slightly, reflecting weaker investor
sentiment as a whole. Although the change in the second
half was modest (first half NAV total return of -33 6%
March to September 2022) we have experienced sorme
very dramatic price action in the intervening six months.

Macro-economic forces continued to dominate. The
drivers and trajectory of inflation remained everyone's
focus. Central bankers appeared as unsure of the
consequences of their actions as market participants,
Valatility remamed elevated. Whilst our total return
figures are clearly very poor, the autumnal rally in
property stocks, somewhat punctured (in the UK} by
political events in November, did resume in earnest in
January This three menth rally, based squarely on a
change in the expected trajectory of interest rates, gave
us, at last, a taste of a more optimistic attitude towards
our asset class. The last few weeks of the financial year
saw market sentiment damaged by the failure of two
regional banks in the US and the final take out of Credit
Suisse. This raised knee-jerk concerns of bank contagion
which here feels sensationalist given the enhanced leveis
of regulatory oversight and contrels on Eurcpean banks
post the global financial crisis

Your investment management team have a long track
record of alpha generation through dynamic stock
selection It 1s fair to say that the investrnent dynamics of
the last 12 rronths have not been their preferred context.
The dramatic price falls and bear market rallies have
been largely undiscriminating between the good and the
bad. Forced sellers were interested in volume not price.
Small caps, as usual, struggled in these conditions. This
macro-driven ervironment 1s hopefully, finally, abating as
nvestors appear \ncreasingly interested in differentiating
between individual comparies’ prospects foliowing the
significant correction.

Our investment universe has now seen a number of
companies who have suspended or reduced dividends
These were, inthe main, the Lkely suspects and 1 wolld
be a surpr'se to us if many others now emerge given the
econom:c ¢ycie One of the core attractions of real estate
irvesting is the potential of indexed income and this 1s
showing through and remma’ns our focus,

TP Propert, ir.egTment Try
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Earnings per share increased by 26% from 13.69p per
share to 17.22p. Thisis an all-time high. Although
company earnings did in general recover to pre-
Covid-19 levels, our headling earnings were further
flattered by changes in the timing of some dividend
payments. More detall of this is set out inthe
Manager's report.

The Board is pleased to anncunce a final dividend

of 9.85p taking the full vear dividend 1o 15.50p,
representing a £6.9% increase In determining the
dividend the Board has been very sensitive to myestor
appetite for income but has also been conscious

of the underlying income growth and the potential
impact of interest and exchange rates on future
earnings.

Following a record level of earnings in 2022/23, the
Board expect to report 2 reduction in net income for
the year to 2023/24 This is not only as a result of the
non-recurrence of certain items which enhanced the
current year earnings, but also because of the number
of companies that have announced dividend cuts or
suspensions. All companies have had to adjust to the
change in the price of debt For sgme the impact has
been immediate, while for others it will be sormewhat
celayed as they continue to benefit from historic
fixed rates However, on the income side of the
equation, index-linked rents will benefit. Companies
need 10 balance the pluses and minuses and some
have reacted quickly and cautiously to protect their
balance sheets. The medium to jonger-term cutlook
for interest rates is difficult to predict so it could be

a while before companies feel confident about the
longer-term outlook.

Gearing at 12.3% is an almost identical figure to that
at the half year. Inevitably these numbers are just
snapshots in time; the level of gearing has varied in
response to the market volat/lity and as investment
opportunities have occurred

Sterling weakened over the year by just over 4% This
marginally enhanced our income account as non-
sterling dividends were worth more in sterling terms.

As our balance sheet is denominated in sterling &
weaker pound served to help the reported value of
non-sterling assets. The bzlance sheet exposure
rermans materially in line with the henchmark as we
hedge exposure to match the benchmark.

The discount of the share price to the NAV widened
slightly over the year from -7.3% to -8.6%. However,
the spread over the year has been much wider,
swinging between close to -1% and over -10%.

This volatility is indicative of the rapid changes in
sentiment towards the sector. The average over the
year under review was -5.8%, close to the 10-year
average of -4.9% and an improvement on the -6.6%
average since the invasion of Ukraine.

In light of the transient nature of the discount
volatilty, no share buy-backs orissues were made
during the year.

Ordinaty Share Class Performance: Total Return over 10 years (rebased)

B Benchmark Totai Return i TR Property Share Price Total Return
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Chairman’s statement
continued

I reported at the half year that we had commenced
the search for a new Director who would broaden
and strengthen the Board and add diversity of age,
experience and ethnicity In January this year we
were delighted to announce the appointment of
Busola Sodeinde to the Board as an independent
Non-Executive Director and we have greatly
appreciated her early insight and perspective on a
wide range of issues.

We alsc announced my intention to step down from
the Board with effect from the conclusion of the
forthcoming AGM. As announced, Kate Bolsover
witl succeed me as Chairman and Tim Gillbanks wil!
succeed Kate as Senior independent Director

SG reports within annual accounts are becoming
longer and contain more and more detall. This
1s wholly appropriate far an operating company
and we welcome the additional disclosure. As an
investment trust company and primarily an investor
in companies, we have to think about what ESG
should mean for us.

Our ESG approach covers three areas. Firstly, the
governance and policies which apply directly 10 the
investrment trust as a Company under the direct
contro!l of the Board Secandly, ESG considerations
as part of the investment process for our equity
portfolio adopted by our Manager Although our
Manager cannot have any direct control over ESG

policies in underlying investee companies, it can, and

does, use its influence carefully through corporate
voting and engagement with the companies in
which we invest. Thirdly, our Manager does have

controf over our direct property portfolio and here we

continue to drive for greater energy efficiency and
environmental care in all that we do

Our Responsible Investment Report on pages 16 to

25 sets out our appreach in each of these areas with
some case study examples. This is of course ar area

of active evolution.

Macro considerations continue to dominate. Markets
have had to absorb a huge adjustment in the cost of
capital and real estate equities have certainly borne their
share of price adjustments However, this is an unusual
cycle where both rates and rents are rising. In many of
our areas of focus, real estate market fundamentais are
sound and we see few signs of over-supply Ouwr central
assumption s that the interest rate cycle will peak this
year but that inflation will remain above central banks’
targets Listed property companies are generaily more
conservatively geared than their private counterparts
and this should stand them in good stead. The sector
has been hit hard and many of our companies are
trading at farge discounts 1o asset values that have

also been recalibrated. As in previous cycles, if the
sector s undervalued then private capital will be guick
1o step in Just after the year end, Industrials REIT, one
of the Company's 10 largest holdings, announced a
recommended bid for cash at a 40% premium to the
undisturbed share price. More recently in early May,
Civitas, the social housing landlord announced a ¢ash bid
from an Asian conglomerate at a simuar premium These
businesses are chaik and cheese but both have proved
attractive to very different groups of investors These
events remind us that, for many, real estate s seen as a
crucial part of the irvestment jigsaw particularly in these
nflationary times

David Watson

TR Prosery rorsimert Trast



Manager’s report

For a sector where returns are
anchored by income, these
levels of volatility and multiple
directional shifts are almost
unparalleled. The whole
period has been dominated
by the ebbs and flows around
interest rate expectations

and real estate fundamentals
have taken the proverbial
back seat. However, locking
forward, we anticipate a
renewed focus on those
sectors offering rental growth.

Marcus Phayre-Mudge

N

The Company's net asset value (NAV) total return for

the 12 maonths to 31 March 2023 was -35 5%, whilst the
benchmark, FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Europe TR (In
GBP), fell -34 0% These figures are clearly disappainting
hut not materially different from those reported at the

half year, where the NAV had fallen -33.6% in the first six
months of the financial year Equally important to note

is that these figures are snapshots in very volatile times.
To illustrate the point, the first four months of the second
half of the financial year (i.e. October to January) saw our
universe raliy +14.5% oniy to then give up all of those gains
in the subsequent nine weeks. The end result was a finish
to the year which was marginally worse than where we
were at the half year stage.

In the half year review, | wrote that sharehoiders will

no doubt be concerned that given the scale of the
correction, the direction of travel was cbvious and more
protective action should have been taken. It always l00ks
clear in hindsight but as we walk through the year in the
next few paragraphs, the dramatic swings in sentiment
will help explain some of the difficulties we faced in
trying to rotate the portfolio into the headwinds, avoid the
rip currents but then also catch the spring tides of
sentiment recovery

The first guarter of the financial year saw the sector

fall 24% as investors really focused on the impact of
rising interest rates. However, you could still have made
money over a four-week period {in May and early June)
and this highlights the sense of sentiment rather than
facts dniving markets in mid-2022. Everyone became
central bank-focused whilst real estate fundamentals
were ignored. July saw a strong reversal (+9.5%) as bond
markets responded to the theme that rising interest rates
were having the required deflationary effect However,
the summer break was foliowed by hawkish statements
from the US Federal Reserve at Jackson Hole and our
benchmark fell -30% between mid-August and mid-
October as investors began to believe the 'higher for
longer mantra. This severe bout of pessimism was

then followed by a +25% rally in pan-European property
stocks between mid-Octeber and the end of January.
The tail end of the financial year saw this recovery then
ebb away with the sector falling 13% in the last two
months of the financial year
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Manager's report
continued

Benchmark Performance

W FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developeo Europe Capped T otal Return Net GBP (Daily)

Jun-z2 Jul-22 Aug-Z2

May- 22

Apr-22

For a value sector where returns are driven — year

in, year out - by income, these levels of volatility and
multiple directional shifts are almost unparallefed What

18 happening? Essentially, the whote penod has been
dominated by the ebbs and flows around interest rate
expectations and bond market behaviour Real estate
fundamentals have taken the proverbial back seat. A
longstanding real estate equity market observer with over
30 years’ experience recently wrote to clients 't can't recail
a period of ime when capital values have fallen so sharply
and yet occupier demand in most sectors has remained
pretty robust | have reproduced the statement verbatim
as it neatly encapsulates the environment we find
ourselves in. In other words, yields are nsing but so are
rents, this 1s atypicai. it is now clear that, through 2022, |
placed too much emphasis on this quality of eamings (and
indeed earnings growth) in many of our companies. The
market paid [ttie heed, choosing to focus on the impact of
rising yields/capitalisation rates on asset values.

The speed at which certral banks responded, as
inf'ation gathered pace, took many participants by
surprise. Therising cost of debt affected all property
stocks, but it had the greatest impact on two particuiar
cohorts of companies Those companies whigh had
successfully utiised unsecured bond market financing
now discovered that this source of (re)financing was
effectively shut. German residential businesses,
particuiar'y the larger ones, Vonovia, LEG and the
more divers fied Arourdiown (part owner of Grand
City Properties), are ali seeing their cost of debt rise
dramatically as the expiry of existing bonds require
refinancing Tne other heavily impacted group were
those with higher loan to value compounded by hign
fevels of floating rate debt. The impact on earnings

for this group has been dramatic and the majority of
Swedish companies fai' into this category. Both these

z

Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 “an-23 Feb 23 tar-23

cohorts share a couple of similar cutcomes; firstly, those
companies which have reduced or suspended dividends
are disproportionately represented and secondly, these
two groups have experienced the greatest volatitity within
our universe. To illustrate the point, Swedish property
companies coltectively fell 40.5% in the year to 31 March
2023 however, within that period there were three sharp
bear market rallies of +17% (May), +39% (July to mid-
August) and +53% (mid-October to the end of sanuary).
These groups were highly susceptibie to changes in
sentiment towards the outlook for rates and margin on
new {or refinanced) debt instruments.

Previously, I have written about the merits of the market
fundamentals of German residential. The vast supply/
demand imbalance and the persistent widening of the
gap between regulated rents and open market values
remains in place. What has been most frustrating 1s that
our largest relative position in that area is Phoenix Spree
Deutschiand, which has no refinancing requirements
untit 2026 and is a market minnow (partfolio value 'ess
than £€750m) where aY) sales, however few, will make a
difference performed in line with its larger cousins

Collectively the market capitalisatior of the German
residential businesses reduced by 57% Meanwhile, the
underlying asset values have corrected less than 10% in the
year and top fine earnings have grown with vacancy levels
stable and the 'mietspegiel’ (the rent table) continuing to
increase rents, albett at a sub-inflationary rate. The asset
class offers consistently low vacancy, steady rental growth
and the opportun:ty t1& move to market rents through
refurbishment or sales to owner-occupiers. As a resuit,
yields steadiy tightened as the cost of finance fell. By the
beginming of 2022, capitalisation rates were below 3%, fuily
reflecting the stability and iow risk profile of the ncome At
such low capitalisation rates, a modest reversal upwards of
100bps has a very dramatic effect on valuation

TF Procertyinsesimert Trust



Much the same effect was felt in the valuation of the
other low yielding sector - industrial/logistics. This sector
had enjoyed a surge in investor demand as strong rental
growth fuelled the attractiveness of the asset class and
we saw Capitalisation rates tighten dramatically over the
last three years. Again, the impact of the abrupt rise in
the cost of debt led to a quick reversal in yields. However,
unlike regulated residential rents in Germany, which
deliver sub-inflationary growth, we are confident that
strong rental growth will persist in industrial/legistics
property given market [undaimentals.

Offices continue 10 be the sectar maost under scrutiny
and rightly so. The repercussions and evolution of

the working from nome { WFH') reqime are still being
worked through by tenants and landlords. Much has
already been written on the topic and firm conciusions
are hard 1o pin down given the speed of change.
However, we are confident that since the half year we
have seen more data to suppoit our current thesis.
Offices remain crucial infrastructure for knowledge-
based buginesses — physical interaction is a vital part
of business life. However, the amount of space requirea
has reduced whilst crucially the demand for better
guality space has risen. This demand for better quality
working environment is augmented by the requirement
for better energy efficiency and green credentials, The
result is a historicalty wide market bifurcation between
best in class, well located, energy efficient buildings
and the rest, Offices account for approximately 15% of
our benchmark and weli over 50% of that exposure is to
London and Paris, hence our focus on those markets in
this commentary.

Gecina, our largest European office exposure (see top
12 holdings) in their Q1 2023 results highlighted that
their prime inner Paris assets recorded an eye-catching
30% reversion, whilst their outer ring assets saw negative
reversion. Overall rental growth was positive at 7% but
that statistic highlights the gulf between the growth
achieved in central assets and the rest. Covivio, which
owns offices in Paris, Milan and several German cities
reported the same phenomenon, with central Milan
recording selid demand and rental growth. Central
London office vacancy is elevated at 8%, however the
divide between West End (3 7%) and the City (11 9%)

is almost as stark as it has ever been. The situation in
Dockiands is even more dire with a number of major
financial institutions who have announced either a
reduction in their space requirements (including HSBC,
Citi and JPMaorgan) or wholesale relocaticn (e.g. Clifford
Chance). In the case of the latter, the firm is also cutting
ts space requirements by 40%. COne should be careful
not to read single statistic across to the wider market
as that particular firm has had excess space in Canary

Annual Report & Accounts 2023

Wharf for several years This increasing vacancy in
financial services-focused districts such as Canary
Wharf, La Defense and further afield Lower Manhattan is
a refiection of both WFH but alsc the lack of headcount
growth This s a particular problem in London where
post Brexit, glchal financial services businesses continue
to Increase therr footprint in Paris, Frankfurt and Dublin
at the expense of London.

This bifurcation of 'best and the rest’ can he clearly
seen in recent valuation inthe specialist London office
tandlords. Great Portland reported in their H1 2023
results a divergence in performance based on their
buildings’ EPC (energy efficiency) ratings. Those at the
highest levels {A&B) saw value declines of 2.5% whilst
C&D rated were -4 2% Derwent London produced data
based on values per foot. The most valuable (>£1,500 per
ft) saw capital drift of -3 5% and rental growth of +2%,
whilst the least {(<£1,000 per ft} saw value falls of -11.8%
and rental growth of just 0.3%.

Even though the best in class continues to enjoy steady
rental growth, this is partly due to its scarcity. The bulk
of all office markets are made up of much maore average
product and take up levels in the post pandemic world
have been weak. Paris Centre West {the core) saw
available supply fall year on year (-19%) whilst it rose in
all other markets. The further out, the greater the supply,
with La Defense just +4% whilst the Inner Rim (+35%).

All of this has fed through into negative sentiment
towards all offices except the best quality in the best
locations MSCHIPD's office sector capital decline in
HZ 2022 was -15.7%, underperforming retail which fell
14 5% Central London initial yield has moved 80bps
from 4.8% (December 2021)t0 5.6% {January 2023},
As discussed many times, the UK's independent valuer
community have always attempted to mark-te-market
rather than the Continental approach which 1s more
‘'mark-to-model’. The latter approach results in a
smoother correction of values but can equally lead to
the criticism that valuations are woefully histenic when
markets are correcting fast As a result, we feel that
highlighting the modest moves in Continental European
valuations in HZ 2022 would be misleading. They will
catch up over the course of 2023 and beyond.

It feels as though this much maligned asset class has
finally passed through the worst of the impact of the
shift to online retailing, the way we search for products
{and pricing) as well as the increasing demand for
entertainment/leisure ahead of more 'stuff”. The huge
reduction in values has been felt more acutely in the
UK. Alongside the differences between the UK and
Continental European shepping malls, itis also crucial
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Manager's report
continued

to highlight the sub-sectors within retail as they have,
largely, performed very differently over the last few years

The worst performing group remains the larger mails
which are, quite simply, tco big with an excess of floor
space, often a shuttered department store (or two) and
a service charge with a chunky non-recoverable element
(due to vaids). Nene of this is new inforrmation | hear you
say. Agreed. However, the update I1s that we have now
seen capitulation by landlords (and lenders), rents have
re-rated (often halving) and vacant space beginning

to be repurposed for other uses. Malls must become
community hubs with a range of (lower value) uses
such as fitness, medical uses, nurseries, day care eic.
Landsec successfully acquired the 50% of the St David's
Centre in Cardiff which they did not own. The seller

was the administrator of Intu and Landsec acguired

the outstanding ioans on the asset. The price equated
to a yield of over 8% on a rent roli which has dropped
rmatenially over the last decade. We are confident that

at the right rents (and yields) those centres which can
reinvent themselves such as this deminant city centre
asset will deliver acceptable returns.

The strongest sub-sector remains retail warehousing
and outlet malls For different reasons both offer retailers
sales channels which compiement online. In the case

of the former, it is the convenience and pricing of edge
of and out of town retail parks. Free home delivery wili
hecome unsustainable from both a profit and an ESG
perspective. Click and collect and free returns to store
will drive demmand for these super convenient locations
The Company is a large holder of Edisten Property which
has announced a strategic review given the subscale
size of the business. We are hopeful that this wili provide
further evidence of supportive valuations in the sector.
Outlets help retailers offlcad tines without damaging

full price/premium offerings. The success of the likes

of Bicester Village (where Hammerson hiave a non-
control'ing stake) and Gunwharf Quay in Portsmouth
{ownred by Landsec) are proof of the concept and we
remain confident about their prospects.

The combining of retail, leisure and food continues,
particulany in tourist destinations. BNP have highiighted
tne pick-up in post Covid foctfall in the most upmarket
locations such as Regent St, Champs Elysees, Portal

de Angel (Barcelonay), Via del Corso (Rome) and
Kaufingerstrasse (Munich) with footfall increasing or
average by 1/3 and, ir some cases, more than 65% (Pars
and Munich).

Retall investment has been resilient, particularly in
Continental Europe where investors see affordable rents
and higher yields than other sectors Whilst investment
levels are unsurprisingly below the 2012 to 2022 decade
average, they did increase year on year to €40.1bn (+2.6%)

-
w

according to BNP 1n the UK, retail warehousing continued 1o
dominate volumes (+60%) over 2021 and 2022. This figure
was lower across Europe and highlights the continued lack
of iarge shopping centre transactions inthe UK.

UK logistics take-up in G1 2023 was 8.6m sq ff, a slowing
when compared 1o a quarterly average of 12.0msq ftin
2022 and 13.8m sg ftin 2021 but still ahead of the quarteriy
average of 8 3m sg ftin the pre-Covid decade Vacancy
rermains at 3% and rents continue to rise. Against this
comfortable backdrop we saw yields rise by 175bps for
onme distribution units between June 2027 and March
2023. Such was the impact of the cost of money, whilst
rmarket fundamentals are deemed less relevant. Even an
asset with strong rental growth prospects cannat have g
capitalisation rate 200bps below the risk-free rate. However,
that pricing adjustment has largely been completed in our
view. We are beginning to see stability in asset prices.

tn Continental Europe the picture was very similar. Savills
report 32m sq metres taken up in 2022 acrogs the 13
largest markets, jJust 6% below the record year of 2021 and
ahead of the 5-year average in virtually all markets Higher
construction and financeé costs led to reduced speculatve
construction maintaining the intense supply-demand
imbaiance in so many markets. Over £50bn was invested in
2022, again below the record of 2021 but well ahead of the
S-year average. Yield expansion (¢ 100bps) was much jess
thar in the UK but again we expect upward pressure to ease
as fundamentals drive capital back into the sector.

We have long been cheerleaders for multi-let industrials
(ML), generaliy terraces of smaller units, management
intensive, but often located in dense urban locations.
Very little new stock has been built over the last few
decades with alternative (multi-storey} uses being

far more valuable Rents remain low in many parts of
the country making new development unviable. The
tenant rosters have evolved hugely in the last 20 years,
undergoing ‘'gentrification’ from being the domain

of light industrnal ‘'metal bashers' toc a much broader
swathe of uses, many born out of internet connectivity
and the abiity 1o access customers directly. Our largest
exposure was througn Industnals REIT, where we owned
11% of the company. Just after the year end (3 Aprin)
Blackstone announced an agreed cash bid at a 40%
premium to the undisturbed share price. The private
equity behemoth aiready has substartial exposure to
this sub-sector but it is a timely reminder that If quality
assets are left undervatued then private capia! wilt
acquire them. Qur other MLi exposure is through Sir'us
(65% Germany, 35% UK) and diversified names such as
Picton and Londan Metric (wnich acquired Muckiow in
20271 where we owned 5%). The healthy supp'y-demand
imbalance makes it a sub-sector we are keen to maintain
exposure to
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The shortage of private sector rental accormmodation
remamns acute, vet the listed companies focused on

this sector were amaongst the poorest performers in

the financial year. This group of companies (mostly in
Germany and Sweden) highlighted how management
teams were lured into increased leverage given the
stability of the underlying income streams and occupancy
levers. However, very low yielding assets struggle to
provide positive cashflows when interest rates rise

At the asset tevel, rental growth has remained well below
current inflation rates given the backward-lcoking nature
of requlated rents. We fully expect 1o see these rents

rise at historically fast rates as they factor in some of
the dramatic inflation datapoints. The serious shortage
of housing underpins long-term values. The fly in the
ointment is the cost of improving the energy efficiency of
this housing stock through both insulation and the type
of heating. In open market regimes such as the UK and
Finland, the cost of these improverments will be passed
through to rent prices. In requlated markets where only
a proportion of the capital expenditure can currently be
rentalised, this remains an impediment to rental growth.

Within open market regimes such as the UK we have
seen strong rentat growth through the combination of a
shortage of rental stock {amateur landicrds leaving the
market due to higher reguiation and lower tax efficiency),
high levels of employment/wage inflation and market
timing (where buyers decide to continue to tempararily
rent awaiting price corrections).

Purpose built student accommaodation continues to fare well,
with nsing numbers of students across the LK and Furope.
The traditional accommodation alternative of private rented
hauses (HMOs - Houses in Muitiple Occupation) are reducing
as regulation pushes up licensing costs and (comrectly) impedes
overcrowding and sub-standard accommodation. Unite, our
largest student accommodaticn stock was cne of the few
companies 1o see positive capital value appreciation in 2022
with 4% annualised growth It has recently increased its rental
growth cutlook for academic year 2023724 from 5% 10 6-7%.
Self-storage continues to confound the sceptics. Rate
growth and occupancy have begun to nermalise post the
‘Cavid boom' but remain encouragingly positive. Safestore,
our largest holding in the sector enjoyed like-for-like rental
growth of 10.7% in the year to October 2022

Hotels particularly leisure and tourist focused have also
enjoyed strong growth as consumers continue to maxe up for
lost opportunities to travel in 2020 and 2021, Recent STR data
highlights London hotels across the quality spectrum showing
RevPAR growth of +22% year on year. UK hotels ex London
was also strong at +11% vear on year and 25% versus 2019,

e

Anndal Renort & Accounts 2003

Healthcare was the poorest performer of the alternatives
group. Profitability of private care providers is being
constantly squeezed through wage and cost inflation
Continental European healthcare operators have been
rocked by the scandal at Orpea The level of state support,
both direct and indirect, are the cruciat figures required by
investors. Even then, the rate of rental growth can be guite
pedestrian as seen at Primary Health Properties and Assura.

Both debt and equity markets were very subdued during
the year. The total capital raised in 2022 was £14bn
compared to €32bn in 2021 and €21bn in 2020 Over
£9bn of the total raised in 2022 was debt in the first
guarter. To illustrate the change in pricing over the

last year, we need only review the most prolific issuer,
Vonovia, Europes largest preperty company. In March
2022, itissued 4, 6 and 8 year maturities totalling €2 5bn
priced at 1.375%, 1.875% and 2.375% respectively By
November, new 2027 and 2030 maturities were costing
4.75% and 5.0%.

Short-dated leverage risked the vicious cycle of
increased interest costs resulting in lower earnings, so
risking credit downgrades leading to even tugher cost of
debt. Leverage needed to be reduced to defend earnings;
if asset sales weren't possible then equity (even when
trading at deep discounts to asset values) needed to be
raised through rights issues.

At the half year, | detailec the capital raising by TAG
Immobilien, who had over stretched themselves with the
acguisition of a Polish housebuilder, They raised £€200m
at 2 27% discount to the theoretical ex-rights price to
help pay off the bridging loan from the acquisition. In
November, VGP, a Belgium logistics developer raised
£302m. This was more front-footed with the raise
diluting NTA by 10% in a one for four share issuance,
The business Is overly dependent on selling assets into
Allianz private funds and this capital makes them less
dependent on one customer. The CEQ and CFO own 49%
of the equity and 'stood their corner’ which reassured
investors, In Sweden, Catena, another logistics developer
raised SEK 1.4bn (£135m) as its share price hovered
close to NTA and, whilst small, it was unusual as it was
an accelerated bookbuiid and not a rights issue. Balder
raised SEK 1.8bn which it used to repay a hybnd bond
and strengthen its overall balance sheet.

The only merger and acquisition activity inthe 12
manths to 31 March (the privatisation of industrials
REIT was announced on 3 April) were two mergers,
both widely expected but the timing less sure The
joining of Shaftesbury and Capco finally happened after
atortucusly fong pericd of negotiation, capped off by

a CMA review on whether the combined entity could

be a price setter The most disappointing aspect for
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Manager's report
continued

shareholders {we do not own either company) was
that the deal results in the repayment of much of
Shafiesbury's cheap debt due to a change of control
provision. When coupled with further mcreases in
debt costs next year and scrne extraordinarily high
advisor fees {given it was an agreed transaction)
there will be precious little earnings benefit from

the anticipated synergies. The other merger was
between LX{ and Secure Income REIT on a NAV for
NAV basis. It was a much moere straightforward
affair. We were a large shareholder in SIR and
benefited immediately as the 12% discount closed
to NAV. The managers of SIR were alsc large
sharehoiders in the company and their excetlent
himing in previous preperty cycles was once again on
disptay. They even sold the management company
which had a contract to run SIR for the next three
Vears.

Portfolio turnover (purchases and sales divided by
two) totalled £477m in the year, considerably less
than the £549m in the previous year. With average
niet assets over the year of £1.18bn, turnover

was 40% of net assets, which was higher than

the previous year's figure of 36% and reflects the
volatility in the year.

In the half year report, | recorded that each rally then
trended down 1o a new low and therefore virtually

alt buys looked poor and ali sells looked clever.

The second half of the year saw the largest and
longest recovery from October to the end of January,
followed by the most dramatic correction back to the
October lows, this new low point virtually coinciding
with the year end. Throughout the year, the renewed
bouts of negative sentiment towards the sector
were based on either a change 'n the outicok for
nterest rates {and the concern that centrat banks’
behavicur would bacome more hawkisn) or renewed
speculation of a fallure in the credit transmission
mechanism_ Essentially, investor sentiment was
driven by the expectatior of the change in the price
and avalabilty of debt

In fundsight, maintairing our 1ong-standing
discipline of buying (or adding) to companies where
we felt confident in the resnience of earnings driven
by market fundamentals just wasn't enough.

As would be expected, we have carefully aralysed

all of our companies’ balance sheet capacity (in
terms of the quantum of leverage, cost and duration
of debt) In many cases, the market had quickly
adjusted the earrings expectations but what became
apparent as the year progressed was that we were
being overly rational about these revised earnings

]
v L

forecasts The market was notinterested in supply and
demand al the property/occupational market level or
whether there were still profits to be achieved from the
developmerit pipeline

The ability of the market pendulum to {over} swing
between exuberance (greed) and melancholy (fear) was
very much inevidence and we battled to

react accordingly

A good example of this was our collective underweight

to Swedish property companies. Whilst this call was our
largest contributor to positive relative performance over
the vear, the velatility i1 the group resulted in multiple
phases of repositioning. Whilst the broad statement that
Swedish property companies are amongst the most
leveraged in our investment universe is true, some are
obviousty more exposed than others. It was therefore
crucial to understand which company would suffer the
fastest earmings degradation from rising interest rates but
also to assess when the market had over reacted Those
most at risk were those exposed to bond markets rather
than bank lending or had complex hybrid instruments
dreamt up by bankers when money was cheap The scale
of share price volatility 1s best explained in a handful

of figures EPRA Sweden felt -42% in the first quarter

only ta recover +33% in the next six weeks followed by
another 40% drop 10 mid-Octeber and then the long
recovery (+36%}) to the end of January, followed by a
renewed boul of nerves sending the sector down almost
to the October lows. These figures are the coliective
impact of 18 companies For the most leveraged (SBB,
Castellum, Corem and Balder) the volatility was far greater
Underlying property market fundamentals do not drive this
ievel of price action, this was caused by changes in the
market outlook for the cost/availabitity of debt impacting
on a tiny market segment {free ficat capitalisation of just
£20bn).

Qur exposure to German residential was the poorest
asset allocation decision of the year | remained
convinced, for too long, that the market fundamentals of
virtuaily fult occupancy and (sub-market) requiated rents
would underpin investor sentiment. The fact that even at
prices a year ago all of these names were trading below
the reinstatement ¢ost of the underlying assets mattered
not a jot. The market focused exclusively on the impact
of the cost of debt. During the year we reduced exposure
in the jarger rames (Vonowvia, LEG) but maintained

the holding in Phoen'x Spree, the small Bertin focused
vehicie It s an externaliy managed fund wnich has an
annually renewed contract with QSix, the manager s
assets are all pnime Berlin where open-market rerts
continue to grow. The share price total return in the year
was -50% | remain corvinced that once prices stabilise
the smmaller comparies will benefit disproportionately
from the m™pact of portfolio sales With a market cap of
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just £190m and the share price at half the asset value,
it1s an excellent example of a portfolio of assets which
are no longer benefting from being held in a fisted
company,

With the price of money rising so rapidly in the year,

it was the lowest yielding assets which saw the maost
aggressive repricing and so it was with German (and
Swedish) residential. The compression in yields in
the previous five years was a rational response to
the comhination of strong market conditivns, (high
occupancy and rental graowth} combined with very
low cost of borrowing. This strong yield compression
{and capital value growth) was even greater in the
industrial/logistics sector. The structural taillwinds
have been discussed, ad nauseum, In previcus repcrts.
For many markets these persist but capitalisation
rates had simply been driven too low with insatiable
investor appetite for assets with income growth,

The reversal (yield expansion) described earlier was
dramatic and the sector was hit very hard. Again,

our smaller companies suffered disproportionately
as they fell alongside larger names on the way down
but often failed to cateh the hounce in any recovery.
We are confident that these conservatively managed
businesses with the right amount of leverage and
quality portfolios will perform well. However, if the
stock market caontinues to undervalue them, then no
one shauld be surprised when more privatisations
occur. In the industrial group in the UK, | would include
Industrials REIT, Picton Property and CT Property
Trust Whilst in Europe the list would include Argan,
Sirius and Catena.

With the lowest yielding (highest growth) names
suffering from capitalisation rates rising above the
new <ost of debt, it was the highest yielding sectors
which suffered the least from this devaluation. Retail
property has clearly been out of favour for many years
as the weakening in tenant demand for physical retail
space continued. In Continental Eurcpe, we focused
on Eurccommercial and Klepierre given their high

earnings yield but crucially their secure balance sheets.

We avoided Unibail-Rodamco and Wereldhave. Here
you have two companies at either ends of the asset
quality spectrum but both suffered from weak balance
sheets and the need to de-leverage. Unibail announced
2 years ago its intention to sell its US portfolio whilst
Wereldhave has continued to sell assets whenever

It can European retail as a subset outperformed the
full benchmark and our stock selection alse added to
performance with Unibail -27.5% and Klepierre -2 5%
over the year

UK retail 1s now a small part of the listed universe.
For most investors the only way ta gain exposure
IS through the diversified portfolios of Landsec

Annual Report & Accourts 7023

and British Land The bulk of our exposure 1s through
Ediston Property which cwns only retail warehouses,
However, its market cap at £140m is too small for the
Isted market and we applaud the announcement from
the beard that they are carrying out a strategic review
for the future of the company. We remain hopeful that

a merger with another listed company is a viable option
which will ensure the assets remain in the listed space
The company was a relative outperformer in the year
(-18%) as were virtually all the high vielding retail names.
Hammerson remains a play on corporate reconstruction
rather than a bellwether for retail property We believe
they are on the night path and we opened a holding in
the year The crown jgwels are the minority ownerships
in the premium cutlet malls controlled by Value Retail.
investors will need tc remain patient as the breakup will
take time, but value is reappearnng.

investors’ attitudes towards office property has been
highlighted eartier. We fully subscribe to the bifurcation
of returns between the best and the rest Smaller
European cities have also performed better with lower
WFH and higher occupancy levels. We have sought
greater exposure to those cities through Arima (Madrid),
wihlborgs (Malmo, Lund) and Fabege (Stockholm). Core
CBD exposure in the largest cities has been through
Gecina (Paris), Great Portland and Landsec (L ondon)
We have also added to the short lease, flexible offering
business modei thraugh Workspace (London) and Sirius
{primarily German flexspace). Both of these names

had a poor year with total returns of -35% and -32%
respectively but we found recently published operational
datareassuring. Landsec (-16%) was a top performer as
it continued to reduce leverage through sales of newly
completed prime offices in Central London. We are
strong advocates of capital recycling and expect tc see
more sales from non-core assets such as hotels and
leisure.

In the alternatives space, our overweight to self-storage
was entirely through Safestore (-27%) rather than Big
vellow (-21%). Safestore has outperformed on a three-
year and five-year view but clearly not in this last period.
In fact, we find it hard to choose between these two

very well rnanaged companies Both own irreplaceable
estates with core holdings in densely populated areas.
Demand for space has been remarkably stabte given

the economic backdrop. Unite (-16%), the student
accommodation provider, was another relative winner
inthe year The combination of increased earnings
guidance and sohd market evidence on modest yield
movement continues to suppoert the asset class.

Both these asset types have intensive operational
requirements and we are confident that the market
undervalues the platform through the traditional asset
value model. This was certamiy the case with Industrials
REIT where Blackstone paid a premium for the operating

business alongside the assets.
1
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Manager's report
caontinued

As noted in the Chairman's Statement, the current
years income benefited from a number of non-recurring
items. Eurocommercial and Swiss Prime both changed
their pattern of distributions during the year effectively
resulting in an additional half year payment from

each of these companies. The Argan annual dividend
which generally goes ex-divigend on or around the last
business day in March therefore moves between March
and April Inthe year 10 31 March 2023, we received
dividends in April 2022 and March 2023, resulting in two
full year payments If the dividend due around 371 March
2024 falls back inte next April, there will be no income
recerded from this company in the year to March 2024,
We have no control over these timings and there are
several companies where dividends go ex-div around
the year end. Each of three holdings noted above are
approximately 2 5% of the portfolio so this has had

a significant impact Without these (and the small
enhancerment due to foreign exchange movements), we
estimate the earnings would have been around 1.13p
fower than reported The dividend for the year to March
2023 is therefore well covered.

The dividend for the previous two years was partly pad
out of revenue reserves as the effects of COVID forced
revenue down in 2022/23, the earnings, adjusted for the
one-offs set out above, are just over 10% higher than the
last reported period before COVID-19 {being the year to
31 March 2016) The full year dividend to 31 March 2023
is almost 15% ahead of the pre-COVID dividend as the
Board recognises the importance of & growing dividend
to our sharehoiders.

Looking ahead to the 2023-24 financial year, at this
stage, we expect to report a fall in earnings. This is partly
expiained by the one-off adjustments highlighted above.
However, the additional impact 1s from the number of
the Gerrman residential and Swedish companies that
have announced dividend suspensicns and/or cuts as
they work to reduce their gearing levels in tne face of
rsing debt costs The residentiai narmes in particular
are making progress with ther dispasal programmes
so we expect to see ther dividends resuming, although
nossibly at a lower level in the not too distant future

The impact of righer interest rates will feed through to
earnings as fixed or capped debt structures come up for
refinancing. The impact of this of course depends on the
duration of such debt packages and this varies nugely
across our companies, It s encouraging to note tnat

for most of trem, the majority of ther debt is fixed (or
capped) unti' 2026 and beyond

QOn a more encouraging note, top line revenue is
benefriing from inflation All of our European companies
and a significant number of our UK names benefit from
rents inked 1o some form of indexation. it vanes widely
across countnes and sectors but s clearly an important
part of our revenue growth frajeciory

Although the revenue for the forthcoming year is Iikely
to be under some pressure given all these competing
factors, we are optimistic that growth will return over
the medium term. Market fundamentals conuinue 1o
drive organic rental growth in so many of our sectors. In
the meantime, the Company still has plentiful revenue
reserves to maintam dividend levels over short term
income falls, as was seen through the COVID-19
pandemic.

Gearing began the year at 10 2%, increased 10 12.0% by
the half year and finished the year at 12.2%. This does
not represent the changes in gearing seen throughouit
the pericd as gearing has been actively changed

in response to the very variable market conditions
throughout the year and has ranged between 10%

and 16%.

The cost of our debt has increased through the year

as our revolving credit faciiities and CFD financing

are linked to SGNIA (or other currency eguivalents).
However, arimportant part of our debt book are the
EUR 50m and GBP 15m loan notes both at fixed rates of
interest. The combination of the fixed and floating rate
debt gives us a high degree of flexibility with some pnce
stability at lower levels of gearing Generally, where
higher levels of gearing are appropriate (so drawing on
the floating rate financing) the market conditions are
such that returns are not too sensitive to the pricing.

In the year to the end of March the physical property
porticlio preduced 2 total return of-13.7%, made up of
a capitaireturn of -17 5% and an income return of 3 8%.
The MSCIMonthiy UK Property Index returned -14 7%
over the same periad, made up of an income returr of
50% and acapita fall of 18 8%

TF Propertyirsesimert Trst



During the year we sold the residential element of the
Colonnades development for £5m on a new 999 year
lease at a peppercorn rent The value of this element

is determined by the outstanding lease extensions
remaining on the individual flats During the Company’s
ownership we completed lease extensions over 75% of
the flats and received more than £12.5m in premiums.
In addition, the sale facilitated the simplification of the
leasehold structure of the asset. The Company has
retained the freehold of the island site as well as all the
commercial elements. The locality continues to improve
with the redevelopment of the old Whiteleys shopping
centre nearnng completion. This is an impaortant next
phase in the further gentrification of Bayswater.

It was a busy 12 months for asset management at
Ferrier Street, Wandsworth. The strategy remains to let
the estate on a short-term basis, retaining the flexibility
for either & refurbishment of the existing or a more
comprehensive redevelopment under the planning
permission secured in June 2022. During the year the
Company concluded 10 new leases (five renewals and
five new lettings) covering over 60% of the estate. This
secured over £500,000 of rent with the average rent on
new lettings exceeding £30 per 5q. f1. The attractiveness
of the estate continues to benefil from the further
reduction in supply of London industrial space, whilst
the depth of demand from occupiers has increased.
The diversity of our ocoupiers reflect this broad based
demand and range from photographic studios to food
production and even a plant nursery

Lnnuai Peport & Accounte 2023

Inflationary pressures persist. Central banks appear
resofutely determined to remain hawkist with another
round of base rate increases in May. Whilst a relatively
blunt instrument, there are signs that the medicine of
increased interest rates is having the required effect with
reduced retail sales growth. Energy has been a major
driver of cost inflation and the spot price of gas has
fallen back to pre-nvasion prices. This will soon begin to
feed into lower headline inflatian figiires and also reduce
the likelihood of a recession We expect wage inflation,
driven by high employment levels, to persist, resulting in
inflation remaining ahead of central banks’ target rates.

Against this backdrop real estate fundamentals, in

our preferred sectors, rernain solid with little signs of
over-supply and stable demand. Economic growth is
likely to be at best anaemig, for a while, and speculative
development will remain subdued. income, often index-
linked, will rematin the key valuation underpin. We will
maintain our focus en the most judiciously leveraged,
avoiding those with large near-term refinancing
reguirements. With such a large number of well financed
listed companies, we also expect opportunities to gather
assets from those struggling to refinance in a world
where debt availability is getting more restricted.

The sector has a long tail of micro-cap companies

and we continue to encourage boards to explore the
opportunities for consolidation where it improves share
liquidity and reduces costs. Otherwise, we will continue
to see the steady stream of privatisations as these
smaller companies are attractive bite sized morsels for
large private real estate owners. Whilst the Company has
often benefited from these premium bids (and continues
1o hold a wide range of small caps) we also befieve that
growing the number of larger companies is in the best
interests of the sector and investors.

As we go to print at the beginmng of June, we are
pieased to report an all-paper bid by London Metric
{market cap £1,700m) for CT Property Trust (£180m).
The Company owns 10% of CT Property Trust and the
price rose 25% on the announcement

Marcus Phayre-Mudge
Furd Manager
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Responsible investment

introduction

The Board recagnises tne .mpartance of considerng
Ervironmental. Social and Gavernanrce { ESG) factors
wrien makirg nvestmerts and in act'ng as aresponsibie
steward of capita.. Thvs covers the Company's own
responsibi’ties on governance and repcriing a~d. the
~ost matena. way in which the Company can nave

a~ impact, through responsib.e ownership of the
investents that are made cn its beha.f by 'ts Manager

1. The Company's own approach to
Corporate Governance and Reporting

Martaming a hgh evel of Governance and disclosure
N the Company's owr operat ons and reporting

s extrerely mportant Our Fund Managers are
encouraging and s.pporting tris from the companies
mowhiel we invest and we canrot fal short of these
stardards ourselves.

The Company's complance win the AIC Cade of
Corporate Governance is detaiied i the Corporate
Gover~ance Report on page 50

Urder Section 474 of the Comrpares Act 2006 there is

a reqgu rerert to detaihinforrmation about employee and
hurrar rights, inc'uding irformation about any poilcies
i relation to trese Matters and the effectiveress of
these po' cies As tme Company has ne errployees, th s
regurenent does not apply The Company s nolwithin
the scope of the UK Moderr Slavery Act 2015 because 1
nas rot exceeded tne tuemover threshod ard strerefore
nct obiged to make a saavery and harman trafficking
statement Tre Directors are sat'sfled that, to tne best

of ther krowledge, the Comrpany's pnincipal supp: ers,
whicT are wsted 0 page 120 compy wih 1re prov siong
of the UK Madern Siavery ACt 2015, These are principa. v

professiora. advisers and serv ce prov ders e tne firanca

services nd.stry, consequent y the Beard considers tne
Comparytobe ow nskim reator to tris matter

Tre Boarg carrently comprises trree ma e 0 reciors
ardrree ferma e Directors The Board &'sc meetstre
FChsr.es for diversty ard ~¢'uson focw ~gtre
recorendat.ons of tre Parker Rev ew

Treactviescftre No™ ~ation Com~tlee nreato”
10 Beard crarges are referred to - tre No~ rat on

Cc~m ttee Report ¢~ pages 56 a~d 57

TreBoards d verstypc ov saut ~ed ~ ~oredets -
t~e Corpcrate Gover-arce keport

Tre Compary Fas ro greentouse gas e 55 s to repart
from s operaticns nor does it haverespons bty forary
clrer emIssions prodac ~g so.rces Lnder tne Companes
£t 7006 (Strateg o Reportard Drectors Reports

Regu.ations 2013). Investment trast compar.es are
curtertly exerpt frorm reporting against tne Task Force o
Ci.mate-Reated F-nanciai D sclosures ( TCFD § however,
the Fimancia' Condact Authority { FCA} has now publ.shed
reguiations trat require the Company’'s Marager, as its
Aiternative trvestment Furd Manager { AIFM"), to report
aganst TCFD at botn the AIFM and product level by June
2024 This mears that there w'll be a TCED disciosure
specific to the Company's partfolio avaiabie r the future,
which will be pub'shed on the Managers website The
Manager has produced g report or its overal cimate
change appreach, winch is structared csing the TCFD
categores ard s avaiabe on its website.

2. Our Portfalio Manager's Approach to ESG
Qur Portfolio Manager's prnimary duty 1s 10 pursue the
object ve set aut at the beginng ¢f this annuai report
which s 1o invest nproperty ard property related
compates with tne objective of exceeding the returrs of
our berchmark

Tre Company Mas rot set out 1is stall to be an ESG
focused furd nowever as a lorg-term irvestor,
goverrance a~d sustanabiity cons derations have
always beenerbedded nour Manager's irvestment
praocess ESGrisk assessrrenrts and considerat:ons are
factors which feed nta the irvestment deciscors This
reflects tre be'ef that strorg governarce combined w1
a responis be approach te sacia’ oblgators and the
comrmitmert t¢ protect our enviicnimert we.l entarce
srareroder returns intne 1ong term

I the part of the portfo atrat s rvested direct'y 1°to
commerc.a rea estate we endeavoLlr to practice what
WE preacr

LISTED EQUITY PORTFOLIO

A5 a ded cated investor M tme property sector our Marager
g ~ct navitg 1o cons der some of the more controvers:as
areas of wrat 's etnca: ~vestmiet However we are
rvest 1 ~ buid ngs s Tere corstruction and ¢ngo g
~arage et have a drect mpact G tne envirer et
Aoproperty 5 ¢ some way denvenng a soca DJIpose
NMeder~ by dirg pract.ces are very ~ecr Tore focused
orredoec,mgerergy cortsapt 0" and effic.emcy trar
tre past Propert'es ~ave varyng . fespans bt are bt
forthe 'opgter~ Oderby drgswhich are essenargy
efficenttrar trer ~gders cooterparis are a fact of

fe trer rep acemert ~ag wderensrorrental ard
SOC 27 TeQers.ss 07s 88 wel as TLge cost mpetalcrs
Tmeyare go ~gto for—partof tne ~vestbe un verseion
e foreseeab e f_tore and e refic et mproverent
ardmanggerert s ustas wpartart asersorog e
deveicp™ents folow e migrest possie enyiror e 1a
stardards Atnoogroderbl dogsw ~ost keysrow
~feror scores 1oier more Toders colrierparts o a

TR Property nLestrert Trus?



nurmber of environmental measures, we are looking for
demonstration of best efforts to ‘miprove these measures,
recognising tnat there wie be [mitations o what car be
achieved but want ng to see a positive direction of travel.

Trere are two fundaimental corsiderat ons to irvestmenrt
nproperty compan.es. the assets themselves and their
maragement, The Manager seeks to invest -~ long-term
assets which are managed by quality teams .n a well
goverred corporale structure As a result, there has been
along-stard ng and strong culture of steveardsh pinthe
Manager's investmert approach The Manager believes
that engagirg with companies 1s best m the first mstance,
rather than simply divestirg or exclud'ng nvestment
opportun’ties. However there are .nstances where
governance matters nave driver a decision ot te irvest
Inacompany As are of tie largest teams investing in
pan-turopean rea. estate equities, our Manager meets
witr a signi‘icant number of management teams of
invesiee and potential investee companies each year and
has arobust record of engagement with an agenda of
reducing risk, improving performance and ercouraging
best practice This ‘s augmented by the strength of
Columbia Threadreedle s Responsible Investrent

tea and ts broader engagement Over the course of
the year, our managerment team participated in 227
indiv.deal or group meetings with compar.es and their
manragement teams

The Manager 1s commitied to respensible investrent
and s actvely developing new procedures and ways in
wrch rformation is gathered and used to support therr
engagement with companes or £SG matters

Corporate Governance disclosure regairements have
increased transparency enormously inrecent years and
enabied closer scrutiny and engagement on Governance
1Issues for some years Ervronmental meascres are now
rapidly coming to tne fore and, with wider disclosure
requirements beirg placed upon cur irvestee comparies,
tne Manager 1S Increasingly abe to scrutinise other
Measures such as chimate change and sustainabiity
pelices and catcormes

However, tre Board and Marager are st'll of the view that
the ESG rating rdustry and its approach and processes
Fas signficant iritations, making it difficult to draw

true compansons and make fully nfonmed dec’sions

e assessments from the varous data providers

reach different concius ons as they do not aill score in a
consistent way Scme of the assessments ate subjective
and different data prowiders have different defiritions and
criena

Anrugl Resart & Accounts 207
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This nay eventually converge into some form of
corsersds or standardisation but it still nas a way to

go Conceptually mak~g ESG comparisons between
corpanies and portfo ios appears simple, but it is
actualiyv1ather complex and 1 simrportant tg ensuare that
va d comparsons are be ng made. As the shortcomings
are being uncovered and the different approaches
highi.gnted we hope that th s w il put pressure onthe
data prov.ders to improve tne qualty and canfy the basis
of the'r analysis Tne data services are subsanhed to so
have to be fit for purpose

Having nated the snortfalls above wih the data col'ected
fron~ the different providers, our Manager 's ennancirg
tre way in wnich ESG date s col ected and compared
Their owr company database covers finarcial and
operational mformatior together with extensive
modelling. ESG data 1s being col'ated alongside this,
allowing corpansons to be made more gas’ly between
the various data sources for a single company and
interrogated ratner than relying on hign ‘evel "scores”.
Interactions with companies on ESG matters are

roted and progress, or otherwise, can be tracked more
efficientty.

Tne Manager 15 therefore dedicating direct resoLrce to
the analysis of tne informat-on avallable and also has
the berefit of mput from ‘ts award-winning Respensibie
Investmert Team. This s work in progress and a
sign.ficant investment in resource but 't wilimprove the
Manager's ab’lity 1o engage witn cur nvestee compan s
on environmental matters and play out our responsibse
mvestrent ams

It 1s crucia: to disaggregate between guality companies
which also have strong E5G credentials and companies
which may appear 1o have strong ESG credertials {on
the surface at least) but wi' make poor investments One
examp-e of this approach is Home REIT Or the face of t
Home REIT's ESG credentia's appeared strong g.ven the
company's basiness mode’ s focused on the provision
of accommodation to belp tackle homelessress in the
UK. In addition, 115 ieases are 100% "greer’ meaning
Home and 1s terarts agree to identify ard .mp ement
appropriate strategies for the mproverert of tne
properties’ ervirormental performance However, we
elected ot to part'cipate inthe company’s IPQ, and

the fund has never owned the shares subsequertly, as
we had reservat’ons about tre overall economics of

the business We were concerned about the covenant
guanty of the tenants (often rewly-formed charities)
and bel.eved tnat the 'ong lease stiuctures pat in place
by Home REIT nsked gverstating a realistic value of

the Lnderlying assets. This approach proved correct

- short se ler Viceroy pubished a report or Home

RENT myNovember 2022 whch ighhighted numerous
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Responsible investment
continued

concerns win the busmess and the compary ras been
investigated by regulatory bodies on a numrber of iten-s
M recent months. The srares are currertly suspended
perding a dec’'sion over the future of the business.
having dropped &1% from the or g ral PO price

An exarrpie of a arge rolding where we believe tne ESG
credent.als comp'ement the mvestment case s Landsec
As well as adherirg to the governance standards

we wouid expect from g lead.ng isted company the
company also nas & clear'y outined sustamabity
frarrework Th.s nciudes long-term targets, progress
against winich s regulany rornitored and preserted
back to myvestors, such as operationa’ carbor em ssions
reduction of 70% by 2030 {with a 2013/74 baseanel ard
average embodied carbon reduct.on of B0% compared
with a typical bui'ding by 2030 The companys newest
developments, wh'ch in our view cortribute positivery

to the invest™ment case giver ther abity to contrbute
ta both earrings and et targ.bie asset value over tme,
are also a. net zero buiidings, wnicn we bereve whl
contribute to an Mmproved rertar growth tore wner the
assets are et As such there s a symbiot.c re'ationshp
between tre company's strong €56 aredentials ard its
under'y rg economic perfarmance

Governance

Soverrance covers matlers suen as beard structure
effectiveress, diversity and independerce, execctive
pay and critena, snarehalder nghts ard financiar and
goverrance reporturg and standards.

The Manager ras a corporate governance vot’rg policy
wnich Inits op nor accords wth currert best practice
wanst ma staming a primary foces on firarc al retuirs
T-eexercise of votirg rgris attacred to the portfolo
“as been delegated 10 Ire Ma~ager Wrere pract.cabe
& srarenrc dings were voted at ail corpary meetngs
~toefimarcaiyear i accordance wih Co b a
Trreadneed-es owr corporate govertance po.icies Tns
ens.res toat a strong cors stent approacs is taken to
proxy «oling e Cr backs up and resrforces engagerent
takes a robust ine o0 key Qover-arce 1ISsLes sutt as
exec.tve pay and ntegrates enviormenta soca &
d.versity ‘ssues and susta nabaty practces ~tothe
votmg process

Coo~bal-readread es Stewards p Report 2022

pracdes vore oforaticr o0 tg i evel stewardso o

PO’ cies as we as "owtTese coTpy win tne

expectat o~ s of tre UK Stewards: p Code 2022 10 waor

tre bAgnageris a s:gratory its statement of compeance
~befoordo t e webste at

attps Dwewes Lo ubathreadreedle co e

Dor~girefiranca year tre lfanager soted aga ~st &t

[£e)

£ast one Mmanagem.ent proposa at 52% of shareho'der
meetings This represerts 13% of total items voted Cf
the items voted agairst, the proposals car be troady
categonsed as follows

3% 2%
i B i Remuneration
5% : Sharehoider nghts
Election / Reelection of
Directors

Share repurchase policy
other

Director terms

Ratify Auditor

For the year the Marager engaged witn 24 companes
diect'y on ararge of £3G reiated matiers These
engagements were conducted at botn the boand and
senicr execulve ievel as well as directiy with imvestor
relatans Topics of engagerment were spiit as foilows

Chrmate Change
Envirohmental Standards
Labour Standards
Corporate Governance
Hurman Rights

The Manager tracks the m lestares of tre ergageyert
sirategy ard ras seen progresstos vear or a numiber

of ratters Examp'es inciude the pubacator of
sustanabn ty reports and beard accoutab ty o rur-an
rghts risk maragerent

Social

A bud-gshaveasoca furctor to some extent,
providng piaces (¢ ve, work eat stop store etc
Wianageme~t of be d 1gs needsicensure any sot a
chugatior stc e occopants are met ir terrs of

Hea tr & Safety emp oyee marage™ert a~d we bhe =g
ard com™ et tc comu tes Most of these

cb gatorsarstherespo s bty of treterant but our
myestee oo par es are chigedto report o~ mMatters

flect ~gtrer onr empayees ard soch staterents are

R

ci
ome ofered

TFFroperiyir -esvrears



Environmentat

Fnvirormental palic’es n the property sector focus
largely on sustamnabrlity and climate change Cinmate
change s ore of the defining chal'enges of Moder- tmres.

Tre management team have sourced data and research
fram severa. providers including the Columbia Thireadneedle
Responsib'e Investment team, MSCI and Giobal ESG
Be~chmark for Real Assets ( GRESB').

Tre quaniity ard depth of data avaiabie in ow seclor
varies greatly, the larger companies now nave teams
ded-cated to providing envirormertal mpact data ard
reporting However many of our companies are small and
do not currently have the resources to contrnibute data

to tne organisations providing analysis to the imvestor
commurity As aconsequerce, we see strong correlatiors
betweer compary s ze, maturity and overan scores Since
odr investment strategy leads us to own focused md-sized
companies i preference to some of the larger diversfied
ones, the portfolio's overall ESG score might tend to be
urflattering compared to the wider benchrmark. The rigour
of our process ersuras that these comMpanies receive
scratiny by the tearr

GRESB 15 8 mussion-driven and investor-led organisation
providing standardised and validated ESG data to the
capital markets Estabiished in 2009, GRESE now covers
over USD Stnlhon inreal estate assets, pubrishing 1y ar
annua real estate assessment score for participating
companies, and I} a pubic disciosure score for al hsted
real estate companies Thereal estate assessmenrt score
ranks Environmeri, Social and Gavernance metrnics based

Data coverage as % of weight of the invested equity portfolio

2023

Rated o . B6% o 62%
Unrated o 34% o 38%
Total 100% 100%

on data contrnibuted directly from participating compan es,
whi st the public disclesure scare evaluates the level of ESG
disclosure by listed property companies and REITs

Further deta:l on GRESE can be found at
wWAWW gresh com

For 2023 there is 'noreased GRESBE Real Estate
Assessment coverage of the Company's equity portfolio
(66% from 50%)

German residential companes representng 17 6% of the
ndex do rot sabmit data to GRESE due to the regairement
to submit data at the asset or buiding ieve! and concerns
around farr comparisons of data aggregation We continue
to engage with GRESB, encouraging them to modify the
reqdirements ta ercourage wider participation.

MSCIESG research covers a wide range of enviranmental
impact measJres including CO2 and greenhouse gas
ermissicns, erergy and water usage, N addition to wider
corporate governance scores Furtner deta” car be fourd at
wWWW Mscl com/our-solutions/esg-investing/esgratings

Coverage of our sector reduced from 99% to 6% ard the
Company's portfolio ‘ncreased from 89% to 96%. Where
coverage s based on public data, a sigrificant preportion
1 included whereas where specific data has tc be
sJbmitted by compan.es the coverage s currently muc-
tninner

Tre table below compares coverage by both data
providers year on year.

99% 96% O 96% . 96%

77% 4%, A9 4%
) 100% 100% ) 1_00% 100‘_‘/5

Source GRESE, MGSC , Colurbia Threadneedle Investrments. Data s a1 31 03 2023 Fund exposuie calzulated as the % weignt of tne rivested equity po-tfolio.

2022 S
Real Estate Assessment
Fund ~ Benchmerk
Rated 7 50% 4% |
Unrated 50% 46%
Total 100% WéO%

Public Diselbsure
Fund - Benchmark

97% 97% 89% G8%

3% 3% 1% 1%
100% 160% 100% 100%

Source GRESE MSCI Caumbiz Threadneedle nvestments Dataas a1 21 03 2027 Fund exposure calou ated ag 111e % weigt a° the nvested equily poit‘al o
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Responsible investment
continued

We contimue to coilect data on emissiors and compale
to prior years with the emphasis being more on directior
of travertnar the abso.cte measures themselves This
is also an area where we expect to see further change
which is also expiained

For the year ended 31 March 2022, we d'sciosed, as best
we were able to the portforo-weghted carbon intensity
of the tota! portfono for tre first time

Carbor Risk measwures exposuie to carbon miersve
companes. MSCl's defirition and ca'culaton with

data based on MSCI CarboniMetr.cs, is the portfolio-
weighted average of 1ssuer carbon ‘riensity Atthe
issuer level carbon internsity is the ratio of annua’
scope 1 and 2 carban emiss.ors 1o annua; reverue
Carbor Rskis categor zed as Very Low (010 <15),

Low (1510<70) Moderate (70 10 <250) Higr (250 t¢
<525), and Very H gh {>=525) The Carbon Risk of the
equity portfonc measured at the firancial year end, was
43 6T CO2E/SM Saes (2022 633 T CO2E/SM Sales),
falimg witnintre jiow 1nisk MECI category The Company's
portfol o-we'grted carbon intensity was lower than that
of tre bercrmark of 49 BT CC2E/SM Sales

Compar.rg agamst the results from last year s~ows a
headine c 31% decrease «n carbar wtensity for both our
own equity portfolio and -18% for the index Trete are a
number of reasons for this. Wrilst the rat.cis g snapshot
taker at each financia year erd refiecting tve chiarge
reguity no'dirgs over the per.ad there s aisc wider
coverage of data at the 2023 fingnicial year end (98%

for the currert year furd no'dings versas 89% far the
prioryear) The atest ermissons data for eacr company
s captured by MSClor pubication of treir data each
copany s natreleas ng trerdataat tre same poirt
sotmirg d.fferarces wit arse Trerat ow ' also be
mpacted by e crarg.rg vaLe of S Sales, irc.edrgtre
~pact of FX rates However wthio trese l rmiat.ons
we can be reasorab v confident that the Carbon R sk of
treportfo’ o s ~proving a~d currecty bettertrar the
be-chnrark

T CO2E/$M Sales

)

0 [
2023 2022
@& TR Froperty eestment Trust

FTSE EPRANAREIT Developed Eurape Capped Index

In order to attemipt to give a preture of the direction of
travel, we have looked at the rdividua companies the
Company hods 10 assess whith have improving o
detenarating carbor intensity metncs over trree a-d
“ve year per.ods.

This analys's depends upor the tegriy of the
undeny.ng data and breadth of data coverage, so we
would cadton tnat this s a work in progress, but it
ncicates a positive trend as awateness 1mproves and
compan.es are obiged to disciose data

3yr
momentum

5yr
momentym

[ improving
Detengratng
| | Neutral

By ~u~ber of compares Improv g winere erd of per od
va'ue siessthar start of perod Deter cratig wrere erd
fpericd vaue sgreater 2vts Datafor 47 of 67 stocks

yre Datafor 42 of 671 stecks

Chom Tt eRe e PetE i
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For the property sector, the focus s cunently an the
energy effic’ency of baldings once they are occupied,
but we expect :ntime more attenticn will be pad to the
carbon emtted in gett-ng therr built and eventua vy
d.smantled wich accounts for a iarge proportior of a
bullding's em.ssions over its ifesparn.

DIRECT PROPERTY PORTFOLIO

Sustairabi ity 1s core to the strategy of the direct property
partfoino wh chwe nvest in, held and marage on behalf
cf sharcho ders and tnis has been a key focus tor tne
maragermrent team n tneir asset maragement approach

Central to the year's apprecach was energy corsumption
As tme primary sodarce of carbor entssions within the
portfolo, a pronty over the last twe've imonths nas
been to gan a clear urderstanding of the congumption
Irtensty across the portfolio, estabhsring a bencimark
from wnich we can map the strategy to manage the
envirommental .mpact of these assets throudh energy
saving nterventions Th's data coliection al.ows us to
fix toe base year from: whicn to set out future targets as
well as a Clear path toward a net zerc carbon portfoi'o
A.ongside this we have a'so worked hard to future proof
the portfolio against the forthcomng Minimum Erergy
Efficiency Standards.

We also recognise that the bult ervironment plays a
fundamental role r tre ! fe of local communities. Asa
landlord tre Company contindes to enhance 'ts socal
engagement with the loca! community stakeholders

at cur assets We also strive to work with local supply
chain partners to deliver a best-in-class service for our
occupiers whist alsc supporting the locai ecoromies
sJarrounding our assets This nelps us derronstrate the
social va'ue we brirg to commun'ties, occupiers and
sharehalders.

The finai strand to our approach 's governance

This farms the foundation for how we manage our
propertes The manager operates a Sustamnabi ty and
Saoc’al Responsibility Comnmittee whicn focuses on the
mpremertation and delivery of all ESG imitiatives and
provides ful. transparency on oJr proactive hards-on
approach From th's we can execdte our emviormertal
ard soc a responsibilities We are oriy able 1o ach.eve
cur goals through a joined- Jp approach with our property
ranager, energy consultant and olner key partrers vtk
WhQm we work

Arrua Report & Accodnts 2023

in last year's report we dentifled the three key prilars

to establish the foundation for the deivery of our ESG
strategy These three poars, ramey Asset Energy
Performance {(Envirenment), Occupier Engagerent
(Social) and Qperational Perfarmance (Goverrance’
continue to nav.gate the Maragement Team towaids the
successful reaisatior of our ESG strategy

Wiilst the significant progress made over the ast 12
montas renforces our commitment 1o achieve net zero
carbon by 2050, our uitrmate goal is to amrbiticusly
mmprove on tus 2050 target To that end, we Fave
instructed net zero audits across the portfoic to facilitate
Jsir dentfying exactly now we car bring tus target
forward from 2050, Tris strateqic framework wil: be
driven by science based targets in a cost-efficient
manner, and we wih be articulating our 'mproved
pathway over the forthcoming year.

Environmental

Accurate data collection and transparert reporting are
integral to our goal of reducing carbon emissions across
our portfolio. We bave put n place a number of "nitiatives
to this end which are cutlined below.

Reliab.e ard accurate data celiection & the cornerstone
to understanding the carbon intens ty of our assets  This
gives us the ability to set ambitioLs targets to reduce
the carbon intensity and Scope 1 and 2 emrssiors for
botr ourselves ard cur cccdprers. To th's end we have
beer working 10 co'laboration with our stakeho.ders

to implement a programme to ‘nstal automat ¢ meter
readers (AMRs') across the portfouo to enabie the
accurate measurement ard monitoring of each asset’s
energy consumpt'on. This consumption data 1s now
being coliated ard analysed by the property industry-
recogrised SIERA+ platform This means we can
measure energy consumpticr and access live data
which we can analyse and then use to snape our baild ng
operat'on decisions The AMRS have also provided the
dataset which wili form part of the Company's iraugural
GRESB submission currently underway, setting the
bercrmark for future ESG performance. With angoirg
access to this fully transparent and 've dataset we car
take control of cur carbon emissions with integrity ard
pinpoirt exact'y where further improverrents can be
achieved
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Responsible investment
continued

Asoauthred m e lastrepart a key objectve for the Fund
was to commerce 15 first GRESB subrmissor. Now trat
we have an accurate dataset of carbon consumption, we
hayve been able to begin tre first GRESB submigsion for
2022/23 Theresu'ts of this submssion wit be avanable
1 October 2323 and from this we wi'l be able toadentify
further sastamabty opportur tes and errarce our
strategy towards net zero This s a s')grificant ~nestone
for the Compary and GRESE will erable usto meascre
our ESG performarce with r a uaniform and g'obally
estabished piatform

Arotner key e'emert to managmng the carbon tensity
of the portfouo s thiougn the rmpiementation of Green
Leases Clawses across the portfono ithas enab'ed us
tc embed our net zero commitments inte the formal
strocture within whch we leasé our assets, setting out
a mutuar agreenrent between landlord and occupler

tc strive to 'prove energy efficrencies and reduce
carbon emgsions generated by the assets They also
prov de a forma, framework for the Comrpany 1o work
with occupiers o our data ccliection workstream in
mstarces where we are notir co~tro. of the ututy suppy
This in turn strengthens our ability 1o enfarce carbon
mtensity targets and ga 0 furtner cortroi of Scope 1 ard
2 ermMissions

Furtrer contro’ of carbon em ssiors has been aceved
trrough the scecessfui trans.tor of a'l energy acress
‘ardiord areas for tre wroe portfouo to rerewable
sources 17818 a portforg-w de mtat ve ard 100% of
‘andiord e'ectnicity and gas suppies are now coriracted
or certified greer tar ffs backed by the Cfge~ireguiated
Renewab'e Erergy Gearantees of Orig.r (REGO) screme

From 1 Apr 2023 a cor™erca'renta properi es
arerequrediorave a” EPC of & or better Tredrect
property portfc! c corrently meets tmése stardards and
overa)’ tre portfor og ERPC profre s vee i piaced for tre
short-termieqorere~ts a-d . ~—pao
aceved ooertre ast 12 montns

J
h

ved rat ~gs ~ave besr

Two sigrificant achievements of note are the
mmproverrent of tne twe EPC G rat ngs withnine
portfolio te Band C rat rgs and increas.rg the
percentage af assets now quaifyirg for EPC ratirgs
by over 20% Tmis nas been accomplisred through
deta. ed operationai analys s of our assets and tre
Tpierrertat o of erergy saving enhancements,

It is irportant to note that tne increase in Erating s

due to charges rtne assessment criena ard the
majority of the £ and D ratings are at Wandsworth where
the strategy stoedrer compigte a comprenens ve
refurbishmert or a fu -sca'e redeveiopmentir the ~1.d
term Wark onthig project wil' compiete pnorto the 2030
MEES standard wh o will require a mirimem EPC of

B Orcetnisproject bas been delwvered the percentage
cf the portfu'ic by ERV achieving 2030 comp iance will
rerease tc 88%  Thrsis before any otrer erhancements
are mp.eTented

Furtrer to th s, the Compary Fas now ra sed tre target
of ach'evirg a mirimon” EPC rating to the mi mu of &
B for al plarred refurbisnrments and upgrade works 1o
tre portfol o Tr.s forms part of the w der ES3-focused
refurb’ snment check st

EPC (% of ERV)

E 8%
(2022 6%)

B 58%
B, 28% (2022 47%

(2022 32%)

TERpzrertlroastrars Trust



The Company nas been warking ciosely with the major
tenart of aur ndustiia estate 'r Gloucester to install
PV cells or the roof of the buiding to generate cheap,
low carbor (carbon neatral) erergy onsite  Irfusion,
who package specialist teas for a number of h gh-end,
3rd party cestomers have beer a key terant on the
estate srce purchase n 2015 and sustamability s key
to the compary etnos  Theinstallation: of PV cells or
tme roof wags a critical development for the company n
s patn towards ret zero carban Resuits to date have
bee~ very pos.tive with 80% of the onsite generation
beirg consumed on site and the balance being exported
togrid Infusion project that 75% of their totar annual
electricity consumption will be generated on site,

The key facts of the irstallation are

+ System Size — 244.8kwp

» Year 1 Generatior Prediction - 231,752kWh's

- COZ Saving per annum - 49 tonnes

+ EPC improvemert from C rating 1o B

This nugely successful project demonstrates our
occupler-focused, opportunity-led approach whereby we
nave championed our occupter's success I achieving
tnefr sustamability goals whilst also mproving the
envircnmental profiie for the portfolio Following this

success we are investigating instalhing PV orto tne
remaimn g units on the estate

Anruai Regort & Accounts 2023

"Infusion GB are extremely commtted to reducing our
environmental factprint and the installation of Solar

PV &t Gloucester was a critical step towards this The
proactive engagement of TRPIT wés instrumental to this
and enabled us 1o instali a self-generating power source
to ow binidings Thus witiative has beenincredibly well
received by customers, supphers and employees alike”
Bruce Stevers Commiercial Director Infusion GB,
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Responsible investment
continued

Social

Tre management tear nas continded actively to engage
with accupers 1o support and potental'y invest ntrer
ESG objectves Cormrmunication and colaboraticr piays a
central roe ir achrevng £56 gaoals

A quartery ESG rewsietter 1s now publisred and
crrculated wiin occop.ers 1o encourage engagemert Key
content for tre rewsletter iInc'udes iNviting occupiers

to partic.pate in the AMR rstalfation prograrmme,
community engagement in tiatives ard ra:sing b.odvers ty
awareness across tre portfol-o which irciude tne
nstallat'on of b rd boxes and bug "ote’s at Gloucester.

At Wandswortr we have successfely managed to
i~tegrate a crit calloca comMmumty partrer .nto Ferrer
Street through the etting of Unit 16 to the wandsworth
Foodbark. By ett rgthe ot at nilrent we have enabled
t1erm to continue 1o sLpport peopie and famul es facing
severe rardstip acrass Wandsworth Beroagn  Intne
ast year aver 11 C0CO emergency food parcels were
provided i 'ocal ~ouseho.ds <1 severe Fardshp Wit a
larger faci ity at Ferr er St they rave been abie to mcrease
their e~ergency food provisicr by 71% triougnout the
borough and derver drectly (o tnose roosenoids wno
cannot access trer Welcomre Certres

"Wandsaorth Foodbank are extremely gratefu’to TR
Property lInvestment Trust for enalbling our move (¢
Ferner St The aarensuse prowvidés oS with 3 Space 1o
recerve, sort and store large amounts of donated food,
ana dispateoh it ro our seven Welcome Centres and

directly to people s homes \We are really grateful for this
pErirersnis a5 e SUCport iocal househo'd
cosi-of-heng crisis "Da~ Fri- Wards o Foodbark
l4a-ager

22z




The Colgnnades s also central to the community
landscape of the Bayswater area ard itis vital tnat it s
fully irtegrated into this environmert We have continued
towark with gur ccar commurity partners at the
Colonrades over the iast 12 months to help alleviate the
challenges of rough sleepers inthe Bayswater area.

Governance

Ir order to deliver our ESG targets 11s essential that our
irternal management structare s fully aligned weth our
attategy Tne Sustamability and Socids Respons.b ity
Committee meets on a bimonthly bas's to ensure tnat we
are on track with out Sustainability Roadmap objectives
througn the thorough review of current intat ves and
Imp'emMentation. The Committee works in partrersnip
witr oar managirg agents (Stiles Harrold willams)

1o ensure we mairtain a susta rab.e supply cnain

whnich complements our net zerg carbon gcals Thisis
demorstrated throwgh objectives set to ensure 100%

of waste matenal under andlord contral is not sent to
landful Tre accreditation of ocur managing agent to Safe
Cantractor also demonstrates our commitment 1o pay ng
all directly employed staff on our assets a real Living
Wage. In additicn the managemert team attend regular
ESG training events and seminars, continuing oLr .nternal
education around ESG a1d making sure that all avenues
are being exp.ored to ach'eve positive outcomes across
the portfolio.

Net Zero Carbon Pathway

This sigrificant progress over the iast twelve montns
demorstrates our firm commitment to bring forward cur
net zero carbor 2050 strategy Through our thorougn
carbon consumpticn data maragement, GRESE
submission ard MEES improvements we will be able

to clearly set oul our key objectives for the forthcomirg
year

We will continue to expand cur AMR programme to
maximise our compreiersive dataset on Siena+. This
weil provide further insight into now we can identify and
IMp ement energy saving measures, targeting Scope 1
ard 2 emissions.

tn Dctober 2023 we will have the Caompany's inaugural
CRESB rat'ng Fromth's we wilbe able arawyse the
res.Its to formulate a robust strategy to strengthen this
raling and target an nciease of at least one star for the
ext s.bmission

[elalals]

ANnJE  Repart & Accounts 205232

In order to further futuseproof the portfolio agairst MEFS
we w 'l continue to track our exposJre to nefficient
assets through regular FPC analysis By reducing the
portfolia’s reliance on fossn fuels and imp'ementing
fuarther renewable energy sources through solar PV we
will conitinue to drive down the n.gher ERC rated assets

Cwver the next twelve months we wi | strengthen our
management of Scope 3erissions We w.ll contnue to
co laborate with oLr suppers and gocupiers tn adopt
more sustamable practices, reduce their reliance or
foss: fuels and delver best nclass asset managemert
to improve our pathway to net zero carbon througn
carefuly planned and de'ivered mterventiors

By successfully achieving these objectives over tne
forthcoming year we expect to be able to deciare
an ambitious mrprovemert on our net zero carbon
commitment, br rging it forward from 2050,
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Portfolio

as at 31 March

2022 2022
£'000 %
UK Secunties’
- quoted 385,876 40.5 518417 33.2
UK Investment Properties ) 73957 77 96,255 6.7
UK Total 459,833 48.2 614672 393
Continental Europe Securities
-quoted ) 488,83 513 940,744 60.2
investments held at fair value 948,672 g9.5 1555416 995
-CFD (creditery/dedtors 4662 G5 _ 7657 0%
Total Investment Pasitians 953,334 100.0 1,563,073 100.0 ® _ UK Secunties
UK Property
| | Continental Eurépe
as at 31 March Securities
3 ! 2022 2022 — CFD Debtors/Creditors
£000 %
UK Securities
- guoted 385,876 357 518417 25.6
- CFD exposure? 75,963 7.0 57324 29
UK Investment Properties 73,957 7.0 96,255 5.5
UK Total 535,796 49.7 671,996 34.0
Continental Europe Securities
- gquoted 488,839 45.2 940,744 59.5
- CFDexpesure® 54943 51 _ E7318 _  _ 65
Total investment exposure* 1,079,578 100.0 1,700,058 100.0
a1 Moarch % Secuntes
ae at 3 Mare % 2022 2021 2020 2019 VK Prooerty
Total investrments £949m £1.555m £1.40Tm  £1,755m  £717291m
Net assets £968m £1563m £1326m  £1.136m  £1328m
UK quoted property shares 41% 33% 28% 3% 33%
Qverseas quoted property shares 51% 60% 66% 61% 59%
Direct property (externaily valued) . 8% 6% 8% k3
as at 31 March —
R . - P 2023 2022 2022
g8 Benchmark Company Benchmark
C T g % 5 %
GBP 33.6 357 339 3236
EUR 42.3 413 4,9 423
CHF 9.9 95 74 71
SEK 13.8 138 163 63
NOK G.4 0.3 C5 C.4
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Investment portfolio by country

Market
value
%
Belgium
Xior Student Housing 15,267 1.6
Aedifica 8,959 0.9
Care Property Invest 7,191 0.7
lcade 5,457 0.6
intervest Offices & Warehouses 3,476 04
Montea 1,732 0.2
Warehouses De Pau 1,429 0.1
Shugaid Sell Storage . 6eM 0.1
S 44,112 46
France
Gecina 34,321 3.6
Klepierre 29,084 31
Argan 22,445 2.4
Covivio 16,785 1.8
Carmila 5,741 0.6
Altarea o 1370 01
L . 110,446 116
Germany
Vonovia 72,456 76
LEG Immaobilien 14,868 1.6
TAG Immocbilien 13,014 1.3
Aroundtown 4310 0.5
104,648 11.0
Netheriands
Eurocommercial Properties 24,767 26
NSi 2,902 0.3
Unibail Rodamco Westfield 2,110 0.2
S T Ta29779 s
Norway
Entr S 3509 0.4
3,509 0.4
Spain
Mertin Properties 26,908 28
Arirma Real Estate 10,531 1.1
Inmobiharia Colonial 4,161 0.4
' 41,600 43
Notes

- Corrparnes shown by counttv of hsting

> 1he above pos tons are the phivs ca- 1o dngs neiuded in the nvest~ents neid At fa » value p the Ba'unce Giget The TFD pos lons £ the net o te proft o loss on the

Sweden
Wihlborgs 21,999
Fastighets Balder B 19,804
Catena 11,166
Sagax 10,677
Samhallsbyggnadsbolaget 8,410
Fabege 6,382
Pandox 3,93%
Platzer Fastigheter 2,706
Atrium Ljungberg 1,493
Cibus Nordic Real Estate 1,274
Fastighets Neobo o LY
S 88,592
Switzerland
Psp Swiss Property 40,606
Swiss Prime Site ) 25,547
66,153
United Kingdom
Segro 79,223
Safestore Heldings 42,509
Picton Property Income 32,628
industrials REIT 28,318
LandSec 28,199
Sirius Real Estate 23,664
Phoenix Spree Deutschland 23,137
Great Portland 22,973
Ediston Property 19,440
Londonmetric Property 17,115
Unite Group 15,219
CT Property 14,262
Workspace 13,390
Tritax Big Box REIT 7,033
Supermarket Income REIT 2,909
Hammerson 2,827
Warehouse REIT 2,700
Atrato Cap 2,573
Urban Logistics REIT 2,494
Shaftsbury 1,709
Helical 1,408
Cap & Regional 1,205
Newriver REIT L a1
' o 385,876
Direct Property 73,957
CFD Positions (included in
current assets and liabilities) 4,662
Total Investment Positions 953,324

CFD zontracts tie not the investrent expasuret ncluded n the Balance Sncet current assets and iab. ties

[sTalats]

Annual Renaort & Accourts 20232

Market
value

Q/D

23
21
1.2
11
09
a7
0.4
0.3
0.1
0.1
0.1
93

4.2
2.7
6.9

8.3
45
3.4
30
3.0
2.5
2.4
2.4
2.0
18
16
15
14
07
0.3
0.3
03
03
03
0z
01
0.1
01
405

78

05

100.0
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Twelve largest equity investments

SEGRO -

31 March 2022

Sha}eholding
value

% of investment

£79.2m  £77.3m

portfolio’ 7.3% 4 5%
% of equity

owned B _09% 0.5%
Share price 768p  1346.0p
Segro (UK)

Segrois the largest UK REIT by market cap
and is the largest operator of logistics and
industrial property listed in the UK, with a
total portfolio of ¢ £18bn (split c.62 0% 1n
the UK ¢.38.0% in Continental Europe, with
¢.56.0% urban warehouses, €.26.0% big
boxes and ¢.18 0% land and other uses).
inthe UK the group 1s mainly exposed to
Greater London industnial and fogistics.
Rental growth in these markets has been
extremely strong as thereremains an
acute supply-demand imbalance, fuelled
by tenants’ requirements to deal with the
growth in e-commerce,

InEurope, Germany and France are the
group's iargest markets with italy third;
these markets have a lower, but still
positive, rental growth outiook (and are
geographically less space-constrained), In
2H22 UK valuations saw a sharp correction,
while EU valuatons have Jagged the
agaressiverepricing of the UK Segro has
extensive development exposure that it
manages largely to pre-let and develop at
yields significantly ir excess of investment
values (c 6 7% vield oncost vs. an EPRA
net intial yield of 3.7% at FY221. This has
been a successiul formula to drive both
earmings and NAV growth, as well as high
shareholder returns

The five-year total shareholder return has
been +45 7%

T Notes:

= Tmepecentage ot nlestrent portiol o

iz Enoder returne

= oet ot 2k

ererehrns ntae ot

VONOVIA

31 March 2022
Shareho\dmgi

valye ) _£72.5m  £145.9m
% of investment

portfolic’ 6.7% 8.8%
% of equity

owned _ _06% _ 05%
Share price £€17.34 £42.31

Vonovia (Germany)

Vonowia is a German listed residential
company and the larges1 real estate
company in Continental Europe by market
capitalisation. Atthe end of 2022, the
company owned a portfolio of ¢.€95 8bn,
primarily split between Germany (¢.88 %
ofvalue), Sweden (c.7 4%) and Austria
(¢.3.7%). The portfolic has increased
dramatically and stands at 548,000 units,
following a string of acquisittons, mostly
of hsted peers, such as Deutsche Wohnen,
Hemp'a, Victoria Park, and BUWOG.

Vonovia is involved inthe whole value chain

of the residential sector, via its rental business
(c.80 1% of group EBITDA), third-party
developrment segment (¢.6.7%;), recurring
sales segment (c.4 9%, its value-add
segrment {energy, muitimedia, and other
services segrment, ¢ 4.6%) and its nursing
segment {c.3 0%). The Gerrnan residential
sector remams heavily regulated, yet Vonovia
has continually been able 10 generate solid
rent growth (+3.3% in 2022), whilst also
complying with regulations and assurming a
social role, which permits them to benefit from
crtical politicat goodwill and partnerships (as
observed by the 20,000-unit portfolio sale o
the State of Berlin in 2027}, Even though asset
values have come under oressure. 3s seen
with all reat estate asset classes, operationally
the business continues to perform strongly as
seen by FFO ) growth of 14.6% n/s, driven by
operationalimprovemenits and healthy rent
growh Moreover market evidence points

to further upward revisions to rent growth
estmates as the supply demand imBaisnce In
Germany peraists,

The five-year total shareholder returnhas
been-45.7%

&.n" ude expasure:

mrougn TFD forbotatie nd sduz poste
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31 March 2022
Shareholding
vajue £58.6m  £6175m
% of investrment
portfoho’ _55%_ 36%
% of equity
owned W% 10%
Share price £20.85 £24.18
Klepierre (France)

Klepierre is a French REIT, which owns,
cperates, and manages a portfolic of
European shopping centres, spanning tén
countries. At the end of 2022, the company
owned a portfolio of ¢ €19 8bn, with major
exposures in France {c 38 3% of value),
Italy (c.23 8%), Iberia (c.13.0%), Germany/
Netherlands {c 9.7%), and the Nordics
(c.8.7%). The comparny, like all shopping
centre Gwners, has reaped the benefits of
areturn to normality as social gatherings
are permitted and trave! restrictions have
been lifted demonstrated in s strong
rebound in footfall and tenant sales. While
the ongomng shift towards e-commerce
asgaretall channel has continued . it has
ata slower rate evenretreating in certain
markets, with digitally native retailers
nvoting to physical by opening stores. On
arelative basis. the company continues to
benefit from its 100% focus on Continental
Europe, without any exposure 1o weaker
UK and US markets. Lastly, the company
benefits from the experience of the
Chairman, David Simon, also Chairman
and CEO of Simon Property Group, which
owns a ¢ 22.3% stake in Kiépierre.

In 2022 EPS growth was +18 7% YoY,
benefiting from accelerating indexation
and occupancy improvements. with
EPRA NTA broadly flat Yov. Meanwhile

it's financial metrics remain conservative
with a net debtto EBITDA Of 7 9x and ar
EPRA LTV of £.43 7%, Its average cost of
debtislow atjust ¢1 2%, and is expected
toremain low. as evidenced by ts high
hedging ratio of ¢ 90 0%, ana weighten
average loan maturity of 6.5 years

The five-year 1otal shareholder returr has
Dear -4.5%

TR Prooerty InvestTert grost



. g L.
- LandSecurities
31 March 2022
Shareholding
value £59.3m  £452m
% of investment
portfolio” S 85% C27%
% of equity
owned o 13%  08%
Share price 621p 786p

Land Securities (UK)

Landsecis one of the UK's largest REITs,
with a portfolio valuedat ¢ £116bn. The
company's assets are a mix of offices
(£.51.0%), retail assets (¢.36 0% split
between shopping centres and cutlets)
and other uses (¢.713.0% such as leisure
assets retall parks and hotels) c 61 0%
of the assets are in central Longon.

Since Joining the business in 2020 new
CEQC Mark Allen has sought to alter the
compary's strategy, pledging to sell out
of its non-core assets (e.g. hotels, leisure
assets andretail parks), while increasing
the size of the deveiopment pipeline to
focus on large mixed-use schermes that
cthers do not have the capabilities to
deliver, In addition to the estahblished office
development pipeline the company now
plans to spend an additional £1 5bn over
five years on mixed use developments,
with a 20% profit on cost target Balance
sheet managerment has been relatively
conservative with a very long debt
maturity of 10.9 years as at September
2022, netdebtto EBITDA of 8. 7x and LTV
at Septernber 2022 of 31% {and lower
since that date following disposals of
large office assets including 1 New Street
Sguare). The company intends to recycle
capital to fund the development pipeling,
avoiding gearing up despite capex spend,
and nas a medium-term target of LTV
remaining in the mid-30s.

The five-year total shareholder return has
been-17.0%

T Notes:

gecina

31 March 2022
Shareholding

value £52.4m £44.0m
% of investment

portfolio 48% 2.6%
% of equity

owned ~ 08% 06%
Share price €05.55 €114 3

Gecina (France)

Gecina s the largest French REIT

and is one of the largest real estate
companies In Continental Europe by
market capitatisation. At the end of 2022,
its portfolio was valued at ¢ €20 1bn,
comprising of offices (0.80.0% of value),
residential (¢.18.0%), and student
accommodation {¢.2.0%),

Gecina develops, manages, and owns

a diversified portfolio, which is heawvily
skewed toward the Paris region (c.97.0%),
and has been selling non-core assets
outside of Paris inrecent years. In 2022,
Gecina was a primary beneficiary of the
much-debated return to the office trend,
helped by its centrally located and high-
quality portfolic. As aresult, Gecina saw
solid rent increases driven by index-linked
rents, positive reversion and a material
increase in occupancy levels YoY which
all helped to drive 7.4% EPS growth YoY.
Asgset values during FY22 were broadly
flat (-0.6% including value creation from
pipeline), as widening yields were offset
with improving rental markets and
stronger Indexation, and highlights the
high quality of the portfolio

The company is one of a handful of
Europeanreal estate companies with an
Arating from Moody’s and S&F givenits
conservative financial profile, operating
with an EPRA LTV of €. 36.8%. The average
costof debtislowatc. 2%, alongside 3
high hedging ratio of £.90.0%, and a long
weighted average loanmaturity at 7.5
years.

The five-year total shareholder return has
been-15.4%.

31 March 2022
Sharehofdr’ng '

value - E42.5m  £60.4m
% of investment

portfolin! 3.9% 36%
% of equity

owned 2% 2 1%
Shareprice 250p 13400
Safestore {UK)

Safestore 1s the UK's largest self-storage
operator, owning ¢. 160 stores, primarily
Inthe UK {and weighted towards London
and the South East with ¢.44% of total
group stores). In addition the company
has a large footprintin the Paris market
and has recently been expanding into
new European cities (through both Jv
structures and outright ownership) taking
footholds in Holland, Spain and Belgium,
Safestore has a best in class cperating
ptatform which, along with peer Big Yeliow,
allows it to dominate the UK storage
market, particularly in terms of online
search

The company has driven consistent
earnings growth both organically (through
like-for-like occupancy, rate growth and
opening new developments) and through
acquisitions. The self-storage market also
performed extremely strongly during the
COVID-19 pandemic and has repeatedly
shown itsresilient credentials during wider
economic turbulence.

The five-year total shareholder return has
been +119 6%

- The percentage of Investment portfo i positions set out above nelutde exposures trough CF B #or both the indwidual pos tons and 1@ poctiang

© The fiye-yee 1otz shareno der -eturns are te retuns in the -ocal cu~ency of the hold'ng

Arnugl Peport & Accounts 2023
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Twelve largest equity investments

continued

' R TCT

emr Pgacr,

31 March 2022
Sﬁéreholdrmg i B
value ) _ £406m  £44.6m
% of investment
portfolio 37% 2 0%
% of equity
owned 0% 1.0%

Share price CHF104 0 CHF121.5

PSP Swiss Property (Switzerland)
PSP Swiss Praperty is one of Switzerland's
leading real estate companies, owning

a diversified portfalio of high quality

real estate assgets in Switzerland. At the
end of 2022, its portfolio was valued at
CHF&.4bn, comprising of offices (c.64.0%),
retail (c.16.0%), food (c.6.0%), and
other{c.14.0%). The partfolio is skewed
towards Switzerland's key economic
centers, including Zurich {c.57.0%, Geneva
{©.14.0%, Basel (¢.8.0%), and other major
cities at ¢ 27.0%.

Underlying property markets in
Switzerland appear to be holding up well,
Transactional evidence s ight, but from
the few transactions taking place it seems
that property values for pnme assets are
broadly stable. Similarly, demand for office
space in econemic centers such as Zurich
and Geneva is expectedio remain strong
As aresult, PSP rmade further progress
during the vear on its vacancy reduction
lowering vacancy from 3.8% to 3.0% at
Dec 23, and saw like-for-like rents grow by
+2.2%, all this led o EPRA EPS growth of
+4 1% Moreover, EPRA NTA stll grew 3%
over the year on modestrevaluation gains
anareiamed earnings. LTV remained low
at 32 6%; amongst the lowest evels for
Europear property companies whiie its
current cost of debtis fixed for 4.7 years.

The five-year total shareholder return has
been+37 45

t Notes:
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31 March 2022
S};arehoJc_ﬁng )
value ~ £373m  £359m
% of investment

portfolio’ 3.4% 2.1%
% of equity

owned . 99% _ 6 7%
Share price 69p a8p

Picton (UK}

Pictonis a diversified UK REIT with a
weighting towards UK industrial. The
£850m portfolio, as at September 2022,
was .58 0% industrial, ¢.32 0% offices
(of which ¢.22 0% London and the South
East) and ¢ 10.0% retaii {of which ¢.7.0%
retail park). Along with a high quality asset
portfolio, where rental growth and capital
value performance have repeatedly beaten
relevant benchmarks, the company is

run conservatively, taking very imited
development nisk as well as maintaining
avery strong balance sheet. For example,
the company's LTV as at Decemnber

2022 was ¢ 26.0%, with long-dated debt
maturity (¢, 10 years; and very limited
near term refinancing requirements. In
addition, we believe the portfolio boasts

& number of valuabie asset management
opportunities, Including both vacancy
reduction in heavily under-rented space,
and the potental for residential conversion
In certain assets which could provide
Jucrative upside versus current valuations

The five-year total sharehoider return has
heen-0.4%.

Ao dng

L industrials

31 March 2022
Shareholding

value £34.5m  £533m
“ of investment

portfolio! - - 3.2% 31%
% of equity

owned o 98%  2.2%
Share price 118p 198p

Industrials REIT (UK}

industrials REIT 15 a UK focused

multi-let industrial business. The portfolo
has been transformed over a number of
vears to focus solely on the UK ML sector,
and the £660m portfolio s now ¢.895% MLI
{as at September 2022) Over a number
of years the UK MLI asset class has seen
strong capital value growth, driven by
both yield compression and ongoing ERV
growth (in the 12 months to December
2022 industnals REIT has seen LfL ERV
growth of +10.5%), with rents coming from
a low base {average passing rent inthe
portfolio was £5.94 at December 2022). In
addition 1o its strong underlying property
fundamentals the company's Hive
operating platform gives the company
access to aata on enguiry levels and
demand, as well as afiowing for innovative
operational approaches such as the

use of digial short-form smart leases,
speeding the letting process and reducing
any negative drag from portfalio vacancy.
Total shareholder return since IPCin June
20718 has been +29.0%, and the company
was recently bid for by Blackstong ata
preciurm of +42 0% to the closing price
before the offer was made

The total shareholder return since listing
{15/06/18) has been +26.0%
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ISR ARRS
31 March 2022
Shareholding
value _ £269m  £47.8m
% of investment
portfolio’ L 25% 2 8%
% of equity
owned __0.8% 1%
Share price £8.06 €10.59

Merlin Properties (Spain)

Merlin Properties is a Spanish diversified
REIT with a ¢ €11 3bn portfolio. The
rnajority of the company’s assets are
offices (€.56 4%}, where the company
focusses its exposure or major cities,
primarily Madrid and Barcelona.
Agditionally, the company owns shopping
centres (c.18.9%), data centres/logistics
(€12 4%) with the residual ¢.12.4% of
assetsinland and other uses.

As aresult of inflation and continued

tenant demand in the Spanish market, the
business continued to perform well, with
average like-for-like rent growth of 7. 3% and
year end occupancy of 95.1% (a 60bps YoY
improverment). Even though property values
are not Insulated from wider market trends
{asset values declined -1.5% Yo) yields
have already significantly widened by 44bps
and are therefore likely 10 provide more
protection going forward. During 2022,
Meriin completed the sale of its net lease
portfolio, comprised of 659 bank branches
ietto BBVYA forc £2.0bnat a 17% premium
toits book value {the BBVA portfolio
represented ¢.15% of the total portfolio).

As a result of this transaction, the company
rmanaged to significantly reduce its EPRA
LTV by 800bps to ¢.35.8% by financial year
end. This gives the company significant
flexibility going forward as it evaluates

its development pipeline in combination
autlook for property values, Moreover, its
cost of debt remains [ow, at an average of

¢ 2 0%, with @ hedge ratio of ¢ 99.6%, and

a weighted average loan maturity remains
long at 4.9 years.

The five-year total sharehoider return has
been-15 4%.

tNotes:

r PHOENIX
v £ SPREE

31 March 2022
Shareholding

value £268m  £51.9m
% of investment

portfolio’ o 25% 3.7%
% of equity

owned _157% 14.7%

Share price 186p 382p

Phoenix Spree (UK)

Phoenix Spree Deutschland s a UK listed
investrment company that cwns residential
units, exciusively in Bertin, Germany The
company is predominantiy invested in
so-called ‘althau’ properties (typically built
between 1900-1940) which offer features
that remain highly desired by prospective
tenants and buyers. At the end of 2022,
the company’s portfolio was valued at
c.£776m. The company aims tec maximize
shareholder returns by converting

rental units inrto condominiums and sell
these in the open market at sigrnificantly
higher values.

During 2023, the company continued

to benefit from a structural supply and
demand imbalance in Germany and Berlin
specifically, which led to healthy rent
growth of +3.9%, with new lettings signed
6.6% ahead of the prior year Furthermore,
increased mortgage costs will likely mean
that many prospective buyers will rent

for longer as mortgages have become
more expensive. This will likely lead to
further upward pressure to market rents.
Nonetheless, property values reduced by
-3.1% over the year as a result of increased
interest rates, which led to a decling in the
EPRANTA of -9 7%, even as average sales
prices were still materially (+22.4%) ahead
of trailing book values Whilst transaction
volumes have significantly declined as
aresult of interest rate increases, it 1s
expected that investrment volumes should
pick Up again once interest rates have
stabilized

The five-year total shareholder return has
been -40.5%.

oy -

v SWISS PRIME SITE
371 March 2022
Shareholding
value _ £25.6m £27 4m
% of Investment
portfolic! 24% 1.6%
% of equity
owned ~05% 0.5%
Share price CHF76.05 CHFS1.25

Swiss Prime Site (Switzerland)
Swiss Prime Site is one of the largest
real estate companies In Switzerland,
with a diversified portfolio of real estate
assets, coupled with a leading real estate
investment (indirect) business. It owns

a diversified real estate portfolio, which
was valued at CHF 13 1bn, comprising of
offices (c.44 0% of value), retail {c.26.0%),
logistics (9.0%), hotels (¢.7.0%), with the
residual ¢.14.0% of assetsinland and
other uses.

Despite a slowdown intransactions,
underlying property markets in
Switzerland appear to be holding up well,
asthe few transactions that did take
place appeared broadly supportive of
existing asset values. Moreover, tenant
demand remains healthy. During 2022
and the early start of 2023 SPS has made
significant efforts to simplify 1ts corporate
structure (the sale of Wincasa, areal
estate services company) and exit the
retail business (Jelmoli). Meanwhile, the
underlying business continues to perform
well, with bke-for-like rent growth of +1 8%
and further vacancy reduction {-30bps

10 4.3%) whilst EPRA NTA Increased
modestly with +1.7% on the back of stable
property values. The reported LTV reduced
by 130bps over the year to 38 3% and cost
of debt was keptlow at 0.9%.

The five-year total shareholder retum has
been +5.9%

- Theperaentzge of nvestment portiol.o posit ong set out above INcude exposures 1raugh CFD “orboth the nd vidua” posmions andihe portfole
+ The five-year tota shareho der returns ave the -eturns ntne local curtenay of the ho ding

ko]

Annual Report & Accourts 2022

(98]
j—

MIIARAN

G
<
=
o
T
3
o
=1
o
-]

SlUDITIRLS [EIJUEUI4

2JNS0I5ID AW 41y Due Alessoln

WEY 10 351NON

uoneulolul 1apioUdleus



Investment properties

Spread of direct portfolio by capital value (%)

Retail
wWest End of Londen 500 - 50.0
inner London* 17 376 ' ) - ) 7 393
South West - 107 0.7
Tota! 517 483 1000

*inne” Londan defined as inside 1e North and South Crcula

Lease lengths within the direct property portfolio

L 0 to Syears
' 510 10 vears
| 1010 15 years

15 to 20 years
| 20+ years

The Colonnades, Bishops Bridge Road,
London, W2

Sector: Mixed use

Tenure: Freehold

Size (sq ft): 64,000

Principal tenants: Waitrose Lid,
Graham & Green, Happy Larmb Hot Pot,
TRebel, Specsavers

The praperty compnses alarge
mixed-use block in Bayswater constructad
inthe mid-1870s. The site extends to
approximately 2 acres on the north east
cormer of the luncticn of Bishops Bridge
Road and Porchester Roaa, closeto
Bayswater tube station and ongowrg
development of The Whiteley The
commercial element was extended and
refurbished in 2075 with a new 20 year
lease being agreed with Waitrose

3z

Gross rental
income

Ferrier Street industrial Estate,
Wandsworth, London, SW18

Sector. Industrial

Tenure: Freehold

Size [sq ft): 36,000

Principal tenants: Sweaty Betty, Richard
Dawes Fine Wines, Lockdown Bakers

Site of just aver an acre, 50 rmetres rom
Wangswaorth Town railway statonman
area that 1s pregom.nantly residental.
Theestate compnises | 6 small indystriar
urits generally ettoamxof smat. o
medium-gized privale companies.
Pianning permission granted in
Decemper 2019 for @ mixed-use
employment led redevelopment

Contracted rent

£29m
£f99m
£1415m

10 Centre, Gloucester Business Park,
Gloucester, GL3

Sector: Industrial

Tenure: Freehold

Size (sq ft): 63,000

Principal tenants: Infusion GB, Pulsin Ltd

The 10 Centre comprises six mdustrial
units cccup-ed by three tenants arg
sitson a4.5-acre site, Gloucester
Business Fark 1s located to the east of
sancton 114 of the MS and ore mile to
the east of Gloucester City Centre The
property alsc has easy access to the
A477 providing good finks to the M4 via
junctior 18

TR Sroperty incestmert Trast
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1The Company’'s investment ghjective is to maxim.se
shareholders’ total returns by investing in the shares
and secunties of property companies and property
retated businesses internationally and also in
investment property located in the UK.

The benchmark 1s the FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed
Europe Capped Net Tetal Return Index in sterling. The
index, calculated by FTSE, is free-float based and as
at 31 March 2023 had 109 constituent cormpanies.
The index limits exposure 1o any one company to 10%
and reweights the other constituents pro-rata The
benchmark website www.epra.com contains further
details gbout the index and performance

Gusiness Made,

The Company's business model follows that of an
externally managed investrment trust company
The Company has nc employees. 1ts wholly non-
executive Board of Directors retains responsibility
for corporate strategy; corporate governance;

risk management and internal control; the overall
investment and dividend policies; setting limits

on gearing and &sset allocation and monitoring
investment performance.

The Board has appointed Columbia Threadneedie
Investment Business Limited as the Company’'s
Alternative Investment Fund Manager (AIFM") with
nortfolio management delegated to Thames River
Capital LLP. Marcus Phayre-Mudge acts as Fund
Nianager to the Company on behalf of Thames River
Capital LLP and Alban Lhonneur is Deputy Fund
Manager George Gay is the Direct Property Manager
and Joanne Elliott the Finance Manager They are
supported by a tearm of equity and portfolic analysts.

Further information in relation to the Board and the
arrangements under the Investment Management
Agreement can be found in the Report of the Directors
on pages 4910 51

In accordance with the Alternative Investment
Fund Managers Directive (AIFMD’), BNP Paribas
has been appointed as Depositary to the Company.
BNP Paribas also provides custodial and
administrative services to the Company.

Company Secretarial services are provided

by Columbia Threadneedle Investment Business
Limited.

A summary of the terms of the Investment
Management Agreement are set out on
pages 58 and 59.
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Strategy and investment policies

Tre nvestment selection process seeks (¢ ident fy
weil managed companies of ail s'zes Tre Manager
gereral'y regards future growtr ard capital
apprec.ation potertia, more h gnly trar immediate
yield or discount to asset vaice

Altrougr trneinvestment ciyjective al'ows for
mvestrent on an nternagtiona basis, the Comrpany's
benchmark is a pan-Edrapean Index and the
majorty of the investments wi be ocated in trat
geogiapiicar area. Direct property investments are
located imtne UK or'y

As a dedicated investor in tre property sector

the Company cannot offer divers ficatior outside
tnat sector, however with™ tre portfolio trere
are'imitations, as set oLt below onthe size of
ndwvidaai investrrents neid to ensure trat trere s
diversification w thin the porifo'io.

Tre max.mum ho'ding intre stcek of any ore rssuel
arof asingie asset s L.mited to 15% of tre pertfclio
at the point of acqusition. Ir additior, ary nodings 0
excess Of 5% of the portfolio must not in aggregate
exceed 40% of tre partfolo

Trne Manager cuirertly applies tre fo'lowirg
guideres for asset a locatior

The Comrpary ray employ ieve.s of gear.ng from
time to time witn the 2 of erhancirg returns,
subject to ar overall maximum of 25% of the portfolo
value

I certain market condit.ons the Marager may
cons der it prudent not to emp.oy gearirg at all, and
ta no'd part of tne poitfohc in casn

The current asset allocat.on guidenne s 10% ret
cash 10 25% net gearing (as a perceriage of portfoio
vaive)

Investment propert es are va.ued every six montns by
an externar rdeperdent vaiuer Valuat,ors of a'; the
Srodp s propertes as at 31 March 2023 have bheen
carred out or a RICS Red Book' basis ard these
valdatorg have heer adopted in tne accounts

The Group charges 75% of anncal base manageent
fees and finance costs to capital N ! ne witn the
Board's expected .ang-terrm sprt of returis ir the
form of captargans and ircorme Al performanc
fees are crarged to capita

It 1s1re Board's current shtentior to o.d 1o more

UK listed _ed'urtie_s ) 25 - 60%
Contnenial European ’ ’ tha~ 15% of the portfong 1 -sted clesed-erded
listed equities ) 45-75% rvestmert companes
Direct Property — UK 0-20%
o » ’ S50™Me comparies nvest ng ' commerc.a or
Other listed equities 0-5% - ‘ - ‘ g o ¢ o
: : : resdent a property are strectured as sted externa vy
_ g ]
Listed bonds , . : : C-5%  managed c.osed-ended irvestrent corpanies
Unguoted investments ) ) 0 - 5% and trerefore for part of ourirvestment uriverse

Altmcaghth s s nota medel usuaily faveoured by our
Fund Manager, scrre nvestiments are rmade ~ {rese
stroctures ~order{c access a part oo ar sector of te
mMarket or wrefe tre managerert tear s regarded
asespec a ystrong iftrogse compan es grow and
beco™ea arger partof our ~vest~ient ur versea~d:

Treasset a-ocat o go de. ~eupper ™71 for UK
sted equtes ~as roreased from 505 to 0% Te
reg. rementforire we'g-t g o UK comrrercia
property has ~ct crarged however the nurber of
corpan eg na ding reat estate ocated i Curope

botw t~a UK, sterg ras moreased theefors toe Ct “ew CcomIpar es come to the market ot s farrat
&sset & 'ocator go dei ne ras beer cratged (o tre Fund Manager Tay w'sm to "Orease expos.aTre
accormodate 0 g 1o tnase veh ces If the Marager w shes tc norease

vestrment o gyer 15% e Copary e, makear

annowrceent accord ngy
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Key Performance Indicators

The Board assesses the performance of the Manager in meeting the Company's
objective against the following Key Performance Indicators (KPis'):

KPI

Tre Directorg regard the out-performance of the
Caompany’s net asset value tota! return re ative to
tre benchrark as beirg an overall measuie of varue
denvered to the snareholders’ over the .onger term

Board monitoring
The Board reviews tne performance i detz | at each meeting
and discusses the resuits and out.ook with the Marager

KPI

The principa: objective of the Company 1s a total
return cbjective, nowever, the Fund Marager also
arms Lo deliver a reliab-e d viderd with growth over
the enger term.

Board monitoring
The Board reviews statements on ircome receved to
date ard income forecasts at each meetng

KPI

Wh'lst expectation of irvestment performarce 's a key
driver of the share price discount or premiun to the Net
Asset Value of an investmenrt trust company over the
lorger term, there are periods wher the discount can
wden. The Board is aware of the vu nerabnity of a sector-
specialist to a change ot irvester sentrert towards that
sectcr, of to perods of w:der market urcertainty and the
impact that can nave on the discount.

Board monitoring

The Board takes powers at eacn AGM to buy-back ard
1Issue shares, When considenng the merits of share

buy- back or 'ssuance the Board looks at a number of
factors, 11 addition to the short and icnger-term discount
or premyam 1o NAY to assess whether action wou d be
beneficiar to shareho'ders overalr Particular attention

is paid to the cutrent market sentiment, the potental
impact of any snare buy-back activity on tne hquidity of
tre shares and on Ongeing Charges over the langer term

Annual Renort & Accounts 20232

Qutcome
NAY Total Return™ {Annualised) _-355% -1.8%
Benchmark Total Retumr(Amnuaiised) -34.0%  -49%

- The NAY “ota Retun’s caculated by assuring dividends paid by tne
Surnpetiy 2re e nvested intie assets of the Company ontie reievant ex-
dvidend date Tre bencarrack toral eturn agsumes dhadends 3re re-invested
on e reevant ex-d vidend dates

Although this KPI has not been met in the current year, it

has over Syears The NAV Total Return has exceeded the

benchmark for the previous 12 years.

Qutcome
Compound Annuzl Dividend Growth* 6.9% 49%
Compound Annual RPI o 13.5% 5.7%

= Tre finia' dividend in the time senes divided by the initiai dividend n the period
raised 1@ te power of 1 divided by the number of years mihe senes

The exceptioral inflation figure for the year to 31 March

2023 means the Dividend Annual Growth Rate has fallen

hehind RP! on both a one and a five year basis. However

a growing dividend has been delivered in the current and

previous 12 years, despite a fall in earnings through the

COVID pandemic. Over the longer term, the dividend growth

rate has comfortably exceeded RPlon an annualised basis

(10 years: 8.3% vs 4 0% and 20 years: 10.6% vs 3 6%).

Outcome

-4.7%

Average discount” , L 58%
Total numper of shares repurchased - T

* Average daily discount targugiout the peniod of snare prce to NAY wit
nzame Source Bloo™mberg

The discount has seen wide fluctuations through the year

as market sentiment towards the sector has changed. The

average discount over 1 year 1s wider than we have seen for

a while however, over Syearsis at a similar level to the prior

year ievet of -4 6% and to the ten year average of -4.9%.
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Key Performance Indicators
continued

KPI
Tre Board 1s conscious of expenses ard a'ms to
delwver a ba'arce between excelle~t service and costs

Tre AIC defintion of Ongoing Charges reludes any
direct property costs in additicr to the marageent
fees and al other expenses incurved i running a

pub. cly listed company As no other rvestmert trust
companies Foud part of then portfo'ic in direct property
(they either hotd 100% of tneir portfol.o as property
secunities or as direct property),  addtonto Ogoimng
Charges as defined by tne AIC, t1is stat'stic 1s shown
without direct property costs norder 1o a'low a ciearer
comparison of overal! admim stration costs w tr those
of other funds irvesting .- securities

Board monitoring

Tre Board mionitors the Company's Orgoirg
Charges, in comparson 1o a rarge of otrer
investrentirust corpanes of sir 'ar s.ze bot-
property sector specialists and atrer sector
spec.alists The broker provides al st of companies
it helieves s a reasomabne compansor Notetnere s
o other investrrent Trust special.sing N property
rejated equities

Expenses are bodgeted for each financia vear and

tre Board rev ews reports or actual ard forecast
experses dur g the year

KPI
Tre Corparny must 2omt ~ueto reet e requ remients
of Secto~ 1158 of tne Corporat o~ Tax ACt 2010

Board monitoring

Secticn 1158

Trie K Pis are cors dered 1o ne A terrat v Ferfor—asce leasres a

)
fa3l

Outcome

Cngoing charges excluding

performance fees 073% 064%
Ongoing charges excluding

performance fees and direct

property costs 0.67% 0.62%

The Company's Orgoing Cnarges are competitive when
compared totne peer group

Costs over the year nave not increased gign hicantly the
‘nerease N the ongoing charges percentage 1s as a tesuit
of the fall in NAY aver the year

Outcome

T-e Directors beleve tat the condtiors 87d 00go "G

reg.reTents rave beet mel Crespect of tne year o
2023 contolets

31 Marcr 2023 andthatire Corpary w
~egttrereq. remients
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Principal and emerging risks

in delivering long-term returns to sharehclders, the Board must alsc identify and monitor the
risks that have been taken in order to achieve those returns. It has included below details of

the principal and emerging risks facing the Company and the appropriate measures taken in
order to mitigate those risks as far as practicable.

The ongoing conflict in Ukraine has impacted energy and commeodity supplies creating
inflationary pressures and prompting central banks tc raise interest rates in response.
Interest rates have risen more quickly and to higher levels than was initially anticipated. This
has brought challenges not seen for many yedrs and particularly impacted the property

sector.

The legacy of COVID-19 has seen ongoing changes and challenges in the workplace in terms
of rescurcing and changes in working practices.

Share price performs poorly in comparison
to the underlying NAY

Tne shares of the Company are 1sted on the London Stock
Exchange and the share price is determimed by supply and
cemand The shares may trade at a discount or premium
1o the Company's uncerlying NAY and this discount or
premium may fluctuate aver time

Poor investment performance of the portfolic

relative to the benchmark

The Company's portfolio s actvely managed «nacdii’on

to investment secunities, the Company also vesisin
commercia. property and accordingly, The portfolio mmay not
foliow or outperform the return of the henchmark

Annual Renort & Accourts 20232

The Boa-d monitors the level of discount or premium at
whi.ch the shares are trading over the short and¢ longer term.

"he Board encourages engagement with the shareholders.
“he Board receives reparts at each meeting on the activity
of the Company’s brokers. PR agent anc meetings and
events attended by the Fund Manager.

The Company's shares are availlable througn the Columbra
Threacneedle savings schemes and the Company
participates in the active markesing of those schemes

The shares are & so widely available on open architeciure
platforms and cen be neld directly througn the Company's
registrar

Thie Board takes the powers 1o 1ssue and to buy back
shares at each AGM

The Manzger's obective 1s to ouperform the benchmark
The Board regularly ~eviews the Company’s iong-term
strategy and nvestment gu:cel nes and the Manage s
relative positions aga nst those,

The Management Engagement Commitiee reviews the

Manager's performance annualiy The 3oard nas the
powers 1c cnange the Manzger if deemed appropriate
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Principal and emerging risks
continued

Market risk

Both share prices and exchange raies may imove rapioy and The Board receives anc congiders & reqular repart from the
can aaverse'y mpact the value of the Company's poi‘ola KManager detall ng asset at'ocation, mvestment Sec sions,
Altnough the porfoliois d versfed across a number of CUrTency exposures, gearing evels ang rat'onalé n re'alon
geographical reqions, the mvestment manaate s focusen io the prevaing market conditions

an g s'ngle sectar and therefore the portfo'ic wil be sensitive
toveards the property sector, as wel as global equity marke's
migre generally

Trie report cons ders the impact of & a7ge of current
13sUes 210 seis oul thée Manager's "espense In pesinion g
ne portfoho anc the ongong .mphzatians for the property
Property companes are subect 10 many ‘actors wheh can mareet, va'uatons overall anc by ezch sector

aaversey affect the 1 Investment performance. ~ney ncluae

the genera, economis 21¢ firancal enviroment nvicn tner

tenanis operate, mterest -ates, availebity of mvestment anc

development finance and regulations .ssuéd by goveniments

znd autnont.es

Rising merest rates have a7 mpact on botn captal vaiues
and aistributions of prope-ty companies H gner .nterest rates
depress capital values as invesiors aemand & margn over a0
ncreaseq nisk-iree -ate of retum

Although the UK has now ex tec tne European nion the
structure of its reiztonsnp with Contimentat Europe continues
10 evo've and tnere could Be an impact on GCCupaton across
each sector

The COVID-19 ¢ cha pandenic 1as changed the way we ave
anc Wwork and unceriamty remains regard ng She impacs on
economies and property markets around e worrboth m ine
shor anc longe” e

Tne mvasion of Ukrane by Russia in Februaty 2022 created
furtner market volau'ity and uncerta nty which rema s
mflation and nterest rates are at e'evaled 'evers Not seen in
cver10vears

Any strengthening o7 wea<enng of siening « ' have a airect
'mpact as a propo-t-on of cur balance sheet 1z nei0 M nen-GBR
denom naied curencies The currency exposure -8 maintaines
e vetn The benchimank a71d vl change over time As at

21 March 2023 86 4 X POSUTe Vv 8S 10
currencies gIine”

B TF rovert; In . estmars Trose



The Company is unable to maintain dividend growth

Lower earnings nthe underlying port'cie putting pressu:e
onthe Company's ab ity to grow the dividend couid resul:
‘roma number of facta's

- Although most compan es negat.velv impacted by
COVID-12 returned to paymg d videnas duning the year,
wIth many at pre-covia levels, nsing interest -ates have
posed a new threat The effect on cividencs has (in
gene-alj not been feit tnrougn the financial year that we
are reporting an but the increased dett cosls wll have an
mpact on earnings and Nence d stributions in future,

prolonged vacancies in the direct prope-ty portfoi o ana
:egse or rental renegotiations as a resuit of onger-term
changes foliowing COVID-19;

strengthening of sterling reducing the value of overseas
dividend receipis nstering terms The Company saw

a mater:al increase 'n the level of earnings in the years
eading up to the COVID-19 pancemic A signfcant factor
'nthis was the weakening of steriing foilowing the UK's
decis on 1o leave the EL ¢ Brexit'). Although this nas now
passeq, the value of sterling may cont'nue to fluctuate In
the near ar mecium term as the longer-term . mplications
of Brex't and CQVID-19 and the impact an the UK and
European economies become clearer Tre nvasion of
Lkraine by Russia has also mcreased market uncertainty
The longer-term imphications will differ across the
European economies. This couid lead 1o currency volatihty
Strengthening of sterling would lead to a fall in earnings,

- adverse changes i1 the tax treatment of dividends cr other
mneome recaived by the Company,

« changes in the uming of dvidend receipis from nvesiee
compan.es;

- legacy impact of COVID-19 on working practices and
resulling changes in workspace demand, and

- negat ve outlook leading 1o a recuction in geaning evels 1
order 1o protect capital has an adverse effect on earnings

Accounting and operational risks

Disruption or fa'lure of systems anc processes
underpinning the services provided by third part.es anc tne
“ gk 1137 those suppilers provide & sub- standard service

al)

Arrda RPeport & Accounts 2022

The Board recewves and considers reqular ncome
forecasts,

Income ‘orecast sensit vity to changes in FX rates s also
monierea.

The Company has substant gl revenue reserves whe.ch are
drawn upon when “equired

Tne Board continues to monitar the 'mpacs of interest
rates, Brex't ana COVID-1G and the long-term mphcations
for income generaton

TAuro-party service proviCers proauce perodic repois
to the Boarc on therr control environments and business
continuat on provisions on a reguiar basis

Tre Management Engagement Commitiee considers the

performance of each of the service providers on a reguar
basis anc considers their ongomg appointment and terms
and condit.ons.

Trne Custocian and Depositary are -esponsible for the
safteguarcing of assets Inthe event of a loss of assets
tne Depositary must retu n assets of &1 1dentical type or
sorrespond ng value unless tis able to cemonstrate that
the 10ss was the resut of an event beyond 118 regsonsahle

oMo
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Principal and emerging risks
continued

Loss of investment Trust Status

The Company has been accepleo by nh Revenue &
Customs as an investment trust company, sub,ect 10
contnuing to meet the relevant eigibiity conditions

As sucn the Company s exempt from capital ga.as tax o1
the profits real’'seo from tne sale of ‘nvestments

Any breach of rhe relevant e'igrb ity concditions coula leaq
to the Company 10sing investment rust status ano heng
subject to corporation tax on cap!tal gamns realsed within
e Company’'s portfono

Legal, regulatory and reporting risks

Fallure 1o comp'y with the L ondon Stock Exchange
Lsting Rules and D'sclosure Gu.aance ang Transparency
Rules; falure to meet tne regurremernis of the Alternative
Invesiment Func Managers Reguial.ons, 1né prov'sions
of tne Companes Act 2006 and other UK, Suropean and
overseas legsiation effectuing JX companes

ra.ure 1o rmeet the reguired accounting sianaards of
make appropr ate distiosures inthe =alf Year anc Annual
Repo-is

Inappropriate use of gearing

Geanng, e.ther througn the use of hank debi or de~vat ves,
may be utihisea from time 1ot me Whist ine use of
gearng s mtenaed to enhance the NAV total retur, £l
have the opposite effect when the return of ine Company's
avestment porifol'o s negative or where the cost of debt
15 higher than the return from tne portiolio

Other Financial risks

Tne Company's nvestment act v ties expose 1 o g vanety
of financ.al risks wheh nclude counterpary crecit sk
guidity ~sk ang tne vainauon of fingnc.a! Asiruments

Personnel changes at Investment Manager

coss of poriie’ o manegger o othe ey 51571

The Investment Manager manitors the imvestment portfolig,
‘neome and propoesed aividend leve's to ensure that the
provistons of CT4 2010 are not breached The resuils are
reportea to the Board at each meeting

‘ncome forecasts are rev.ewea by the Company's tax
aCvisor th-ougn ihe year whic .50 ~eports 10 the Board on
the vear end tax position ana on CTA 2010 compr ance.

The Board receives regular reguiatory upgates from
the Manager, Company Secretary, leqgal advisers and
the Audinor. The Board considers tnase reports ana

recoOmmMEencanans 00 takes aclion aCcoraingly

The Board recenves a:
Depasiary.

annual report and upcate from the

nternal checklists and revew procedures are ' piace at
serv.ce oroviders

Tne Board recelves reguiar "epo~s “rom the “anager on
e ievels of geanng in the portfo o Thnese are conaidered
against the geanng imvis set out 11 the Boau's ‘nvestment
Gudeines and 2'so it the context of current mar-«et
conditions and sentiment The cost of dekt 's monto-ed
ano a baance scught between term, cost and fex Doty

Cetaus of these r sxs together with the po'.cies “or
manag.ng themare found nthe Notes totne Fmancia
Statemeants

Tne Charmen conGuTts regurar meel gs it e Funa
NManagement team

The fee basis protects the core .afrastruciute and deptn
and cus. ty of -esgurces Tne fee srultue inTET v Se5
ourperformance eng ¢ fundamente M TIe bty ic elein
key grati

TR Froperty i sestrert Trust



Long-term viability

Ir accordance with prov sion 31 of the UK Cerporate
Governance Code, wheh requires e Company

to asgess the prospects of the Company over

the longer termr, tne Directors have assessed the
prospects of the Compary over the comirg three
years. This penod is used by the Board durrgthe
strategic p ann'ng process as 't considers this
perod of t'me to be appropriate for a business of tne
Caompany's nature ard size

Tris agsessment fakes accourt of the Compary's
Cufrert position and the ponc es and processes for

™anaging tne principa ard emerging rsks set gut or

pages 37 10 40 and the Company's ability to continue
N operatior and to meet its liabilities as they fa | due
over the perod of assessment.

In mak ng tris statemert the Board carred out a
robust assessmient of the principal and emerging
rsks fac’ng tne Company. including those that might
threaten its business mode!, future performance,
solvency and liguidity.

In reaching their conciusions the Drectors have
reviewed three year forecasts for tne Company with
sensitivity analysis to a rumber of assumptions
Investee company dividend growth, nterest rates,
foreign exchange rates, tax rates and asset value
growth

In assessing of the viability of the Company the
Directors have noted that:

+ The Company nas a long-term investment
strategy Jnder which itinvests mainly :nreadiy
realisable, publicly tisted securties and which
restricts tne level of borrowings

- Ofthe current equity portfolio, 50% coud be
iqudated within five trading days and 71% withir
10 trad’ ng days

O a Group basis, current assets exceed current
labilties at the Balance Sheet Date

The Company vests nreai estate reiated
companies which ho d real estate assets and
Invests in commercial rea estate drectly These
investments provde case tecepts intre form of
diiderds property incorre distribut ons and renta
mCome

s

Arrdai Report & Accounts 2023

« Tne Company s able totake advantaye of ts
closed-end investimert trust compary structure
to hold a proportion of ts portfolioin less ugquid,
direct pioperty and the ess iquid secuntes of
smalier compan’'es with a view to long-term
outperformance.

+ Al the Balance Sheet date the Company had
£120 mulior undrawn on its 1evolving ioan
facilties

+ The structure has also enabled the Company to
secure .org-term firancing EUR 50 milon loan
notes 1ssted in 2016 are due to mature at par in
2026 and GBP 15 miilion -0an notes issued o1 tne
same date are dLe to matJdre at par in 2G31

« Theresult of tris is that of our own debt, 32% nas
fixed irterest rates (assuming all loans are fuily
cdhawn) The flexibie strecture allows debtleve s to
be rapidly increased and reduced as needed.

- Theimpact of COVID-19 on the UK and European
commerc.al property markets continued to
dimirsh througn the vear This resuted in div dend
receipts from investee companies in tne currert
year significanty stronger than the pricr year as
the majonity of companies have now returred to
paying div dends, although some at lower levels
tnan before the pandem ¢

+ Trervasion of Ukraine in February 2022 has
created further market voiatinty and uncertanty.
However the portfolio remaing highly liquid

- Trecore part of the direct property portfolic 1s
defensvely positiored, with 40% of the 'ncome
secured to @ major supermarket for aver 10 years
and berefits from fixed up 'fts. The balance of the
portfolic1s focused on the industrial sector wnere
the supply and demand dynamics remain positive
from an occupat.onal standpoint,

- Trheexpenses of the Corpany are largely
prediclable and modest in comparison win
the assets. Reguar and robust monitening of
revenue and expenditure forecasts are undertaker
throughout the year. Analysis has shown that the
Company colLid suifer a reductior .1 earrings of
86% and st Il be able to meet its fiabiities from
revenue cashflow as they fe' due Expenses could
be met entnely from cap talif required due to the
hguid rature of the portfeho
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Long-term viability
continUed

+ rndex rrked ncone wil' henefit from the increase
N nterest rates

- Giobal mierest rate rcreases rave adversely
affected the property sector and the resalting
ncrease nthe cost of debt wil Litinrately have an
mpact on earn ngs

- Some companies fixed debt for the med ™ term
s, for these compan.es, the rmpact of current
rates wii not be feit for a whie

The Compary has no emnpioyees and
consequently does not have redurdancy or otrer
emipoyent reiated cabilites or resporsibiinies

« The Company retains titie (o 11s assets bed by the
Custodiar wher are subject to further safeguards
mposed o tne Depasitary

« The nmpact of 2 tange of factors have been
considersd i terms of the potenta effect o
sterhng 66°% of the portfolio s exposed 1o
correncies other than ster ng

The following assumptions have been made in
assessing the longer-term viability:

+ Reai Estate will cortirue to be an investiiz.e sector
of nternatiora stiock Markets ard investors wi
cortnue to wsr 1o rave exposure 1o that sector

- Ciosed-end investment trust compan es wi.
cortinue to be = derard by mvestors and
regulator ortax egis.ation wi' rot charge to
an extertto wake the struciore unattract ve
COMPAnson to otrer investmenrt products

+ Treperfor—anceof tre Comrpany w cont e
1o be sat sfactory Snouid tre Beard deemr trat
performance s esgina~ saf sfactary, it hastre
appropr ate powers 1o rep ace tre frvestment
fMarager

The Company's business model, capital structure
and strategy have enabled it to operate over many
decades and the Board expects this to contihue into
the future. The Directors confirm therefore that they
have a reascnable expectation that the Company
will continue in operation and meet its liabilities in
full over the coming three years to 31 March 2026

By order of the Board
David Watson

I
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Directors

David Watson

Appointed.
apnil 2012

Experience:

David became Chairmar in Juy 2020,
prion 1o which he served as the Boara's
Seror Inaependert Director { S127

zrc Cha rman of the Auat Comminzee.
David spent G years as Finance Direcion
of M&C Croup pic. wherehewasa
director of foar eguity nvestment
trusts. anc more recently at Avva

ol as Chief Finance O”.cerof Avlva
Genera Insurance He was Chairmar. of
Aegon Asset I/anagement JK ple artl
Sertevber 2022 Davidis a Chartered
Accouniart anc has had z distingu sheg
career rrhefnarca servces ndustry

Skills and contribution to the Board:
Throashout b s execat ve career Do
basaccumulated reie. art ski's
france aus
pererce nthe reegtmertirdastey

tardrsk maracement anc

Other appointments:
Ze.dsodrreruyaiiresorot e

Sracent gl Leeuraras

teharsthe 20t Cor T ties

1l

Kate Bolsover

Appointed:
Octoner 2018

Experience:

Kate nrevigusly workea for Cazenove
Group and J P Morgan Cazerove
betweer 1995 and 2005 where she wss
tanaging Jirector of the mutual fund
nJsiness ardlatierly director of Corporare
Communicatons Proriothal zhe warked
extengively In the ;rwestment ‘urd ndustry
ancwas Maraging Drector of Barin g
nutua funcs group Kate was previoy
a nen-execdtve director of JPRorgar
Amencezr investment Trast e Semer
Independen: 3 rector of Monianars LK
Smral'er Comrpanies Trust ara Charmar
anc Trastes of Tomorrow's Pecple

'3

Skills and contribution to the Board:
From ter exec i expererce Kale

~nodtes sigrificent ardre e.art skl s
o‘tl-e reesTTert noustiy Herroeor
VEnous boeras a 3o 7 vesrerthere evar:
Q,K;IDI’P—FC@JT‘J shareho aro ryestor
ngegemert

Other appointments:
kKete scurrerty Cha rrar o'k ag 7,
Sgar valaes OLL & o rds

Crettor of investo Bona Ircome =g

L e Shegmes g nor-e4ecdl e
ordb Dol
e, e H&a-thcare rast

Zrector f Bal e G

Tim Glllbanks

Appointed:
January 2078

Experience:

T s a Chartered Accour
30 years expenence i the “nand'a
serv ces and nvestment ncustry Nos?

recently e spert 13 years at Columb.a
Freadneeceinvestrents, mialy

as Chief Financal Officer ther Chie?

Cperatrg Of cer and Y'na‘ly as mierm

Cheef Executive Officer

Skills and contribution to the Board:
Tmhnrgs awite eXperierce oa
nfnaroa services and s estrignt
Tanagenrert His pre.:ods nant a
exzenerce adnrg his execut ve career

rhcaar,

rformrsh b sroeasibe Charny
tre fud i Sorm tes

Other appointments:

Tmesarrerty e Nor-Executiie Crestor
FEBronr Shise Lo Lemred Lards
Hercersor: LK. ir.estarsLriezara
Larug Herzersor Grodo Holo rgs L e
He sz 50 sellar o’ the Boarn oF

trgsiees o Rinon Carcer UK

TF Property e cestrert Trast



Sarah-Jane Curtis

Appointed:
January 2020

Experience:

Sarah-dane s a Memoer of the Royal
Irstitutior of Chartered Surveyors, She
was previodsly Business Director at
Biceslervillage for Vaiue Reta:l Prior
wthat Sarak Jane was a cirector of
Covent Garden for Capita' and Counties
PLC She has aiso worked for Grosvenor
for 24 years, includirg as Lordon Estate
Director retall/resigentialt and Fund
Manager for Liverpoc'ONE

Skills and contribution to the Board:
Sarah-dane has gained extensive
experierce auring her vaned

career particu.arly intheretar ars
experierce sectors and infund anc
nvestmert management act vities.

Other appointments:

Sarah-dane s carrently Property

U rector of Bicester Maton as wed as a
consultart 1o Va'ue Retai PLC

Annual Report & Accounts 2023

Andrew Vaughan

Lo T L

Appointed:
August 2027

Experience:

Andrev: joined Redeveo JK N 2000 as
Managing Director and was appointed CEC
in2017. He began his career a1 Friends
Provigent where he was a func manager.
Andrew spent three vears at Moorfield Group
as ar Investment Specialist before joiring
Redevco Hehas a BSocinJrban Estate
Surveyirg.

Skills and contribution to the Board:
Andrews brings deep excerience as & pan-
EJropean direct property mvestor.

Other appointments:
Andrewis Chef Execurve Office of
Redevee B Y

Buscla Sodeinde

1

Appointed:
January 2023

Experience:

Busolz s& Chartered Management
Accodrtant who has spent nost of her
exec. tive career in Finarcizl Services. Untn
2019 she was a Managing Cirector: Chief
Finanzizl Officer at State Street Giobai
Markets EMEA priorto which shewas
Finance Director tothe Corporate Finance
team of Deutsche Bank Capital Markets
Busoa s the founder of a digital publishing
firm focused on teracy and s alsca
supporter of women-led ventares.

Skills and contribution to the Board:
Busoa has corsigerable experience in
the finarc al services sector and from her
non-execdtive career has gainec expertise
inauditand risk She alsg has experience
I~ diga’ (sociah media and consumer
engagemen?

Other appointments:

Busola s anon-execJdtive director o
Hargreave Hale AR VCT PLE, The
Ombadsmanr Services, atrustee of the
Church Commissioners for England, where
she sitsonthe Audit & Risk Committeo anc
a "rustee of The Scouls Assooation
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Managers

Marcus Phayre-Mudge jo.ned tre managemert team

for the Compary at Herderson Global Investors ir
canuary 1997 nitaly managmmg tre Company's drect
property portfolio andatter'y focusing on real estate
equities, manag.ng a rnumber of UK and pan-Europear
rea. estate equity funds in addition to act v t'es n the
Trust Marcos rroved to Tnames River Capital + October
2004 where he s also fund manager of Thames Rver
Property Growtr & Incore Fund  mited Friorte joinirg
Henderson, MarcLs was an investment surveyaor at
Krnignt Frank (1920 and was made ar Associate Pariner
i the fund management d'vision (1995) He qual fied as
a Crartered Surveyor n 1992 and has a BSc (Hers) e
La~d Managemert from Read rg Unversity

George Gay

Marcus Phayre-Mudge

George Gay ras been tre Direct Property Furd Marager
srce 2008 He jored Tharres Ruwver Capta 1~ 2008 as
ass.start drect propeity marage! and quaified as a
Crartered Sorveycr - 2506 George was previo.s y al
mcre Clly vestrrent agent Morgar Pepper woere as
ar mvestrrent grad.ate ~¢ g3 med cons derabe ~gls
exper ence He as an 1AS -~ Property 73 Lat anand Law

from Lty U Lers ity

Jo Elliott

<0 Elaott has beer Firance Manager since 1985, first at
Hendersor Globa: Investors ther, since January 2005
at Thames R ver Capital, when sne joined as CFO for the
property tearm She joined Henderson Goba' hvestors
N 1895 where sne most recent'y "ed the position of
Duector of Property, Finance & Operations, Europe
Previousiy she was Corporate Finance Manager wth
Lordor ard Ed nburgr Trust ple a~d prior to tnat was
ar rvestment/treasury ana'yst w th Heron Corporatior
plc, Jo nas a BSc (Horel in Zoclogy from tne Univers.ty
of Nottirghar ard gaarfied as a Chartered Accouniant
with Erast & YoLng i 1988

Alban Lhonneur

A'bar Lronnear, Depoty Fund Marager joned Thares
RuverCapta ~ ALQLSt 20086 Hewas previousy at

Cit group Giobal Markets as ar Eguity Researcr aralyst
focosing o~ Contireta Europea” Rea Estate Proito
t-at rewasat Soc ete Gereraie Securties wherere
focused o travsport equ ty researcn He nas a B5c

= B.s mess and Marage—ent from e ESC Tol Guse
no Ldngorevear at Brure Ur wersty Loroon

He 2 50 atte~ded CERANI N-ce b g» Bus ess Scroc
2005 me onta ed a post-grad.ate Spec a sed Riaster
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Report of the Directors

Tre Directors present the audited financial staterents

of the Group and the Company and thenr Strategic Report
and Report of Directars for the vear ended 31 March
2023. The Group compnses TR Property Investment Trust
pcand its wholy owned subsidianes As permitied by
legisiation, seme matters normally inciuded 1n the Report
of the Directors have been mcluded in the Strategic Report
because the Board considers tnem 1o be of strateqic
impertance Therefore, the rev ew of the busiress of the
Company, recent events and outlook can be found on
pages 4 1o 42,

Status

The Company 1s an investment compary, as defined in
Sect:on 833 of the Companies Act 2006 and operates as
ar mvestiment trust naccordarce witn Section 1158 of
the Corporation Tax Act 2010

The Company nas a single share class, Crdinary shares,
with a nomiral value of 25p each which are premium
Jsted on the Londor Stock Excharge.

The Company has recewved confirmrat.on from HiV
Revenue & Customs that it has been accepted as an
approved investment trust for accourtng periods
commencirg cn or after 1 April 2012 subject to the
Company continuing to meet the eligibility conditions of
Section 1158 Corpeoration Tax Act 2010 and the ongoing
requirements for approved comparies in Chapter 3 of
Part 2 Investment Trust (Approved Company) (Tax)
Regulations 2011 (Statutory Instrament 2011/2999),

The Directors are of the opinian that the Company has
conducted and wi, cortinue to conduct i1s affairs so as
ta mairtain irvestment trust status. Thre Company as
a-so corducted its affairs, and wiil continue to conduct
its affairs, r such a way as to comply with the Individual
Savi~gs Accounts Regulations. The Grdinary shares can
be held in Indiv.dual Savirgs Accounts (1SAs'.

Resuits and dividends

At 21 Marcn 2023 tre net assets of tne Company
amounted to £968 mitlion {20227 £1,563 million), on a per
share basgis 305 13p (20272 492 .43p) per share

Revenue earnirgs per share fortne year amounted to

17 22p (2022 13 69p) and the Drectors recommend tne
payiert of a final d vidend of 9 85p (2022 9 20p) per
share brnging the totai dividerd for tne yearto 15 50p
(2022 14 50pY Inamving at thex dvidend proposal, the
Board also reviewed tte income forecast for the yvear to
Marcm 2024

Arnaal Report & Accaants 2023

Performance detalls @re set odt in the Financia! Highlights

on page 2 and the outcorre of wnat the Directors consider

to be the Key Performance Indicators on pages 35 ard 36
The Chairman's Statement and the Manager's Report give full
detars and gnalys s of the results for the year

Share capital and buy-back activity
At 37 Marcn 2023 the Compary had 317 350 980 (2022
317 350980) Ordinary shares nissue

At the AGM 2022 the Directors were given power to buy
back upto 47570911 Ordrary snares Since that AGM tne
Directors have not bought back any Crdinary shares Lnder
that avthority, whien will expire at the 2023 AGM. The Board
will seek 1o renew tne autronty to make market parchases
of the Company's Ordinary shares at tnis years AGM

Since 1 Aprit 2023 to the date of this report, the Campany
Fas made no market purchases for cancellation The
Board has not set a specific discount at which shares
will be repurcrased

Management arrangements and fees

Detalls of the managemert arrangements and fees are

set out In the Report of the Management Engagement
Committee begmning on page 58 Total fees paid to the
Manager im any one year (Maragerment and Perfcrmance
Fees) may not exceed 4.99% of Group Equity Shareholders’
Funds. Tota! fees payable for the year to 31 March 2023
amount to 0.6% (2022 2 0%) of Group Equity Shareholders’
Funds No performance fee was earmed in the year ended
31 March 2023 (2022: £24,489,000)

Basis of accounting and IFRS

The Group and Companry firancial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2023 have been prepared on a
going concerr: basis in accordance with UK-adopted
internaticnal accountng standards and in conformity with
the requirernent of the Companies Act 2006. Tne financia
statements Nave also been prepared 1IN accordance with
the Statement of Recormmended Practice Financial
Statemerts of Investment Trust Comparies and Ventare
Capita Trusts (SORP) to the extert that it is cons:stent
wth UK-adopted Internationa accourting standards

The accoLntirg polic’es are set out in note 1 to the
Firancia' Statements or pages 8010 83

MIAARAO
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Report of the Directors
continued

Financial instruments

The Corparys Firancia. Instrumrents compr.se s
nvestmenrt portfo'.o. cash balarces, borrowirgs

and debtors and creditors that anse directiy from s
operat'ors such as sales and purchases awatng
settlemnert, profit or 10ss baances on denvatve
imstrements ard acerued ircome ard experses The
firarcal rsk managerent abjectves and policies ansing
from its financia: mstruments and exposure of the
Comrpary torisk are disc'osed .1 note 11 ta the financial
staterments

Risk management and internal control

Tre Board has overall responstbility for the Group's
system of risk management and interna; contror and

for reviewing its effectveness The Portic'io Marager 1s
responsthe for the day 10 day mvestment managerrent
decisiors on benaf of tre Group Accountnig a~d
Company Secrelana, serv.ces have beth been ouisodrced

Tre syster of r sk maragement and interna: centrol aims
to ensure that tre assets of the Growp are safeguarded,
proper accounlirg recerds are maintamed, and the
financ al nformation wsed within the business and for
pubiicatior is re' able Contra' of the nsks ident fied
cavering financial, operational, comphance ard rsk
~anagement, .s embedded N the contrals of the Group
by a ser.es of regular irvestrent performarce ard

attr butor statererts, “mancia’ and nsk arayses, AIFN
and Portfollo Manager reports and quarterny cortro,
reports

Key risks nave beer dent fied and contre’s put

piace to mmigate trerr nc ud'ng those rot directiy the
respons'binty of fhe AIFM or Portfol ¢ Manager Tre key
r.sks are explared 1 more detal rtre Strategic Report
or pages 37 1c 40

Treeffect veress of each thrd-party prov.der's .rter-a
contros sas Sessed o~ ar orgoing bass by tre
Ccrpoance ard Risk 1epa(t"x~ ats of the AlFM ard
Partfoic Marager tre Ad~ o strator a~d tre Corpary
Secretary. Eacr 3 ~tars ts own syster of r sk
~aragevertard rterna contred and tre Board and
Aldit Corrmittee rece verege ar reports from tmem
Treysk mamage~ent and ~termai contic system

s desigred to prov de reasonabre bt ~ot absc .
gss_ratceaga st matera v osstatemert or oSs and i
~a~age ratrertrgm e mate rskoffaiureto aceve
chjett ves Asire Company, rasroepoyees amd 1s

operat Gra furctong are Lodertake byt rd part s

I
43

the Aud t Cormittee does rot corsider 't necessary for
the Corpany to estab’ sk ts ownr internal audit furct'or
instead, the Audit Committee relies or .nternal control
reports receved from its principa, service prov.ders to
satisfy itself ag to the controis ir place

Tre Board nas establ shed a process for dentifyirg.
evaluating a~d managi~g aty major rsks faced by the
Group ltundertakes an artua review of the Group's
system of nisk managemert and irternal cortrol in ne
w th relevant guidarce Busress rnisks have also been
aratysed by the Board and recorded i a risk map tnat
1s reviewed regularly Each guarter the Board receves a
formas report from each of the AIFM, Portfolo Manager,
tae Admiristrator and the Company Secretary detalirg
ary dertified nternal cortrol failures or errors.

The Beard alse considers the flow of informatior and
tne mteracticr between the third-party service providers
and the contro's Ir p'ace to ensure accdracy and
completeness of tre recording of assets and ncome
The Board receives arepott from the Portfono Marager
setirg out tre key controig i operation

Tre Board also has direct access to Company Secietana,
advi.ce and services provided by Columina Tnreadneed e
Irvestment Business Limited whien, through its
~orurated represertat ve isregponsib'efor enaunrg
thiat the Board a~d Comir ttee procedures are fo .owed
and tnat applicabie reguat ons are compl ed with

These controis rave been nplace througnodt the vear
Lnder rev ew and cp 1o the date of s'grng tie accounts

Key risks dert flied by tne Audnor are cons dered by the
Aldt Cormitteetoersare rabust rtera contiois aa
rontorirg procedures are ~ place in respect of tnese
r'sks orar ongong bas:s

Annual General Meeting (the ‘AGM’)

The Corparvs AGM w  be re'dat tre Rava, ALtomab.e
Cob 8881 FatNMa, Lordon SWITY SHS o~ Trursday
20 oL v 2C253atz 32p™ Tre Notce of AGM ssetouton
pages 115010 114 a~d exp'anatory ~otes follow o pages
1°% a~d 116

Material interests

Trerewere o oo racis su
a D

s:t Sgdarrgorattteend
of{re year ~wr r as

cftre Corpany sorwa
cm s orNass g ficart
; ~egs No Drecior ~as a
: :ht'**CM pa—y Forter JQM &
“tors appo trrentietters can be

rater a v’ ~teres X
reaterictre Compa s s
m“tlﬁrt \,f@?
regard ~gtre D
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Listing Rule 9.8.4R

The Compary confirms that there are n¢ items wh'ch
require disclosure under Listing Rule 9 8 4R in respect of
the year ended 31 Marcn 2023

Voting interests

Rights and Obligations Attaching to Shares

Schject to applicahbie statutes and othel sharehclders’
ng-ts. shares may be ‘ssued wth such rights and
restrictions as the Company may by ordinary reso'ation
dec.de, or (if there s no such resolution or so far as it does
not rake specific provision) as the Board may decide,
Sabject ta the Articies of Association (the ‘Articles’), the
Comparies Act 2006 and other sharehoiders' nghits,
unissued shales are at the disposal of the Board

Voting

At g general meeting of the Company. when voting
is Lndertaken by way of a poil. each share affords its
SWIEr one vote,

Restrictions on Voting

No member shall be entitied to vote if he has been served
with a restrction notice (as defined in the Art'cles) after
failLre to provide the Caompany with irfermation concerning
imerests in those shares required to be provided under the
Companies ACt 2006

Deadlines for voting Rights

Votes are exercisab e at a general rmeeting of the
Cormrpany inrespect of which the business being voted
Jpon s being neard. Votes may be exercised in persor, by
proxy, or in relation to corporate members, by corporate
representatives.

The Articles provide a deadline for subrission of proxy
forms of not less than 48 hours (or swch shorter t'me as the
Beard may determine) before the meeting (not excluding
nor-working days)

Transfer of Shares

Any shares in the Company may be held in uncertificated
form and, subject to tne Articles, title to Lncert'ficated shares
may be transferred by means of a relevart system Subject
10 the Articles, any member may transfer all or ary of nis
certificated snares by an instrument of transfer in any usua!
form or 'n any other form whicn the Board miay approve

Armnual Report & Azcounts 2073

Significant Voting Rights

As at 31 March 2073, the foliowing sharenolders had notified
that they held over 3% of the votng nghts ir the Company or
anon discretionary basis

% of voting rights*

Shareholder

Brewin Dolphin Ltd 11.0%
Interactive Investor Share Dealing Services 8 4%,
Rathbone Investment Management Ltd 4.9%
Hargreaves Lansdown Asset Management Ltd 5.5%
Quilter Cheviot Investment Management Ltd 3.7%
Investec Wealth & Investment Ltd 26
Charles Stanley Group pic 32%
Smith & Williamson investment Managers 3.0%,

~ See gbove for further nfor~aton on the voting rights of Ordinary shares

Since 31 March 2023 the Compary has been informed that
Integrafin Ho«dings pic hold 4 0% of the voting rights in the
Company

Articles of Association

Twe Compary's Articies of Assoc.ation may only be
amerded by a spec.al reso ution at a Gereral Meeting of
the snareholders. They were amended at the 2021 AGM
and are ava! able to view on the Comrpary’s website

Corporate Governance

Fu' details are givers in the Corporate Governance Report
on pages 49 10 55, The Corporate Goverrance Report
forms pait of this Directors’ Report
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Corporate Governance report

The Board of Directars 1s accountable to snareho'ders for
tnhe governance of the Campary's affairs. Thig statermert
descnbes how the prircipies of tne 20718 UK Corporate
Sovernance Code (the Code ) issued by tne Financia
Reporting Councuaithe FRC) m 2018 have beer applied
to the affairs of the Company The Code can be vewed at
www frc.org ek

Application of the AIC Code's Principles

[~ apply ng tre prncip es of the Code, the Directors

have also taken account of the 20198 Code of Corporate
Governance publ.shed by the AIC (tnhe AIC Code’) of whicn
the Corrpany is a member. The AIC Code estab™snes the
framework of best practice specifically for the Beards of
irvestment trust companies Furtrermore, tre AIC Code
has full erdorsemert of the FRC, which means that AIC
meirbers who report agairst the AIC Code meet their
obligat.ons under the Code and the re.ated disclosure
requirements contarred ' the Listing Ruies The AIC Code
canbe viewed at www irea C.o0.Lk

The Directors beleve that during the vear under review the
Comparny hasg compled with the mam priraiples and reievant
provis.ons of the Code insofar as tey app'y 1o the Company's
bus ness, and withthe provisiors of tre AIC Code

Compliance Statement

Tre Directors note that the Company did not comply w th

e folowing prov.sions of the Code ™ tre year ended 21
March 2523

Provision 9 Dueio tne nature and structure of the
Compary the Board of nor-execut ve directors does rot
fee 1 .sappropnate toappo nt a chef executive

Prev.sion 19 The Crarrar kas served or the Board far
rore tran rire yvears Ir accordarce wi~ the AlC Code
the Board ~cretne ess comsiders tnat ne s rdependert
He wel sta~d down at the forthcomr g AGM

Provis on 24 The Board be.eves that a. D recters, nead rg
treCrarrar srouwd st ora of tre Boards Comrn ttees

Provis 00 26 Astne Co~pary ~as roerpovees a-d ts
operat ora' fu-ct ong are L-dertaken by th rd part s t-e
Asdt Corrmittee does not cors der t appropr ate for e
Comparyicestab s itsowr ~terra acdtfoactor Tre
Company's serv.ce provders provde assara~ce of trer
effect ve syster of rek —a~age~e~tand ~terra a~d
cottro

Froyve o 32 Tre Board does ot rave «
Fer rerat o~ Com ttee Trefo-oto

-
Re~_~erat o~ Cov o ttee arg carred oot by
Mamage~e~1 Erga

m
7w
I

S

gerert Com ttee

Composition and Independence of the Board

Tre Board currenty corsists of s x Directors al' of
whar aie non-executive The Board's independence,
1rciuding that of the Charrman has been consdered
and a’ of the Drectors are deered 10 be
Adependent n chatacter and have no re.atorships
or crrcumstarces which are lkety 10 affect theu
judgement

The Board subscr.bes to the view expressed i the

AIC Code tnat .ong-serv g Directors shou'd not be
prevented from formirg part of ar ndependert majorty.
[t does not cons'der tnat theiength of a Directors tenure,
‘nisolation, reduces the r abity 1o act .ndeperdent y
e Board's po'icy or terure 1s that conunuity and
experience add significant'y to the strergth of the Board
athough it beleves 'n tne rerite of ar orgong ard
progressye refreshiment of ts compostion.

'

Diversity

Tre Beaid recognises the beneit of dversity and

as at tre date of thig report t comprses three men
and three woemen Diversty s taken ~to account as
part of the recruitment, appointment ard succession
planning process The Board s cormmutted to
appointirg the most approprate cardidate, regardiess
of gerder or otnel forms of dwersity and taerefore ro
targets have beer set aganst wnich to report

" accorda-ce win Listing Rule 986R (9),110)
and {111 t1e Board has provided the folowing
wforvrat on crelaton toits diversty

Board Gender as at 31 March 2023™

Number

of senior

Number Percentage positions

of Board of the on the

members Board Board

Men 3 50% 2@
Women '3 50%@ 1@

The Company does not disc’ose the number of Drecrors
nexecyT ve managerient as Thes s notapp catee foran
NYESTMIEeNT ITUSt COrpany

Thehree senor pos: ons are Charman of the Board, Senor
Independen: Director and Chairman of the Aud © Cormim tree
Note the pos - onof the Charrian of the Aud: Corm tiee

s e cutrers y defined as a sen of pos wonunderthe L st ng
Rues Wowever the Board be eves thar, foran nvesimenttiusi
comMpany ;shoudberegardedas suchas 1 shroad yegquvae
¢ the Chet b nanc a Officer of a trad ng company

Th g rreers the L 8t ng Ruwes targe: af 20%

CTngrmeesthe L s ngkuesage of

TR Prozery Incestment Trust



Board Ethnic Background as at 31 March 2023

Number
of senior
positions

on the
Board

Number Percentage

of the
Board

of Board
members

White British
or other White
{including minority-

white groups) 5 83% 3@
Mixed/Multipie
Ethnic Groups 1 17% -

The Corpahy does nat disc ose the number of Directors
mnexecuive management asth s snotapp cable foran
IMVeSTMeNt T ust cormpany.

- The hree sen'or posions are Chairman of the Board, Senmor
Independen: [ rector and Charman of the audi Comritiee
Note the pes™ onof the Chairman of the Audt Committee
snot cunently defined as a senior position under the Listing
Ru-es, however the Board beieves that, for an mvestrment trust
company, it should be regaided as such asitis broadly equvalen:
tothe Chief Finanaal Officer of a rading comipany

The information inc uded ir the above tables has
been obtained through questicnnaires compieted by
Ine irdividual Drectors.

Powers of the Directors

Subyect to the Company's Articles of Assoc ation,
the Companies Act 2006 and ary direct’'ons given
by special resolution, the business of the Company
Is managed by the Board who may exercise all the
powers of the Company, whether relating to the
managemert of the business of the Company or not.
I~ particdlar. the Board may exercise all the powers of
the Company to borrow money and to mortgage or
charge any of ts undertakings, property, assets and
Jncaled capital and to1ssue debentures and other
sec.ntes and to gve secutity for any debt, :abtity or
obigation of te Company to any third party

Board meetings

There are no contracts ar arrangements with third
parties which affect, a'ter or termmate upor a
change of control of the Company

Directors

Simaon Marrison retired from the Board at the
conclusion of the 2022 AGM Andrew Vaughan
was appointed a Drectoron 1 August 2022 ard
Busoia Sodeinde jomed the Board on 24 January
2023 The Directors’ biographies are set out

on pages 44 and 45 All Directors wiil stand for
re-elect:on by sharehoiders at the forthcoming
AGM I accordance win the Code, with t1e exception
of David Watson, who will retire from tne Board at
the conclasion of tne meetirg Kate Bolsover will
succeed nim as Chairmar ard Tirm G.llbarks wil
becore Senior Independent Drector

Board committees

The Board ras establisked an Audit Commitiee,

a Nominaton Comm ttee and a Management
Engagemert Committee, which aiso carries out
the functions of a Remuneration Committes. A
the Directors of the Company are non-execdtive
and serve on each Committee of the Board 1 has
been tre Company’s policy to nclude a'l Directors
on all Committees. This encodrages unity, clear
commutcation and avo'ds dupl.cation of d'scussion
between the Board and tre Committees.

The roles and responsibilit'es of each Committee
are set out ir the mdividual Committee reports
which follow Each Committee has written terms
of reference which cleariy define its resporsibi-ities
and duties Tnese can be fourd on the Company's
website, are avallab.e onrequest arnd wili aiso be
available for irspection at the AGM

Tre number of meetings of the Board and Committees heid during the year under review and the attendance of

individual Directars, are shown below
Board
Attended

Eligible

6 6
6 6
2 2
6 6
6 6
4 4
2 2

David Watson
Tim Gillbanks
Simon Marrison’
Kate Bolsover
Sarah-Jane Curtis
Andrew Vaughan
Busola Sodeinde

Retired fromithe Boa-don 26 Juy 2022
Appointed totie Board on ¥ August 2022
Appo nted to the Board on 24 Jenuary 2023

Audit
Attended

A = NN =S NN

MEC Nomination

Eligible Attended Eligible Attended

O = NN =2 NN
e S (N o S G
‘ Y Y — TSN
- el o wd (D ol

In add tion to formal Board and Caommittee meetings, the Directors &iso attend a number of ad hoc meelings whicn

are convened as and when necessary

o Tatele]

Lrrida' Report & Accounts 2023

Eligible

[ — T T
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Corporate Governance report
continued

The Board

Tre Board s respansible for the effective stewardsn.p
of the Company's affars. Certar strateqic ssues

are momitored by the Board at meetings agamnst a
framework whicn has been agreed with the Manager
Addit.ora meetings may be arranged as reqguired The
Board has a fermra. schedule of matters specifica’ly
resaerved for 4 dec son which are categorsed under
varous head.ngs irciuding strategy maragement,
structure, capital, fimanc.alieporting, rterna’ controls,
gearnng, assef aliocatior, share prce discodnrt, cortracts,
nvestrrent poicy, firance, nsk nvestment restrctions,
perfor—ance corporate governance and Board
~embership and appointments

[~ arder to enable therm 1o d'scharge their responsibities
ali Directors nave fuit and tmely access 1o re.evant
i~formation At each meeting, tne Board reviews the
Compary's investment performance and considers
financial analyses and other reports of an operationa’
nature The Board momitors cormpearce win the
Company's objectves ardis responsible for setting asset
ahocatom and rvestmertand gearing hrrits wiibin whien
the Portic)o Marager has d scretion o act and t~us
supervises tre managerrent of the nvestren portfolo,
whicr s contractua'ly delegated tothe Portfono Manager

Tre Board nas respors b ity for tre approvar of
mvestments i unguoted irvestrerts and any
mvestments ir fuads maraged or adv sed by the
Portfoao Manager it bas also adopted a proced.re
for Directors, tithe furtrerarce of treir duties 1o take
ndependent profess ona’ advice at tne expense of the
Company

Conflicts of interest

7 ne wir tne Compar.es At 2006 tre Board mas tre
powertc autronse ary potert a conflicts of ~terest
tratray arge atd mpose sLeh i ts o Cond tons

as tirirks At Aregester of potenta corfucts s
~arta ~ed ard sreviewed at every Board meeting
toe~sure a  deta-s are kept up-to-date Appropr ate
author.sat o7 w - be sougt pror o the appo.rirert of
a~y ~ew Director or fary ~ewco~ficts ar se

Relations with sharehalders
Srarenoderreatcisare g een T guprorty bvtee
Board tre AIFM a~d t~e Portfo © Marager Trepr.e
~edi. by v on tre Company con il cates v
srarercders sthrougtttemaf Year and Arela
Reports woora o provide snarenc ders wis & c.ear
crderstand rg cftre Comparys actvies atd e
res.1s Trg ~forrator sseppe~ertedbytreday
Ca c. ator of tre Net Asset Vaiue of tre Corpany s
Crdrary srares yomicn s puly sred
Stock Excrange

o trelLordnr

Tk s nformation is aiso avalable on the Company's
webgite, www trpraperty.cam, tagetner wits a
montrly facts~eet and Marager cormentary

Thie Annca! Repart ard Accounts and Notice of the
AGM are issued to shareholders sc as 1o provide al least
twenty work.rg davs' not.ce of the AGM, I accordance
with corporate governance best practice Shareholders
wishing to odge guestiors in advarce of the AGM, or to
cortact tne Board at any other time, are nvited 1o do s¢
by wr ing to the Company Secretary at the regstered
address gveronpage 118

Gereral preséntations are given t¢ botn shareho.ders
ard analysts fo 0w g the pubicaton of the anrval
resuits, Al meet:ngs between the Manager ard
sharehoiders are reported to the Board

Section 172 Companies Act 2006

Sect.on 172 of the Compantes Act 2006 requires
directors to act i good faitk and in a way that sine
mMostkely (o promote the success of tne Company
I accordance withibe reguirerents of the
CoTparies {Mscel'aneous Reportingy Regulatons
2018 beiow the Company expla »s how the
D.rectors have discharged tne 1 duty under sect:on
172 dunirg treyear Fulfihng th s duty raturaly
sdpports the Company 1m acheving its Investrent
Chjective ard ne'ps to ensure that al' decisions are
imade ir a respors ble and sustamrab’'e way

Onappo rtmert, D rectors are provided witn a
detared nducton ot ~g ther duties legaly

ard reguiatory, as a Director of a UK pubiic " ited
comipaty and continLe to rece ve regu ar re'evanit
techrica, Lpdates and tra:ring. Tne Directors also
rave accesstotre advice and services of tre
Company Secretary and wner deered recessary
trey nave the opportun ty to seek ndependent
profess o-a advice - the furtnerarce of tner dut es
as a burectorn atthe Company s expenise

Decision making

Tne rporta~ce of stakehoder considerat.ers,
~part coar - tre cortext of gecis.om-aking s
reguar'y rocgtttotne Boards attertion by tne
Copany Secretary ard takes ~to account at every
Board meet ~g Tae Board corsderstre mpact
tratany atena. decsonw racecra reeva™
stake~c derstoe-soret~at t s ~akitgadecsor
trat prorotes e ongter~ s.ocess oftme Copa-,
waetrert- she forexa—pe - reatonitodiv derds
—ew mvestertopportontes ortre Company's
foture strategy Im add v, 1e Board together wir
e Marager rods & ~eetrg focused o strategy
orararc.a bhassicookgread rthe marker and
artcpatepoterta’ scerar s and ~Ove tr s Tay
pact t7e Lompany s stakeno ders



Stakeholders

The Board recognises the needs and importance of

the Company's stakehalders ard ensures that they are
considered dur ng all ts discuss.ens and as partof s
decision-mak ng Smce the Company 18 an nvestmenrt
frust compary that s externa’ y managed, the Company
does not have any employees itne Directors have a

Company), nor does it have a direct impact on the
commmunity ar environmert in the convertional sense
The Board recognises its key stakeholders and explains
below why these stakeroders are cons:dered impaortant
to the Company and the actiors taken to ensure that
ther Mterests are taken irto account.

I etter of Appo ntment and are rot empioyees of the

Stakeholder Group and why

they are important

Board engagement

Shareholders

Sharehader support 1s
essenila tothe ex stence
of the Company and
delivery of the long-term
strategy of the business

The Manager

Holding e Company's
shares offers investors a
ligu'c investment vehic-e
through which they can
okian exposure o the
Company's civers)fled
portfolia. The Investmen?
*“Manager's performance s
crivica’ for the Compeany
1o suzcess‘ully aelver its
nvestment strategy and
meel ts objective

Annual Resort & Accounts 2023

Tne Company has over 3,000 sharehoders, including mstitutional anc retall investors

Tne Board 15 committed to ma:ntaining open channeis of commun cation anc to engage with
shareholders 1n a manner they f'nd most meanngful in order o gain an understanc.ng of
their views These inc ude the channes be'ow

- Annual General Meeting - the Company welcomes and encourages attendance and
partcipation from shareho'ders at its AGM. The Manager g'ves a presentation et the
AGM on the Company's pe-formance and the future outlock Sharehoiders have the
opporiunity ta meet the Directors and Manager and to adoress guestions to tnem directly
The Company values any feedback and questions it rece ves from shareholders ahead of
and during tne AGM and takes action or makes changes If anc when appropriate,

Publications - the annual and hail vear reporis are made avaiable on tne website and
sent o shareholders These publicatons provide information an the Company and itg
portfol'o of investments anc a better understand:ing of tne Company's financial position.
This 1s supp:emented by daily publication of the NAV an tne Landon Stock Exchange and
monthly facisheets on the Company's website. The Company is open to feedback from
sharehoders to imp-ove its publications

.

.

Shareholder meetings — the Manager meets with shareholders pericdically and often and
feedback 1s shared with te Board.

* Working with the Brokers — the Manager and Broxers wark togetner to mamntain disiogue
with shareholders and prospective investors at scheduled meetings. The Board s provided
with reqgular updates at meetings and outs:de meetings If required.

* Shareholder concerns — In the event tnal sharehclders wish to raise issues or concerns
with the Board, they are welcome 1o do so at any tme by witing to the Charrman at the
registered office The Seniar Independent Director is also avarable to shareho dersif tney
have concerns tnat contact through the normati channe: of the Chairman has falled 1o
resolve or for which such contact is inappropnate

Maintaining & close anc constructive wor<ing relationshup wita the Manager s cruc.al, as e
Board and the Manzger both aim to continde to achieve consistent, long-term returns in ine
wit the Company s mvestment objective important components n the coilaberation with
the Manager, representative of the Company's culture inciude those listed beiow

- Encouraging open, honest and collaborative discussions at all leve's, allowing @ me and
space for onginal and mnovative thiriking

- Ensuring that the mpact on the Manager 's fully cons-derec anc understood before any
busness gecision 1s made.

- Tsuniig that gny potent al confl ots of Interest are avoicea or managec effectively

The Board nolds detalied discuss ons w th the Manager on all key strategic and operational

‘op os onanonge ng bas's Inadc ton, the Chnarman reqularly meets with the Manager to

ensure a c-ose dhalogue is mamtained

N
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Corporate Governance report

continued

Stakeholder Group and why

they are important

Board engagement

External Setvice Providers, particularly the Company Secretary, the Administrator, the Registrar and the Depository and

the Broker

Arange of agv.sers
enatles the Company

to function and ensure
nat it meets its relevant
obligatons as an
mvestment (Tust company
and a constituent of e
FTSE 250

Lenders

Ava'labiity of funding and
nguiaity are crucan o the
Company's ability 1o take
advartace of Investment

cpportunities as they arse.

Regulators

The Company can ony
operale w in the approva’
of s regulatorg wno Mave
s 'egitimate nterest 1 how
e Compeny operates in
the rmarket and t-eats its
shareholaers.

Investee Companies

Portfono companies are
uumately snarehoiders’
assets angine Boara
recogn ses the mpetance
cf gooc stewarcship anc
commun cation with
Nyestee comgegnles n
meet 1g the Company's
nvesiment ohject-ve &nc
surateqy

The Boara mamtaing reqular comialt Wil 1'S key exIerna prov Cers ana receives requ'ar
reparting frem them through Beard and commitiee meetngs, as weil as ouisice of the
regular meeting cycle Ther adv ce, as weli as ineir neecs and views, are routine'y taken into
account The Management Engagement Committee formally assesses tnerr performance,
fees and continung appomtment at least annuany to ensue that the <ey serv ce providers
continue ‘o functien &t g1 acceptable ieve’ and are appropralély remuneratea 1o deliver

the expected leve of service The Audit Commitiee rey ews and evaiuates ine control
environments in place at each sevvice provider as approp..aie

The Board neeas ‘o gemonsirate to lenders that 1.8 a we'-menaged business, capehle of
denvering long-term returns consisiently

The Board regu.ary conzige s Novs il ang the Company meet the varous regulsiory and
statutory chngations and ‘ollows voluniary anag test-pracuce qu dance, inc'ug ng how &y
governance decis 015 4 mekes can fayve an impact 00 18 stakeho'ders both inthe shorter
and in thecnger ierm

The Manage communicates recularly with portfo'o compan-es and s an engaged
shareholder (o7 benalf of tne Companyi e 30arc momiters The Managers s1ewa asn p
arrancements and rece ves regular feectack on meetings with tne management of portfe. ¢
companies and voling at Tner cengrg' meetings

Te Board saways ™ rdfu of the requ re~ertioact - Dividends
e best nterests of shareno.dersasa wao e ard o have Sohiect to srarena der approva of toe proposed fi-ai
regard 1c the Gtrer requirermerts of secton 172 wn e for dvderd the Covrpary wi payaiota dvdendof 18 SIp for

part of Boards decisicm-~akirg process Trefo ow ~gkey thefi~anca vear represe~tirgar ~orease of 695 0 tre

decis ons taker by 12 Board dur ngtre year ended 31 Mars™

2023 areexampescftns

Gearing

Durrgtrefirarc a yeal tne Company contirsed 1o
ganr.a icar fac.es and

fo. owrga-evewcftrears abeoptors eas vere
recenedonbready s arrermsasirererenaste
deetrrooygihout trevear Tre Boarg gskeen 1o ~a nta -
awderargecfbark ~greatonshpstcersaretrat t
nas accessica doerserarge of termsa~dis "ot re 27t

Jtisedsexst rgrevey

Drev OuS year ["COTErCse $harp’y 8s CoMparies res.med
pav.gdivdends a~d agaresst tisyearsd viderd s
covered Dy 2armi~gs ~ ta forecaste for tre financia vear

to 31 Marcr Z324 ndcate tratreverLe av faagar as a
~arberof copares ~ase sesperded d wdenas TreBoard
“ecty” sest e mportance of d wderdsto srareroders a~d
s.biecticcarefs reqew cftre Co~panysreserae forecasts
ardreserestogetrery trtre maestment oLt ook treva tg
oreparcitc Lserever e reser s 1o sopport ite d s deds

pa dis sharenoiders cver per cds of ~corestonfa o

oAt Iy o dertfiediezsnss

o~ ary cre provder, The fac tesprosde fex b tyaro
cortp emetttre orgertert provate pacerment fixed

ter~gebt17at sinpace

=4
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Portfolio management

Dunng the year the Beard continued 1o focus on the
performance of the Manager nach'eving the Company's
investmenrt objective within an appropnate risk

frarmework The Board continued to consider the mpact
onthe Company (including portfalie activty, risks and
opportunites gearing, revenue forecasts and the cperations
of otrer third party providers) of & number of events through
the fimancia' vear to ensdre that the portfo.o nad sufficient
resiience together with the Company’s operational structare
to meet tne urprecedenied Ccircumstances

Culture and bhusiness conduct

Tne Beard beleves that having & good corporate

cilture, particularly in 'ts engagerert with tne Manager,
sharerolders and ather key stakeholders, a.ds del very of

its long-term strategy e line with this purpose, the Board
pramotes & culture of operness, debate ard integrity through
GMgoing engagernent with the Manager and with s other
senvice providers The Directors agree that establishing and
mantaning a neaitny corporate cuiture within the Board and
nits interactior. with the Manager, shareholders and other
stakenolders will support the delivery of 'ts purpose, vaues
and strategy. Tne Board strives to ensure that its culture is in
ine wth the Company's purpose, values and strategy.,

The Company has a number of polices and procedures

in place to assist with maintaining a culture of good
governance including those relating to diversity, Drectors’
corflicts of interest and Directors’ dealings ir the Company's
shares. The Beard assesses and monitars compliance with
these polcies as well as the genera' cuiture of the Board
regdlarly through Board meetings and 'n particular during
the annual evaluation process {for more information see the
Board evaluation section on page 56)

The Board seeks to appoirt the best possibe service
providers and eva-uates therr service on a regular basis as
descnbed on page 58 The Board considers the culture of the
Marager and ctner service providers, ircluding their policies,
practices and behaviour, througn regllar report ng from
those stakeha ders and in particalar during the arinual review
of the performance and continuing appaintment of all service
providers

Employee, social impact and wider community

The Board recognises the regu rermert under the Comparies
Act 2006 to detal information about Fumar rights,
employees and commurity 1Issues, ncluding rformatior.
about any policies it has in relation 10 those matters ard

the effect veness of those policies These requirerents,
practicaliy. are not applicabie te the Company as 1 nasro
employees, alltne Directors are no™execative and it hag
outsourced ali operational furctiors to third party service
providers Therefore, the Compary has not reported further o
respect of these provisions

Annual Report & Accounts 2023

Directors’ indemnity

Dhectors’ and Officers' Lab ity insurance cover s 1n
piace i1 respect of the Directors. The Company's Anticies
of Association allow it 10 the extent permitted by the
Companies Acts, to inderrnify tne Directors aganst any
liabiity

Tne Conpany has entered into deeds of 'nderrnity for

the berefit of eacn Director of tne Company n respect of
habiit’es which may attacr to therm T ther capan ty as
Directors of the Company These provisions, which are
quaifying third party imdernity provisions as defined by
sechion 234 of the Companes Act 2006, were ntroduced n
January 2007 and currently remain in force

Directors’ statement as to disclosure of
information to the Auditor

The Directors who were members of the Board atthe time
of approving the Directors’ Report are listed on pages 44
ard 45 Having rade enquires of fellow Directors and of te
Corrpany's Auditar each of the Drrectors confirms that

sofar as they are aware, trere is no information of whicn
tne Company's Auditor is Lnaware, and

each Director has taken & the steps that trey ought to
nave taken as a Director to make thermse'ves aware of
any relevant audit informat on and tc establish that the
Company's Auditor 1s aware of that ‘rformatior.

This information is given and should be nterpreted ir
accordance with the provisions of Section 418 of tie
Companies Act 2006

L attes

By order of the Board,

Columbia Threadneedle Investment
Business Limited,

Company Secretary
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Report of the Nomination Committee

Nomination Committee
Chairman: David Watson

Key responsibilities

+ Rev.ew the Board and its Committees ard make
recomumendat ons to tre Board in re'aton to stractare,
size and composition, tre baance of krow'edge.
experience and ski‘l ranges,

Caorsider success on pla~irg and tenure policy and
oversee the developmert of a diverse pipelne:

+ Consider trere-eiect or of Directers; and
- Revew the cutcome of the Board evaluation process

The Nommat on Comrmittee rreets at 'east annuaily,
and more freguently as and wher regu red 1hast metr
Marcr 2023

Activity during the year

Tne Committee discussed successior p ann' g of

the Board, 1s terure and diversity peirc s It reviews
annualy the size and structure of the Board and w.h
continue to 1eview succession p'anrirg and furtrer
recrutment, taking irto account tre recommrendat.ons
of Board eva..ations The Comrmittee appo ted a search
consultant and, following interviews with a number of

s tab'e cand dates, 1t recorwrended the appontment ¢f
Busoia Sodemde to tre Board

Board evaluation

During the vear e Board engaged Tim Stepnersor

cf Stephierson & Co, ar indepe~dent comrpary wric
special ses 1 nvestiment frust board evaiuat ors, 10

fac, tate a~ ndeperdent evaiLatior of the effect veress
of tre Board, 1s committees and tne perforrarce of
each Director I addition to the D rectors, the ™ost

sen or merrbers of the Irvestmert Marage—e~t teams
were Atercewed Mr Steprenscn s repert was discussed
y the Cottee

TreevaLal or was cors dered by tre Loy fee 10 be
corstructve ~terrsof a~ays g Board compostorard
provid ~grecerrendat 07s ¢ Board §uCcess o panr g

Trerewere ~csgr fica~t actong ars~g fro~ ire
eval.at'cr process a~d twas agreed trat tre corrert
copastonofire Board and s Co~ tiees ref ected &
sotabe~~xofsk zardexpere-ce a-dtratioe Bogrd
asawrce tre ~d odea Drecicrsand ts o

wereforzt o g effect ey

1
Y

I ghit of the externa’ performance evaluator, the Board
corfirms that the performance of each Director continaes
tc be effective ard demonstrates ther commitment to
therr rale Therefare ail Directors, with tre exception of
David Watson wli offer themise'ves for re-erect orr at the
forthcomrg AGM. Further infarration or eacn Directors
sk lig, experience and tner contribution 1o tne Board are
outhned in the biographies or pages 44 and 45

71 accordarce win the provis.ors of the Code 't sine
mtention of tre Board to engage an external fac [tator to
assist with tre performance eva.wation every three years
and the next externa' evaluation wil be carted out during
the year endirg 31 Marcn 2026 Trne Board wil’ continue
to corplete an nterral board evaluation annuaily i tne
nierven ng years

Board's policy on tenure

Provis on 24 of the AIC Code of Corporate Gavernarce
alows a different approach toterure nreator 1o rvestmenrt
companes 1eflect ng how they differfo operating
corpanes i not navirg a cn.ef executve, The Board took
irto corsideration the approach and itroduced 1ts Polcy
Goverming Board Members' Terure ard Reappomntrert
Tris policy out'ires tne Board's approacn 1o tenure and
reappo riment of ror-executve drectors It states 'ts beref
tnat the value brougnt tirougn cont =ity and expenerce of
Drrectors wit™ 071ger peniads of serv ce 1s not on'y desirable
but essertial i an imvestmert company. The Beard did

rot feel that it would be appropriate to sét a specific tenivre
Tt for ndw dueal Directors or the Chairman of the Board

or its committees instead tre Board wili seek to recruit

a new Drrector, or average every two to three yoars so as
reguaiarly 1o brirg the stiri'us of frest ihinkirg imo the
Board's discoss 013, ensur ng that 0n each occasion that the
Board erters ~iG rew investert comimtrents at east
malf tne Board members rave direct persona' expenence of
regctiatng previcus comritmerts wth the Marager

Board Succession
Hav ngservedasa Drector s mee 20012 1w 2 stard aow-
fror tee Board at toe conc Us on of tre fartrco™ rg
AGN Kate Bo sover wil' succeed me as Lrarmran

~ 5. harksw s.ceeed Kate as Serior [7deperdent
Drector Boso'a Sode ~de was appo ~ted a Direstor o
ZA Laroary 20723 Arondeperdertintd party agency
Narce L —ted wasergaged forime recro tment process
s craessted ~Busoasappootest Nomo e nave to

ctrercorrester w tm e Compary



Directors’ training

On appo ntment, new Directors are offered training to
sut therr needs. Directors are also prov ded witn key
nformaticn on the Company's actvities on a regular
basis, ncludng regulatery and statutory reguirements
ard internal contrals. Charges affecting Directors’
respons-bilities are advised to the Board as they arise
Cirectors ensure that trey are wpdated on reguiatery,
statutory and industry matters

Letters of appointment

No Drector has a contract of emp.oyrrent with

the Company. Directors terms and conditicns for
appointirent are set out r letters of appeintment which

are avallable for inspection at the registered office of the

Company ard at tne AGM.

David Watson

Arnaal Report & Accounts 2023
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Report of the Management Engagement Committee

Management Engagement
Committee (the 'MEC")

Chairman: David Watson

Key responsibiiities

Maonitor and rev-ew the performarnice of the AIFM and
Portfolio Marager,

* Review the terms of the Investert Managemenrt
Agreeent,

Anvially revew the contracts and performance of
each exterral third-party service prov der, and

Review, or an arnual basis, the remureration of the
Directors.

In addit on to vesrment managemert, the Board
has delegated to external third parties the depositary
and custodal servizes funct ons (wh'oh include tre
safegLarding of assets) the day tc day accourt g,
company secretarial, adm istration ard share
registrat'on services Each of these cortracts was
entered intc after fu'l and proper cons derat’'con of the
quai'ty of the services offered, ne'od ng the cortrol
systems in operat on rsofarastrey relate 1o the
affarrs of the Company Tre MEC determimes and
approves Directors' fees, having regard to tre level of
fees payable 1o non- executive Directors = the rdustry
generaily, the roie that individua! Directors fulfi
respect of Board and Committee responsibilities and
the ime comitted to tre Cormpany's affars For
further deta is please see the Directors’ Remurerat:on
Report ¢n pages 6310 65.

The MEC meets at least anraal'y, towards the end of
tre fi~ranc’ai year and ast met - March 2023

Activity during the year

Attre meeting hed r Marcn 2023 the WMEC

rev ewed tre performarce of tre AIFM and Portfole
Marmager and cors dered botr the appropr ateness
of tre Maragers appo-tmert and the co~tract.s
arra“ge'“ﬂrWts nurc od ~gtre strecture and ievel of
reoreratoTw tr tne Marager

t~additer totreres ews by tre MEC e Board
revewed and oors dered perforrarce repoits
frot~e Portfc ¢ Mar-ager at eac” Beoard rmeet g
TreBoard ascrece vedregs ar reports o~ tre
Adm o ostrator ard Com~pary Secretary

Tre Board be eve trat the Maragers track record
ard perfor—arcerema ns ootstard "g As aresuit
tne MEC corfirred tat tre AFM ard Portfo’c
Mamager so.-d be retared fortre fnanc a year
e~ding 31 WMarce 2524 he g~ the Sest ~terests of

[&)]
[§4)

all shareloders A summary of the significant terms

of the Investrert Managen'ent Agree:rert and the
trird-party service prov.ders wnoe support the Company
are et oul be ow

Durirg the year tne MEC also reviewed the perforrance
of an their th'rd party serv.ce providers inc.udrg BNP
Farbas, Computershare, Celumb a Threadreed e acting
as Compary Secretary, both firms of corparate brokers,
Panmure Gordon ard Stife), and PwC (as tax adv sors).
The Portfolic Manager provides regu.ar Lpdates or the
performance of a1 third-party provider s during the year
and attended tis part of the MEC Meeting The MEC
confirmed that 't was satisfied with tne lever of services
detvered by eacn th rd-party prov der

Management arrangements and fees

Cr 11 July 2514 the Board appoirted BMO lnvestmert
Business Limted (row Coiumbia Trareadneedle
Investment Busiress Limited) as the Company's
Alterrative Irvestmenrt Furd Ma~ager (in accordance
with the Alternative investment Furd Maragers
Directive) witr portforo management deiegated to the
irvestment Manager Thames River Capital LLP

Tre sgrificat terms of the Irvestmert Maragement
Agreerent with t~e Marager are as fo.lows

Notice period

The Irvest—ent Maragement Agreement [ IMAY
provides for terv . rat'or of the agreement by etner
party w thout compersatior on the prov s:or of 7ot
essthar 12 mentis writter nctice

Management fees
Toe fee for the per od under1eview was a ‘ixed fee of

£289500C puLs an ad vaiorem fee of C 2C% pa based
o1 the et asset valve (deterrred maccordance with
the AIC metrod of valuation) on the 'ast day of March
Jure. Septermiber amd Deceber payabie gLartery
advance Tnefee arrargeents awe beenrev ewed by
tme Board for tre year to 31 Marck 2024 a~d t-“e fixed
cerrertoftre fee w roreaseto £4 090 000, w'st
the ad valorer rate v« rema -~ ererarged

Tre Board cortimues to congder that tre fee structure

algnstre ~lerests of tne smareho'der and tre Manage

s we asnengrgry corpett ve

Trefeearrarge~erts wi covtrueto beres ewed on
a

-
ar a”mea bass

Performance fees

Imaddtom1otre Tarager-ert fees the Board ras
agreed 1o pay tre Marager perfor~arce re ateg fees
respect of a~ ac ’f“whf“g ner ot certa - perfor—anice

chject ves are ack eved

TR Eroperty reaesimert Trus!



A performance fee s payable if the total return of
adjusted et assets (after deduction of all Base
Maragement Fees and otner experses), as de‘ined
nthe IMA, at 31 March eacn year outperforms 11e
total returr of tne Cormrpany's berchmark pias 1%
(the ‘hurdle rate)), this outperfarmance (expressed
as apercemage) 1s knowr as the ‘percentage
outperformarce’ Ary fee payabie will be the
amount equiva ent to the adjusted net assets at

31 March eacnyear muttipl'ed by the percentage
outperforrmance then multipl'ed by 15% Tre
raximum performance fee payable for a period is
capped at 1 5% of tre adjusted net assets However,
if the adjusted net assets at the erd of any penod
are iess thar at the beginring of the perod, the
maximrum performance fee payable wili be mmited to
1% of the adjusted net assets

‘Adjusted Net Assets’ means the Net Asset Vaiue
after (1) exclud’ng any increases or decreases in Net
Asset Va ue attributable to the issue or repurchase of
any Crd'nary Snares: (1) adding back the aggregate
amount of any dividerds paid or d:stributions made
in respect of any Ordinary Snares; ard (i) excluding
the amount of any Performarce Fee accrued for

the perod

If the total returr of sharebolders’ funds for any
petformance pericd 1s less than the benchmark

for tre relevant performance period, such
underperformance {expressed as a percentage) will
be carried forward to futuie performance periods

If any fee exceeds tne cap, such excess performance
{expressed as a percentage) will be caned

forward and app!ed to offset ary percertage
Jnderperformarce in future performance periods

In the event that the benchmark is exceeded but

the murdle 1s not, that outperformance of tne
benchmark can be used to offset past or future
anderperformance. These arrodnts can be used

for offset purposes arly and therefore cannot have
the effect of creating a fee r a year where a fee
would not otherwise be payabie or increasing the

fee intnat year The -1 5% underperformance of

the herchmark in the current year has been offset
against the brought forward outperformance

as described above As a resiit of this the carry
forward of outperformance at 31 Marcr 202515 0 4%
(7027 1 9%

sTelols}

Anrual Report & Accourts 2022

Management company

On & Navember 2021 BMG's asset managemenrt
bLsiness in Europe, the M-ddle East ard Africa becare
part of Cotamira Trareadneedle Investments, the global
asset management business of Ameriprise Financ.a,
Inc. Tne process of ntegiatng the two firms is well
advanced ard bott comparies nave corfirmred the
mpottance of mamtaning the stabiiity ard continuity
of tne teams whicr support the Corrpany.

Depositary arrangements and fees

BNP Par bas was appointed as Depositary on

14 July 2014 m accordance w th the AIFMD

The Depositary's respons b i ties include. cash
monitoring; segregat cn and safe keeping of the
Company's finarcal instrements, and monitorirg the
Cormpany's compliance w th investment and leverage
requirerrents The Deposiary receives for its services
a fee of 2 0 basis po nts per anrum on the first

£150 milion of the Company's assets, 1 4 basis points
per annum on assets above £150 mullion ard below
£500 million and 0 75 basis points on assets above
£50C milion

Review of third party service

providers fees

Custody ard Administratior Services are prov ded

by BNP Panbzs and Compary Secretarial Services

by Columbia Threadreedle Investment Business
Limited. Tne fees for these services are charged
directly to the Company and are disclosed within other
administrative expenses d sclosed in noles to the
accounts

David Watson

o
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Report of the Audit Committee

Audit committee
Chairman: Tim Gillbanks

Key responsibilities
- Revewtheinterral financ.al ard ror-firanc al
cortrols;

+ Review reports from key third party service providers,

+ Consider and recorvrend to tre Board for approva’ tne
contents of tre draft Half year ard ArnLal Reports:

Review accolrting pohces and signficant firanc al
report rg judgements:

Monitor, together with the Manager, the Company's
compuance with Arancial reporting, mainterarce of
Irvestment Trust status and regulatory 1equirements,
and

+ Consider the imrpact of provding non-audit services on
the external Auditor's independerce ard cbjectivity

Representat ves of the Managers irtera’ aud 1 and
comprance departrmerts may atterd commettee
meetings at the Comm ttee Charman’s request

Represe~tatives of the Compary's Aud tor atte~d the
Comm™ittee meelirgs at wricr the draft Half Year ard
Ar~ual Report and Accounts are reviewed ard are g ven
e cpportLrity to speak to tre Comir ttee members

w thout the presence of the represertatives of the
Manager

Tre Board recogrises the reguirement for at ‘east on
Cormmittee me™ber t¢ rave recent ard relevart financ a.
exper ence a~d for the Audit Commaittee as a wnole ta
mave comrpelerce re evast o the sector The Cormittee
Crar—a~ MrWatsor and Ms Sode ~de are gua fied
accootants w e exters've ard recent experence Nt e
Fra-cai Services industry Tre atmer re~bers of toe
Cormmriitee rave a cortb ~at on of property. ira~c a
yestrent and bos. mess exper ence througT seror
postors ne'dttroagroLt tre r careers

Activity during the year
Durngtreyearire Commttee met tw ce w 1™ 3
~eThers ateack mmeet ~g a

ardcorsderedtrefoicn g

Tt s has irciuded corsideratior of the impact of tne
COVID-19 pardeTic, Russia's nvas'on of Ukra ne,
imflationary ard interest rate increases across a range of
rsk categor.es,

- Tne Group's Interna Controis and consideration of tne
Reports trereor-

« The ISAE/AAF reports ar their equivalent from BMG/
Co umbia Threadreedle ard BNP Paribas,

- Whether the Compary sholad nave its own nterral
audit funct.on

The exteria Auditar's plarring mermorandam setting
oJttne scope of te anrda audit and proposed key
areas of focus,

< Trereports from the Aud tor concerning s aud't
of the Firarcial Staterents of the Company and
Consideratior of Sigr ficart issues inrelat or 1o the
Finarcal Statements,

+ Tneappropr.ateress of, and any ¢changes to tne
account'ng policies of tne Compary, ircluding the
reasonabieness of ary judgements requ red by s.ch
poncies

« Tnelong-TermVab ty staterrert ard consideration
of tte preparation of thre Fnanc'a Statemerts oo
a Gong Concerr Rasis taking accout of forveard
lookirg i~cor-e forecasts, the g dity of the
yestrent portfolio and debt proile

- Trefira-calandot~erd sc osores nthe Firanc’a
Statermerts,

« Tre aformatior preserted =1 tne Haf Year ard A0~ .3
Reports tc assess whether taker as a wrole trey are
far balarced and cnderstandabie ard tre ~forrat or
presented w erabes-arenoidersto assess tre
Corpary's peston performarce bus ~ess modes
a~d strategy

Tre performance of tre exter~a aud 1or & approve
treracdifees and cors der tre assess~ert of
~depe~derce,

Trerey ey

1AD‘-tpr R aﬁf] fwm f]

ca7d subsecue "t propesa 10 t1e Beard of
‘de~ds and

+ Treresewa of tme Comm neester—s of referece
ers.r g lreyieTa T aprcpr ate ard comp arti i
e 2018 UK Corporate Soeerrarce Jode

TR eroperty InLe



Going concern

Ir assessing whether 't continues to he appropriate 1o
prepare the Accounts on a Gong Concern basis, the
Committee has made a detaled assessment of the
ability of the Company and Group to meet tsiabeit.es
as they fa'l due, including stress and 'iquidity tests which
corsidered the effects of substantal fails in wvestment
valuations, substantia’ reductions in revenue received
andreductions ir market Fguid-ty

I~ hght of the test ng carmed oul, He overali leve s of

the investrrent hauidity held by the Company and the
significant net asset position, the Parent Company and
Group. the Directors confirm that iney are satisfied that
the Company and the Grodp nave adequate financial
resources to cortinae n operation for at least the

rext 12 months following the s.gring of the financial
statements and tnerefore 't s appropriate to cortinue to
adapt the Gong Cencern basis of accounting.

Tre long-term v.abiity of the Company was aiso
assessed as set cut on pages 41 and 42.

Risk management and internal control

The Board has overal! responsibility for the Group's
system of Risk Management ard Inter~a!l Control and for
reviewing tnerr effectiveness Key risks identified by the
Auditor are congidered by the ALdit Committee 1o ensare
that robust imterna. cortrols and maonitornng procedures
M respect of these are 1 place on an ongoing bas's,
Further details can be found on page 48

Tne Audit Committee receved and cons.dered reports
cn Internal Controis from the key service prov ders. NG
areas of concern were hrghlighted.

Tne Company's R'sk Map was considered 1o 1dertify

any emergirg risks and whether any adjustments were
required to existing risks, and the contro's and mitigat.on
measures N p'ace In respect of those nisks

Elevated levels of inflation and nterest rates and the
Russ'an invasion of Ukraine were a so corsidered ard
the risks assoc ated w th those events reflected in the
risk map

Tre legacy impact of COVID-19 or ecoromies around

the wor'd and gperat ona' changes made by our service
providers .0 response 1o changing workplace pract'ces
were corsidered and the risk map adjusted accordingly

Based on the processes and cartrels in prace within
Columbia Threadneed e Investrrents and other

sign ficant serv'ce providers, tne Board ras concurred
that there 15 ro current need for the Comrpany tc have 1s
own nterral audit functior

Annuzl Report & Accounts 2023

Significant issues in relation to the financial
statements

The Commttee nas cors dered this report and francial
statemerts and the Long-Term V ability staterent

or pages 41 ard 42. The Committee corsidered the
Auditor's assessmert of nsk of matenial misstatement
and reviewed the nternar cortrols i place inrespect

of tne key areas ident fted and tne process by wh'en

the Board monitors eacn of the procedures to give the
Corruttee comfort on those risks on arorgonog basis
Those r'sks are aiso ignl'ghted in the Committees R sk
Map

Carrying amount of isted investments (Group and
Parent Company) - the GroJp’s investments are
priced for the daily NAV by BNP Paribas.

Tne quoted assets are priced by the Administrator's
Global Pricing Piatform whicn uses independent exterral
pric’rg soarces The control process surrounding this s
set out Intne BNP Paribas AAF 01/06 Interna’ Contiols
Report and testing by tne reporting accountant for the
per od reported 1o 30 September 2022 which did not
reveal ary significant exceptions. The quarterly control
report to the Board from BNP Paribas covenrg the period
up to 31 March 2023 disciosed no sigrificant :ssues to
report Inaddition, or each business day, the Manager
estimates tne NAV dsing an alternative pricirg soJrce as
an independent check

The Auditor agreed 100% of the isted investments of the
portfolio to externally quoted prices and ndependently
received third-party confirmations from imvestment
custodians and fourd the carryirng value of -isted
investmenrts 1o be acceptabie

+ Valuation of Direct Property Investments (Group and
Parent Comparny) — the prysica. property portfolio s
valued every six mortns by professional independent
valuers.

Knignt Frank LLP value the portfolio on the basis of

Fair va.ue naccordance with the RICS Valuation —
Professional Standards VPS4 (1 5) Fair Va ue ard VPGA
1 Valuations for Inclusion i Financial Staterments,
which apply the definition of Fair Value adopted by the
Internat-cral Financia, Reporting Standards. IFRS 13
defires Fair Value as

Tte amount for which an asset could be excharged, a
Tabilty settled, o1 an equity nstrument granted could be
exchanged between knowiedgeable, wling parties ir an
arr's lergth transaction’
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Report of the Audit Committee
continued

In Lrdertakeg thenr valual.on of eacr property,
K.ght Frank make ther assessment or the bas's of
a cchation and aralysis of appropr.ate comparable
Tvestments, rerta’ ard sa'e transactions. together
wth eviderce of demard witnir the vicinity of eacn
property Tris irformaton sther app'ied to the
properties, taking mta accourt size, ocaton, terms
covenant and other materal factors

The Board has rev ewed repaorts from tre Manager
and the external valuer ard determined the valuat'or
to be reascnabé

The Acditor has set out trer deta’led testing and
procedures in respect of tre direct property va'uation
and concwuded that they found the Comrpary's
valuation of rvestment properties to be acceptable

Trere has been ncthing brought 1o the Comm tee's
atte~tion in respect of the finarc.a) staterents for
the year erded 31 March 2023 that was mater al
or significart or that tre Comrmittee feit should be
bre.grtto shareroiders attent’'on

Auditor assessment and independence
Tre Compary's external auditor, KPMG LLP (KPMG )
was appcted as tre Company's aaditor at the 2076
GM. The Com™ittee undertock a review durnrg
41 1o ensure trat shareroders were rece v ng
tne best services and value for mo-ey A ~umber of
firms were myited to express interest and respond
or asmal ndrber of key pomits The decisior was
Tade for tihe aud't to rermair vtk KPMG Tis s WMr
NMerchant s gecond vear as tre Company's Audit
Fartner

Tne Committee expects 1o repeat a terder process

~ciaterttan 2026 ~respect of tre aud tfortne

Fa o 371 Marer vear end momewetn tre current
Ldtrege atc s

At trebafyeal meetirg of tre Co~yttee, KPMG
presented ther audtpar fortnevearendardt-e
Cor ttee cors dered tre acd't process ard fee
propcsa T-e Com v ttee a'se revewed KPMG'S
~depe-derce poicies a~d procedares ~cudng
G.a tyass.ra~ce p oceaures It was corsidered trat
trose po cesarefitfor puipose ard tre D rectors
gre zat f’wmd trat VP 13 e rdependent

Tota fees pavabetct-e Aodtar ~respectoft-e
a.dtfortrevear1o 51 March 2023 were

£OT 0002022 £RZ 00D v o ierte appIC e by
t

~e LAt Camm e ties

The Commutiee bas approved and arp.emented

a po. oy on the ergagemrent of tre Auditor 1o
sJpply nor-audt services, tlak rgiric account the
recommerdations of tne Accourting Practices
Board with a v'ew to ensuring that tne exterra’
Auditor does not provide ron-audit services tat
nave the potert.alto impair or appear tc'mpan the
rdependerce of treraudt rowe naddiion, the
Committee reviewed the act:ons put in place hy
the Auditor to ensure there was a ciear separation
betweer aJdt and advisary services. The Comrmittes
does not believe there (o be any impedmment 1o tre
Auditer's objectivity and mdependence

Fuil detaiis of the Auditor's fees are provided - rote
& to the accounts or page 85. The fees for non-
audit services for the vear to 371 March 2023 were r
12022 nily

Fo'low.ng eacn audit the Comm ttee reviews the
aJdd't process ard considers ts effectiveness
and the gua ty of the serv ces provided to the
Corpany. W.ihi ths process, the Committee
takes Irto comsideration tnerr own assessmert, the
self-evaluaton of the audtor and the Avdit Quanty
Rev'ew Report produced by the FRC n order o
Totor tne progress of the Auditor's performance
cemparahie ve.th s peers and the targets set by
the FRC Trerev ew fol'owirg the comp'etion of
the 2023 a.d t corcluded that the Comrutiee
was sat.sfied w.in the Audtors effectveress ard
perforrarce Tre Comttee fe't that KEMG rad
ro an effective ard efficent aud t process w tr
appropr ate cnaterge Aresolut or 16 re-appomt
KPMG LLP as tme Company's Addior wirbe put to
srarero ders at e forthco™ ~g AGIM

Tim Gillbanks
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Directors’ Remuneration Report

Introduction

Tre Board nas prepared this report ard tee Drectors’
Reruneratior Policy. . accordance with the
requrements of Scheduie 8 of the Large ard Medium
Sized Comrpanies and GroLps (Accounts and Reports)
Reguatons 2013 Anordirary resolution for the
approval of this repart wiii be put to the members at the
farthcoming Arrual General Meeting

Tre aw requires the Company's Auditor, KPMG LLP
lo acdit certain of the d sclosures provided Where
discosures have beer aud.ted, they are .ndicated
as such The Audtor's opinicn is included in the
‘Independent Auditor's Report’

Annual statement from the chairman
of the committee

The MEC met in Marchk 2023 and corsidered the resu'ts
and feedback fiom the Board evaluation It was agreed
that the Directors’ fees wou'd be increased, with effect
from 1 Aprl 2023, to the following .evels' Chairman
£73,000; Audit Committee Chairman £43,000; Senior
Independent Director £43,C00, and other Directors
£37.000.

Directors’ remuneration policy

The Company's policy is that the fees payable to the
Durectors shauld reflect the time spent by the Board on
the Company's affairs and the responsibiities borne
by the Directors and should be sufficient to enable
candidates of gh calibre to be recruited. The policy 1S
for the Chalrman of the Board, the chairman of the Audit
Commuttee and the Senior Independent Director to be
paid higher fees than the other Directors in recognition
of their more onercus roles. This policy was approved
by the members at the 2020 AGM, and the Directors’
intention s that this will continue for the year ending
31 March 2024 In accordance with the requlations,

an ordinary resolution to approve the Diectors’
remuneration policy will be put to sharenclders at the
forthcoming AGM on 20 July 2023, as required every
three years

The Directors are paid in the form of fees, payable
monthly in arrears, to the Director personally orto a thud
party specified by that Director There are no long-term
ncentive schemes, share option schemes or pension
arrangements and the fees are not specificaily related

to the Directors performance, edner individually or
collectively

Annual Recort & Accounts 2023

The Board comprises entirely of nion-executive Directors,
whose appomtments are reviewed formally every year
None of the Directors have g contract of service and a
Director may resign by notice in writing to the Bcard at
any time, there are no notice penods and no payments
made for loss of office The terms of their appomiment
are detailed in an appomtment fetter when they join the
Board As the Directors dao nat have service contracts,
the Company does not have a pohicy on termunation
payments The Company’s Articles of Association
currently et the total aggregate fees payable 1o the
Board to £300,000 per annum.

Any shareholders’views in respect of Directors’
remuneration are corrvmunicated at the Company'’s
AGM and are taken inlo account in formulating the
Directors remuneration pohcy At the 2022 AGM,

99.8% of sharecholders’votes cast were in favour of the

resoiution approving the Directors Remuneration Report,

with 0 2% agamst, showing very significant shareholder
support

The components of the remuneration package for
Non-executive Diractors, which are comprised in the
Directors’ remuneration policy of the Company are
set out below, with & description and approach to
determmahion

s
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Directors’ Remuneration report

continued

Remuneration Type

Fixed Fees

Tne aggregate imit for
tne fees for the Roarg
as a whole s £300000
per annum whcn,
accorcance with tne
Artcles of Association,
s civided between the
Directors as they ceem

Additional Fees

Acditional fees may be paid
to any Director who *uitils the
roie of the Chaimman, who
chalrs any comm tize of the
Boarc o wnois appomntec
zs the Senor indepencent
Cirecton

These fees are setat a

Expenses

The Directors are entitled

“o be paig &t reasonatle
expenses prope’ly incured

by themn attencing meetings
W th sharenoc.ders or otner
Drectcre or otheny sein
connecion wiih the dischage
of their cut es as Cirectors

Other

Boarc members are not

e gible for bonuses. pens'on
benefits, share opr ons,
ong-termimcentive schemed
or otne” non-cash benef ts or
taxable expenses

agpropriate
Fprop compentive level 1o reflect

experience and time
comm timent

Fees are se* 1o reflect
tne ~oe of eacn Boara
member ana the time
comm tment requ.red

10 Carry out therr duties
and are reviewea with
reference 1o tne fees pad
to Drrectors of simila-
investment companies

Annual remuneration report

For the year enced 31 Marcn 2023, Directors fees we e paia at the annuai rates of Cna “man £72,030 (20322 {70.0C0;
&NG al other Directors £36,000 (2022 £36.000; A1 additiona £6.000 was paig per annum for eacn of the "o es of Auc t
Camm tee Chamman and Senor independent Jrectar Tne actual amaounts pa o to the Sirectors duning <ne financ 2 year
under rev-ev are as shown beow

Amount of each Director's emoluments (audited)
“he fees pavahle n respect of each of *he Cireciors whe servea duing the financ al year were as fonows

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
£

£
David watson 72,000 70,006
Simon Marrison 14,000 40,000
Tim Gitllbanks 42,000 40.000
Kate Bolscver - 40,069 35,000
Sarah-Jane Curtis 36,000 35,000
Andrew Vaughan 24,000 -
Busoia Scdeinde _ i _ S BE3 o B -
Tota 234,900 220060

ancihe s 16y
TG Laymen
COMmEsETy v

enigned o U Brard nnZe Ju v 2

zpponted Senor ndependent [

[

zntedto

don 1 lugust L

appa nitedte tie Baasdon D4 danuan. 20272

i
I
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Company performance

Tre graph below compares, for the ten years ended

31 March 2023, tne percentage charge over each penod
the share price total return to sharenolders compared
ta the share pr ce total returr of benchmrark, which the
Board considers to be the most appropriate benchmark
for investment performance measdrement purposes An
explanation of the performrance of tne Company 1s given
nthe Charrrman's Staterment and Manager's Report

Ordinary Share Class Performance: Total Return
over 10 years (rebased)

4000 - - - - - -
2530
3003
2530
2000

1520

1000

[SEISHICHN ' I R T DO APTL-S LE Mar18 Mar1= Ma 200 Kasll 0 B Z00 Llat S

M 7% Property Share Prce Total keturn [l Benchmark Totat Returr

Share Price Tota. Return assuming investment of £1,000 on 31 March
2013 andreinvestment of all dividends (excluding dealing expenses)
{Source Thames River Capital)

Benchmark Total Return assuming notional investment inta the index of
£1,000 on 31 Marcn 2013. (Source Thames River Capital)

Directors’ sharehoidings (audited)

Tre interests of the Directors in the shares of the
Corpany, at the begirnng and at the end of the vear, or
date of appontment, if later, were as follows

Ordinary shares of 25 pence

31 March 2023
or as at date of
31 March 2022

appointment

David Watson 47,864 36,407
Kate Balsover 2,360 2,360
Sarah-Jane Curtis 10,009 5237
Tim Gillbanks -

Busola Sadeinde - n/a
Andrew Vaughan 11,077 n/a

S'nee 371 March 2023 to the date of this report, there nave
been no changes to the Bivectors’ interests n1ne shares of
the Company

Annuat Report & Accounts 2023

Relative importance of spend on pay

2023 2022

£'000 £'000 Change
Dividends paid 47127 45387 38%
Drrectors fees o228 220 36%

Five year change comparison
Over the last five years, Directors’ pay has increasec as se:
out in the takle be ow

Change

2023 2078 over Annualised

£000 £'000 Syears Change
Chairman 72 70 2.9% 06%
Audit Committee
Chairman 42 38 10.5% 2.0%
Senior
Independent
Director 42 38 10.5% 2.0%
Director o 36 33 9% 1.8%

Annual percentage change in Directors Fees

The tabie below sets out the annual percentage change
fees for each cireclor who served in the year under review,

pqeiERL I % change % change
lifel ity from 20271 from 2020
102023 102022 10 2021
CULIGCHOM (audited)  (audited)
Director % % %
David Watson +2.9 +15.80 +51 2
Simen Marrison -65.0% +4.10@ +97-
Tim Gillbanks +5.0 00 00
Kate Bolsover +145 ¢ 0.0 +100.0 -
Sarah-Jane Curtis +2.9 0.0 +449.3 -
Andrew Vaughan n/a-: n/a n/a
Busola Sodeinde. n/a¥ nfa  n/a
Appo cled gt OnE emaa e th et gl ZOT0 nrense el et
e n s partves and snbsequert il v nthe s

AP e Len o socoendentoer

IMCTERGE T
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Y
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For and on behalf of the Board
David Watson
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Statement of Directors' responsibilities in relation
to the Group financial statements

Trhe Directors are respens bie for preparning the Anrua,
Report ard the Group and Farent Company firanc.al
statements ir accordance with appicabie law and
reguatons

Company law reguires the Directors to prepare Group
and Parent Company finarc.a statements for each
firanc:a' year Directors are requred 10 prepare tne Group
financial statements . accordarce with UK-adopted
nierratonai accounting standards and app.icable

law and nave elected 1o prepare the Parent Company
financial statements on the same bas s

Under corrpany iaw the Directors must not approve

the financial statements urless trey are satisfied that
trey give a true and fair v.ew of tre state of affarrs of tne
Group and Parent Company and of the Group's profit or
loss for that period 11 prepanng each of the GroLp ard
Parent Compary ‘irancial statemrents, the Directors ale
reqguired to.

select sutab'e accourting poicies and apply them
corsisterily.

mMake judgements and estimates tnat are reasonable,
relevartand rel able,

< state whetner (rey have been prepared . accordance
wetnimtereational account rg standards ir conform ty
wit~ t~e requirements of UK-adopted intermationa’
accou~ting stardards

- assessthe Group ard Parent Company’s ablity to
cont ©Leasagorgconcer, dsc'esrg. as applcahle
matters related to go rg corcerrn, and

Lse tme go g concer bagis of accodrting un ess
trev e ther riendic’ guidate the Greep or (ne Parert
Compary or to cease operations or Fave "orea shc
aternat ve but tc do so

T~e Drecters are respons e for keepng adeguate
accoo~t rgrecords trat are sufficient to show a~d

exp antre Pare~t Corpary's trarsacto~s a~d d-scicse
w th reascrabie accuracy at ey e the firarca
postar oftre Pare~t Co~parva~denabetrer ic
ersore tmat its 1hanca stateestscorpy wik tre
Copames Act 2006 Treyare respers ble far suee
~tertai cortro as ey deter™ —e s necessary tcenab
trepreparat o~ of fina~c a stateme~tsirataefree fro
Tateral ~ sstatemet wretrer doetc fracd or srror
ardrave ge-era resgors b oty for tak rg seon steps as
arereasumalyy ope 1o the 1o safegoard e assets
sfire Groopandtoprevertand detect frand a~d other
aregolantes

fa

o
o

Under appl.cabe ‘aw a~d regulatiaors, the Directors
are also responsible (o1 preparnng a Strateg c Report
Directors Report Directors Rerunerat on Report
ard Corporate Goverrance Statemert.

Tre Directors are responsible for tne mairtenarce
and .ntegnty of the corporate and fimarcial
nformation meiaded on the Company's webs te
Leg slatior intnhe UK governimg the prepaiation ard
d sseminat on of firancial staterrents may differ
from legisiation 1 otner junisdicthions

In accordarce with Disclosare Gu'dance and
Trargparency Ru'e 41 14R \Fe firarciai statenents
wil form part of the anrua “inancia. report prepared
Lsing the sitgle e ectronic report-g format under
the TD ESEF Regl'ation The Avdtors report on
tnese financia, statements provides no assurance
cver the ESEF format

Responsibility statement of the Directors
in respect of the annual financial report
Facn of the Drectors corfirms tnat 10 the best of
tner krnowedge

+ tmefirancal statemenrts, prepared in accordarce
witn t1e applicable set of accourt.ng sta~dards,
gveatieeardfan vew of tre assets "abiities,
firarciai postior and profit or 'oss of the Group
ard Pare~t Company and the undertakings
Acluded ~1ne corschdator taken as a wnele ard

tne strateqic report ‘roiudes a far rev ew of tre
deveioprent and performance of the husness
and tme postior of theissuer and the undertakirgs
mciuded in the consoiidat o taken as a wnole
togetner w (> a descr ption of the pr nc’pa’ risks
and Lncettarties that they face

Tne Directors consder tnat tne AnLag Report
a~c Acco.rts taker asawhoe s far baarced
ard s~derstardab e ard prov destre ~forraton
~ecessary for srare~ciders to assess tre Graop's
posit o~ a-d perforrarce bus ness mode ard
strategy

By order of the Beard
David Watson

TR Sroper Ireestrent Trast



Independent audilor’s report

to the members of TR Property Investment Trust Plc

01 Our opinion is unmodified

We have audited t1e firanc al statements of TR Property
Investment Trust #lc {the Company’y for tne year

ended 31 March 2023 wnich comprise the Group
Statement of Cormrprehersve Income, Group and
Company Statements of Charges i Equity, Group and
Company Balance Sheets, Group and Company Cash
F.ow Statements and the related ~otes, including the
accounting polic’es inrote 1

In our opinion:

- e fingneial statements give a tree and fair view of
tne state of the Group's and of tne parert Company's
affars as at 31 Marcn 2023 and of the Group's return
forthe year then ended,

- the Group firancial staterents have been properly
prepared in accordance witt UK-adopted international
accounting standards,

« the parent Corrpany financial statements have been
properiy prepared in accordance witr UK-adopted
rternat’onal accodnting standards and as app ied
accordance wth the provisions of the Companies Act
2006, and

- thefinancia staterments nave been prepared in
accordance w'th the requrements of tne Corpanies
ACt 2006

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit naccerdance with Internaf onal
Standards on Auditing (UK) {15As {UK) j and applicable
law. Cur responsibil ties are descr'bed below We bel eve
that the audit evidence we have obtaned s a sufficient
and appropriate basis for cur opion. Qur audit opimMion
Is consistent with cur report {o the audit committee.

We were first appointed as auditor by the Directors on

2 Noveraber 2016 Tre perod of tota: uninterrupted
engagement |s far the sever financia years ended

31 March 2023, We nave fulfilled our eth.cal
responstbilities under, and we rerrair independent of
the Group in accordance with, UK ethical requirements
ncluding the FRC Ethical Standard as applied to listed
publc interest entities. No ron-audit services prohibited
by that standard were prov.ded.

Overview :

Materiality: group £105m (2022: £16.8m)
financial statements 1% {2022 1%} of Total Assets

as a whole

Key audit matters vs 2022 vs 2022

Recurring risks Valuation of direct preperty <)
investments )
Carrying amount of listed <)
investments

02 Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of materiai misstatement

Key audit matters are those matters that, n our professiaral judgement, were of most sigrficance in the avdit of the
financ al statements ard include the most significant assessed risks of material misstaterment (whether or not due
to fracd) identified by us, including tiose which had the greatest effect or the overall aud't strategy; the allocation of
resources in the audit, and directing tme effoits of the engagement team We sumrar.se below the key audit matters
{uncha~ged from 20272, in decreas™q order of audit sigrificance, ™ arriveg at our audit op.nion above, togetner

with our key audit procedures to address tnose matters ard our find rgs from those procedures in order that the
Corpanvs menbers, as a body may understand better t1e process by witch we arnived at our acdit op ion Tnese
“atters were addressed, and ouwr firdings are hased on procedures undertaker, 10 the context of and sole y for the
purpose of pur auadit of tne fimarcial staterrents as a wnoe. and n forming ou opmicn thereor, and consequently are
meidenta. to trat op rior, ard we do not prov.de a separate op n.on o these matters

annual Report & Accodnis 7023
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Independent auditor’s report

continued

02 Key audit matters: our assessment of risks of material misstatement

e rns Dur response

A

preoperty investments

aluation of direct

(Group and Parent)
{(£74.0 mul'ion,

2
£

R
§

022 £86 3milhion:

efer to pages 6210
2 (Audit Caommittee

Repecrty, pages §1 and 87

{accounting pol oy
on pages 89 10 92 (finar

d

(83

48]

isclosures:

ionote 10

ciz2

Subjective valuation:

707 (20225 7% of the Group's,

ana 6 8-12022 56%) of the Parent
Company's, total assets (by vauel a'e
field ' nvestment properties

The far value of each property requires
s gnvfizant estmation, In particularn witn
regard ta The estimated “enial va'ue ana
yield assumptions The assurmnpt ons
will be impacted by a number of factors
INciuaing guality ana condrt \o 1 of the
builcing and tenznt finanzial st-ength

The effect of these matters s*nat,

as part of our rnsk agsessment, we
determined that the valuation of
nvestment properties has g hign
degree of estimat on uncertanty. wih
notent al rznge of ~easonable out cUm s
greater than ous materalty for the
financial statements as awhole Tae

f nancial stetements (note 10) d scicse
the sens vty estmated by the Group

We performes the cetaled tests beiow rather
than seek.ng o rely on any of the Group's
coniols, because the nature of the halance
1s such that we wou'd expect to obta.n sudi
eviaence prmarily through the deta.led
procecures aescr bed

Ou-procedures cluded

« Assessing valuer's credentials: Using our own
property valuat.on specia'ist. we evaluated the
competence, experience and -ndependente of
the externa: valuer,

+ Tests of detail: We compared the informar on
providec by the Group ic s externai property
va'uer for a sample of properties, sucn s
“enias iNcome anc tenancy data 1o supporing
documents acluding lease agreements,

- Methodology cheice: We held ciscussions
with the Group's externa' property va uer ta
cetermne the vaiuat on methodology uses s
approprate Using ou gwr propetty valuation
Qpe"\a\\ st we crtcally assessed the resu'ls
¢ the vawer's repo T by checking that tne
vauaions weren aocordance with the RICS

‘aluation 2rofessiona) Standeards ‘the Rea
Book and IFRS anc that e methodo ogy
acopted was approp- aie by -eference 0
acceptable valuat.on practice,

Benchmarking assumptions: ¥t 1
ass'signce of our own property vailaton
spec.a st vwe held d.scussions w.ththe
Croup's evternal proper Le"ouwcercmmd
movements 1 property values For z sampie of
propeties, we assessed the key assumpt ons
used by tae va'uer uponwn en the valuetons
zre basec Mcluding Tose reiating o egtma'ed
‘enta value anc yield, by ma<ing a companisoen
W our ownuncderstand ng of the marxet and o
adustry benchmarks,

» Agsessing transparency: /e 5.80 CONS Gerec
the edecuazy of the Group s © sciosures about
"re cegresafestimat oend 5618 T v tv o <ey

SSUIMIPT 0N Mace when Jailing e oiect
t:-'operf}‘ T.esimen

Qur findings
Vee foung
p'@pe*f et o
ha.e 2ong
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e rs Our response

Low risk, high value:
Te portfolio of istea level 1

Carrying amount of
listed investments
{Group and Parent)
{(£872 1 milon,

2022 £1,456.5 mi lion)

Re‘er to pages 600 62
{Audt Committee Report),
page 82 (azcounting palicy
a'whnole 10 on pages 8v to
92 {(*nancia ¢ sclosures:

nvestments makes up 83 0% {2027

86 4% of tne Group's, and 8C 2% (2022
84.6%) of the Parent Company’s, tota:
assets (by vz ue) and s one of the key
crivers of -esulls We do not consider
these invesiments to be at & high risk of
material migstatement, or 1o be subject
~oa signfcant level of Judgement
because they comprise wqu.d, guoted

We performed the detallec tests helow rather
than seexing to rely on any of the group's
conl o ¢, because the nature of the balance
's such that we would expect to cbta naudit
evicence priman y througn tne getailled
procedures cegcnbed

Our procecures ncluded:

+ Test of detail: Agreaing tne valugtion of 1007
of .ever 1 hsted nvestmenis inthe portfoio to
externallv quotec prices, and

Investments However, due to therr

materiality in the context of the
financal statements as a who e, they
are considerec to be one of the areas
which hao the greatest effect on our

* Enguiry of custodians: Agreeing 100w of
leve' 1 hsted nvestment holaings in the
portfolio to Indepenaenty received third party
confrmations from invesiment custodians.

overa ! audit strategy and zilocation of
resources In piannng and campleting

our audt

Our findings

We found no differences from turc party
holdings confirmations nor from tne externaily
guoted prices of a size to require reporting to the
Audit Committee (2022, no differences?.

03 Our application of materiality and an
overview of the scope of our audit

Materiality for the Group firancial statements as a whoie
was set at £10 5mi (2022 £16 8m), determined with
reference to a berchmark of tota' assets, of wnich it
represents 1 0% {20271: 1 0%).

Mater al.ty for the parent Company firanc'ai statements
as awho'e was setat £9 97m (2022 £16 0m}, which

is the componert raterialty for tne Parent Company
determined by the Group audit ergagement team Th s
Is lower than the maternality we would otherw'se have
determined with refererce (o Parent Company total
assets, of which trepresents G 95% (2022 D 95%).

fn I'ne with our audt methodology, our procedures

on irdivdual account balances and disclosares were
performed to a lower threshaid performarce matenalty
50 as to reduce to an acceptable evel the rsk that
mdividualy immateria® misstatemerts in individuai
acoount ba'ances add up to a matenal amount across
tne financial staterments as a whole Performance
matenality was set at 75% (2022 75%) of mater.a ity
for the financial statemerts as a whcle, which equates
o £7.85m (2022 £12 &m) for the Group and £7 45m
(2022 £12rm) forthe Parent Campany We app 1ed
t~1s percentage 1IN our determirat.on of performance
mater ality because we did not ident.fyv ary factors
mdicatng an elevated evel of r sk

Annus! Kenort & Azcounts 2023

We agreed to report to the Audit Committee any
corrected or uncorrected dentified misstatements
exceeding £0.53 (2022 £0.84m) for the Group and
exceeding £0.5m (2022 £0 8m) for the Parent Company,
in addition to other identified m:sstatements tnat
warranted reporting on quartative thresho.ds.

The audit team performed the audit of the Group as a
single aggregated set of financia- information rather

than scop:ng ir indnvidaal components This approacn

15 Lnchanged from the priar year. The audit of the

Group and Parent Compary was performed us'ng the
materiaiity levels set out above and was performed by 8
single audit team. The scope of tne gud't work performed
was fully substantive as we did not rely upon the Group's
interral controls over financial reparting

Group Materiality
£16.5mM (2022: £16 8m)

Total Assets
£1,051m (2022 £1,686m)

£10.5m
whole financial statements
materiality (2022: £16.8m)

£7.85m

Whole financial statements
performance materiality
(2022: £12.6m)

£9.97m
Parent Company Materiality
{2022.£16 Om)

£0.5m

Misstatements reported
to the audit commitiee
(2022 £0.8m}

| Total Assets
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Independent auditor's report
continued

04 The impact of climate change on our audit
We rave performed a nsk assessrent of how the ‘'mpact
of c'imate change may affect tre firarc a' staterents
and our aud't. Leve 1 asted nvestrents make up

83 0% of the Group’s total assets for whicn fairvalue

15 determired as tre qaoted market price Therefore,

we assessed that the irancia, statemert estimate that

s primari'y exposed to cl.nrate nisk s the nvestment
property portfolio, for which tne valuation assumptions
and estimates may be immpacted by prysica a~d pohcy
or leqal climate r'sks, sucr as flocdirg cr an crease

i ¢ imate reiated compliance expenditure, We reld
discussions with odr owr clirmate change professionals
to chalienge cur r.ck assessmert. We assessed that,
whilst cl'mate cnange posed a risk to the determinat.on
of rvestmenrt property valuations i the current year,

tris rskwas rot sign ficart wihen cersdering bot tne
nature a~d domic le of the properties and the tenure of
unexpired leases Therefare, there was 0o sigr ficant
~pact of this or our key audt matiers

We nave read the disc'osure of ¢ imate re.ated narrative
i the front ha'f of tne firancia staterments ard
consdeied consistency witn the iiranc a' statements
ard our aud t knowledge,

05 Going concern

The Dreciors nave prepared tre frarc g' statements
o1 the going concern basis as they do raot ntend to
Lquidate tre Groap or the Compary or to cease therr
operations, and as thev rave conc vded trat the Group's
a~d the Copanys finrgncia postion means inat thig
sreatstic. They rave a'so concluded that there are ~o
~atenal uncertaint es tnat cou'd have cast s.g~fica~t
do.bt over then abiity to cont rue as a going corcern fo
at east a yvear from tne date of approva’ of the irancig!
staterrerts {t~e going corcerrn period’)

we used our kmow edge of the Growup ts ndostry,
a~dtrege-era ecoro™ cervranrrert to dertfy

tre ~rerentr sks g ts busress miode a~d ana ysed
~ow those 1 sks mrght affectt~e Group or Company's
firanc a resources o1 abr ity 16 co~t ue operat.ons over
tre gong oorcerr per od Trer sks that we cons.dered
most ke'ytoadverse v affecttre Groop or Corpany s
ava''able imarcialresources and ‘ts abl' ty to operate
overts s perod were

-

¢ Trerrpact of as g fica~treducticn ~the vauat
i

of =estrerts grdtne o cgtors fortre Gro

s~ O

Co~paryve debt coveracts

The aguidity of the investmert portfolic and ts abil ty
to meet the nab ies of the Group as ard wner they
fal' due: and

The operaticrai resil ence of key service orgar.sat ors

WWe considered whet er these 1'sks cou d plaus'bly affect
tne hguidity or covenant compl ance ir the going concern
period by assessng the degree of dewnside assumption
that, mdiv.dua'y and coectively cou'd resu't na aguadity
issue, taking ‘nto account 1he Group or Co™pany’s
current and projected casn and igquid investirent
posit.on{ard tre resu'ts of their reverse stress testng)

We cons'dered whetner tne goirg corcer” disciosure
ir note 1 gives a fuil and accurate descr ption of tne
Directors assessmert of gonrg concern, ~ciuding the
ident fled risks and refated senstivites

Our conc.Jds'ons based on thas work:

we cons derthat the D rectors’use of the gong
concerr basis of accoururgin the preparat.or of the
finarcia statements s appropriate,

we nave natidertified, ard corcur with tne Directeors’
assessmert {nat there's nct a matenal uncertarty
related to events or condmcns trat, nd v.dLaliy or
collect-ve v may cast sigrificant doubt or tne Group's
or Companys ab aty to cort.aue as a gong concern
for the go ng concern perod,

+ we have rotn g mater al to add or draw attertion 1o
ir refation ta the Drectors statement or the use of the
gorg carcerr basis of accourtng with 1o Materia
Jrcertairt es that ray cast sign-ficant doubt over
the Group and Companys «se of that bagis for the
go ng concern pencd and we foard the gong corcen
d-sclosure n note 110 be acceptable. and

- trere ated statemert urder tre L strg Re es set odt
on page 61 is ater a y congstertw v ine irarcal
Statemerts and ourandt krowiedge

However aswecantclpredcta fotureewertsor

conditors and as subsequert evenls Mgy reso 1

cJtcomes tmat are Coms stent wt judgements toat

wergreasorab e at tret ~e sy were vade e abo. g

are ot a goara~teetrat {~e Grozp orire
.

LG operat or

TF =roperty e sesrnen Trus?



06 Fraud and breaches of laws and
regulations - ability to detect

Identifying and responding to risks of material
misstatement due to fraud

To identify risks of matenal m sstater-ert due to fraud
{fraud risks’) we assessed events or cond tions that
could ind:icate ar rcentive or pressure to comimt fraud
or provide ar opporturity to commit fraud, Cur r1sk
assessert procedares ncluded

Erquiting of Directors as to (ne Group's nigh-ievel
pocies ard procedures to prevent a~d detect fraud,
as we! as wnether they have knowledge of any actua
suspected or alleged fraud.

+ Assessing ine segregatior of duties 1 place between
the Directars, the Administrator and tne Group's
Investment Manager, and

Read'ng Board and Audit Commuittee minutes.

Asrequired by aud.ting standards, we perform
procedures to address the nisk of management override
of contro s, in particusar tc tne nisk tnat management
may be In a pos tion to make nappropnate accourt ng
entries We communicated ident:fied fracd risk
throughout the audit team and remained alert to any
indications of fraLd throughout the aud't. We eva Lated
the design and implerrentation of the cortrols over
jodrnal entries ard other adjustments and made
ngu'r'es of the Adminstrator aboJt nappropriate or
unus.al activity relating to the processing of journal
entnies and other adjustments.

We substant vely tested all materiai post- closng
entries and. based on the results of our risk assessment
procedures ard understanding of the process, :nclud ng
the segregation of duties between the Directors and

tne Administrator, no further high-risk journal entrnes ar
other adjustiments were identified

Or this audit we have rebutted the fraud risk re'ated

to revenue recogrition becadse the revenue is

non- judgerental and stra:ghtforward, with lmited
opportunity for man:pulatior We d d notidentify any
s.gnificant unusual transactiorns or addit onal fraad r sks

Anrual Rezort & Accounts 20232

Identifying and responding to risks of material
misstatement due to non-compliance with laws and
regulations

we identified areas of aws and regulations that couid
reasonably be expected to nave a material effect on
the firarcia' statements from our gereral comTerca
and sector experence and through discuss on with
the Directors, the Irvestment Manager and the
Admiristrator (as required by auditing standards)

and discLssed w.th the Directors the policies and
procedures regarding compliance with aws and
reguiations. We commur cated dentified laws and
reguations throwghout curteam and rema.ned alert {o
any indications of non-compl.ance througnout the auadit
As the Parent Company 1s regulated, our assessment of
risks involved gan.ng an urderstanding of the contro!
environment including the entity's procedures for
complying with reguiatory reguirerments

The potertial effect of these laws and reguiat ons on the
financial statements varies considerably.

Firstly, the Group 1s subject to laws and regulations
that directly affect the financial statements including
firarcial reporting ieg.station (including re;ated
companies legislation), distributable profits .egislation,
and its qualification as ar Irvestent Trust under UK
taxation :egisiat.on, any breach of which couid lead to
the Group losing various deductions and exemiptions
from UK corporation tax, and we assessed the extent of
compliance with these laws and regulat'ons as part of
our procedures or the related financial statement 'tems

We assessed the legality of tne distributions made by
the Company ntre per:od based on comparning the
dividends paid to the d'stributable reserves prnor to each
d'stributicn

Secondly the Group 1s subject to many other aws and
regulations where tne conseguences of non-comp.iance
could nave a matenal effect on amounts or disclosures
in the financial statements, for instance through the
impostion of fines or 1t:gation We identified the
foliowing areas as those most akely to have such an
effect: money laundering, data protect.on, bribery and
corruption iegislation and certain aspects of Compary
leg-slatior recogrising the narcial nature of the
Group's activities arditsiega form Auditing standards
lim tthe required aud t procedures to dertify nor
complance with these laws and regulat'ons to enguiry
of the Directors and the Adninistrator and inspection of
regulatory and legal coirespondence, 'fany. Trerefore,
if a breach of operational regulat ons is not disctosed to
Js or evident from relevart correspondence, ar audit will
a0t detect that breach
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Independent auditor’s report
continued

06 Fraud and breaches of laws and regulations -
ability to detect -7 =

Context of the ability of the audit to detect fraud or
breaches of law or regulation

Cw ngto tre nherent smitations of an audit, tnere s an
unavardable nisk tnat we may rnot rave detected some
matenai Tisstaterrerts ntne firancia: statements, even
though we have properly planned ard performed our audit
accordarce with auditing standards For exampie, the
further removed non comrpaarce with 'aws and regulations
s from tne everts and transact ons reflected in tre financ a
statements, the less ikely the irterently mited procedures
requred by auditing stardards would idertify 1

I~ addt.on, as with any aud 1, there remained a higher risk
of non-detectior of fraud, as these may nvolve collusior,
fargery. ntentiona ommiss.ars, Misrepresertatians o1 the
overnide of i~ternal cortra s Gur audit procedares are

des gned to detect material msstatement We are 1ot
responsibie for prevetng nor-complance or fraud and
cannot be expected to detect non-comp iance with all laws
and reguiatiors

07 We have nothing to report on the other
information in the Annual Report

The Drectors are responsitle for tne otner irformation
presented in tne Araual Report togetner with te financia
statements Out cpinion on the “inancial statements
daoes not cover the other irformat on and, accordingly,
we dc not express an add top nicn of except as exphcly
stated below a~y form of assurance conc usiar trerecn

Currespons bityistoread tre other nformation and

i do’~g so cons der wretrer, based o cur financia:
staterments audit work tne .rformatontherenis
materaly M sstated or rconsistent witn tre finarc al
staterents or our audit k~ow edge Based soey o that
wiork we nave not idertified Matera r osstateents
tre ot~er ~formator

Strategic report and Directors’ Report
Based soey o ourwork or (g otrer ~forrator

+ we ~ave nctidetfied rmatera ~ sstateerts ~the
strateqic repcrt a~d the Drectars report

Tourep - or e mforal’or guen Crose reparis
fortre fina~ca year e cons stent w th tre firarc g
state~e~ts a~d

ool op T ot those reporis age beer predared
accordarce i tne Copan es A0 2505

Directors’ remuneration report

Imour opinior the part of the Directors’ Remunerat.on
Report tc be aud ted nas been properly prepared n
accordance win the Compan es Act 2006,

Disclosures of emerging and principal risks and
longer-term viability

We are requ red to perform procedures to dent'fy
whether tnereis a matenal inconsistency betweer
the Directors’ disclosures in respect of errerg.ng and
princ’pal nisks and the v abi'ity statement, ard the
firarcial statements and our audt knowedge.

Based on trase procedures, we have noth'ng material to
add or draw attent.on toir relation to

- the Directors confirmation wik =~ the Long-term
Viabinty staterent o~ page 41 1nat they nave carr ed
out a robust assessmert of the emerg ng and principa,
risks facing the Group, ircudmg those tnat wo.ud
tnreaten its busimess model, future performrance,
solvercy and liquidity,

« tre Principal and emerging risks ard ancertairt.es
disc.osures descrbing tnese nisks and now emerg. g
rsks are idertified, and explairing now they are be g
~araged ard mtgated, and

tre Drrectors' explanat on M ile Long term Viabi' ty
statement of how they have assessed the prospects
of tne Group, over wnat perod they rave dene so and
why tney cons dered tnat perod to be approprate, ard
tneir stateTert as lo whether t-ey have a reasorable
expectaticr that tne Group wi'. be ab e to cortinae

1 operatior a~d meet 1ts ab | t es as they fal. due
over tne pencd of trerr assess™ent imc.ud ~gany

re ated disc osures draw ng attertion 1c any necessary
gual icatiors or assurmplions

We are ascrequredicreview tre Lomgtenr VvV abity
staterert setoutor page 41 ard 42 under the L sting
RJ'es Based or tre above procedures, we mave
co~c.uded t7at tre abave d scicsures are matenany
cors.stertwithtre foanca staterettsand ourauct
«rCw edge

Corwork s ™ tedto assess ngtrese ~atters ~ tre
cortext of o ire k-cw edge acqured durrg our
fina~ca staterrentsacdt Aswecanrotpredcta
fioreevertsoreordtorsard as subseqoet eserts
Tray resst v oLtcoTesitat are oens stent
jedgeertstrat werereasoabe attret metrey
were ade tne abiserce of arvim Tgtorepoit oninese
state™erts ¢ rolagedgrartee as o toe SroLpsand

S
Co~pary's orger-terr s ab dy

“F Procerty Ircestmert Truss



Corporate governance disclosures

We are required to perform procedures to identfy
whetrer tnere is a matenal incons:stercy between the
Directors' corporate goverrance discloswores and tne
financial statements and our audit krowledge

Based o1 tnose procedures, we have corcaded that
each of the followng 1s mater.al y consistert with the
financial statemerts and our audt kncwledge.

« the Drectors’ statement tnat they consider that the
a~nual report and finarc.a statemerts taken as
awhole s fair balanced and understardable, and
provides the information necessary for snareholders
tc assess the Group's pesition ard performance,
business model and strategy;

- the section of tre annua report descrnbing the work of
the Audt Committee, inc uding the significant 1ssues
that the audit comm.ttee considered ir relation to
the financial statements, and how these 'ssues were
addressed, and

- the section of the annua: report that describes
the review of the effectiveness of the Group’s nsk
managemenrt and internal control systems

We are required to review the part of the Corporate
Goverrance Statemernt relating to the Group's
comrphance with tne provis’ons of the UK Corporate
Soverrance Code specified by the Listng Rules for our
review We have rothing to report 'r tnis respect

08 We have nothing to report on the other
matters on which we are required to report
by exception

Under the Compan’es Act 2006, we are required to report
to you of, In our opimon:

+ adeqguate accourting records have not beer kept by
the parent Company, or returns adeqguate for our audit
have not beer recewved from branches not vis ted
by us, or

- tre parent Company finangial statements and the part
of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be aud ted
are nat 1n agreement with the account g records and
returns, or

- certan d sclosures of Directars' remuneration
spec:fied by iaw are rot made, or

» we have not received a the information and
expranations we require for our audit

Vil o
VY AN

o]
]

nothirg to report i these respecis

Lnniual Report & Accodn's 2027

09 Respective Responsibilities

Directors’ responsibilities

As explained more fully ' therr staterment set out

01 page 66, the Directors are respons ble for the
preparation of the finrancial statements ircluding being
satisfied tnat they give a true and fair view, stch internal
contro- as they determ.ne 1s recessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements tnat are free from
material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error,;
assessing the Group and parent Company's abiity to
continue as g going cercern, disc.esing, as applcable,
matters related to gomg concern, and Lsing the gomg
concern basis of accounting unless they either intend to
iqu.date the Group or the parent Company or to cease
operations. or have no realistic alternatve but to do so

Auditor’s responsibilities

Qur object'ves are to obtanreasonable assurance
abodt whether tne financial staterrerts as a whole are
free from material misstatemert, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue oLr opinion i an auditor’s report,
Reasonabie assJrance is a high eve! of assurance,

but does rot guarantee that an aadit condacted n
accordance with 1ISAs (UK) will always detect 2 material
russtatement when it exists Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material 'f,
ndwidually or in aggregate, they couid reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of the firancial statements

A ful-er description of our resporsibinties 1s
provided an tne FRC's website at www fre org.uk/
auditorsresponsibilites

Tne Corpary srequred toirc.ude tnese ‘inanc al
staterments in an annial finarcial report prepared using
the single electroric reporting format specified M the
TD ESEF Regulzt or This avd:tor's report provides ro
assararce over whetker the anndal inarcia: repert has
been prepared i~ accordance with that forrmat
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Independent auditor's report
continued

10 The purpose of cur audit wark and to
whom we owe our responsibilities
Trisreportis made sole'y 1o the Compary's members,
as a body. N accordarce witn Crapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Commpanes Act 2006 ard the terms of our engagement
by the Compary Oudr audit work has been undertaker so
that we ~ight state to tre Company's imembers those
matters we are requ-red to state tc tnem in an aaditor’'s
report and the further matters we are required to state
to therm in accordance witn the ternrs agreed w th

the Company anrd for ra other purpose To the fulest
extent permitted by law, we do not accepl or assurme
responsibility 1o anyore other than the Company and the
Corrpany's members, as a body. for our aud twark, for
tris report, or for the oprions we have forred

Do Whgr b

Philip Merchant (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of KPMG LLF, Statutory Auditor

KPMG
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Group statement of comprehensive income

Year ended 31 March 2023 Year ended 31 March 2022
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital
Return Return Return Return Total
Notes £000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
Income
Investment income 2 52,077 - 52,077 44170 . 44170
Other cperating income 4 255 12 267 5 - 5
Gross rental income 3 3,513 - 3,513 2773 2773
Service charge income 3 946 - 946 1103 - 1,103

(lLosses)/gains on investments
held at fawr value 10 - (549,430) (549,430) - 249,038 249038

Net movement on foreign
exchange; investments
and loan notes - (2,780) (2,780) - 1,136 1,136

Netl movement on foreign
exchange, cash and cash

equivalents - 2,016 2,016 - 637 637
Net returns on contracts for

difference 10 9,462 (45,556) (36,094) 5,701 16,361 22,062
Total income 66,253 (595,738} (529,485) 53,752 267172 320924
Expenses

Management and performance

fees 5 {1,560) (4,680) (6,240) (1,663} (29,477) (21,140}
Direct property expenses, rent

payable and service charge costs 3 (1,660) - (1,660) (1.439) - (1,435}
Other administrative expenses s} {1,163) (542) (1,705} (1,621} (608) (2229}
Total operating expenses (4,383) (5,222) (9.605) (4,719) (30,085} (34,804)
Operating profit/ (loss) 61,870  (600,960)  (539,090) 49,033 237,087 286,120
Finance costs 7 (1.146) (3,438) (4,584) (629) {1,886 (2.515)
Profit/{loss) from operations

before tax 60,724 (604,398) (543,674) 48,404 235,201 783605
Taxation 8 (6,087) 2,495 ~ (3,592) (4.567) 3,049 (1918)
Total comprehensive income 54,637 (__601,903) (547,266) 43,437 238,250 281,687
Earnings/(loss) per QOrdinary

share g 17.22p  (189.67)p  (172.45)p 13 69p 75.07p

-

aiemen represents e Croups Statement of Comprehensie Income pregaret i accore
Jecoount ng stence-es Tae Revenue Returarc {gp e Return ro.umns g7 supp'ementarn,
22 pab gned by Tne Agsoc aten o Investment Zoampenies A temsan the ako. g slatemen:
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Group and Company statement

Group

of changes 1n equity

Share Capital
Share Premium Redemption Retained
Capital Account Reserve Earnings
For the year ended 31 March 2023 Notes £'000 £'000 £'000 £000
At 31 March 2022 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,396,268 1,562,739
Total comprehensive income - - - (547,266) (547,266}
Dividends paid 17 - - - (47,127) {47,127)
At 31 March 2023 79,338 43,162 43,971 801,R75 Q968,346
Company
Share Capital
Share Premium Redemption Retained
Capital Account Reserve Earnings
For the year ended 31 March 2023 Notes £'000 £000 £'000 £'000
At 31 March 2022 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,396,268 1,562,739
Total comprehensive Incame - - - (547,266) (547,266}
Dividends pafd 17 - - - (47127 (47,127)
At 31 March 2023 79,338 43,162 43,971 801,875 968,346
Group
Share Capital
Share Premium Redemption Retained
Capital Account Reserve Earnings Total
For the year ended 31 March 2022 Notes £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £'000
At 31 March 2021 79,338 43162 43971 1,159,962 1,326,433
Total comprehensive Income 281,687 281,687
Dividends paid 17 o . (45381)  (45387)
At 31 March 2022 79,338 43,162 43,971 1,396,268 1,562,738
Company
Share Capital
Share Premium Redemption Retained
Capital Account Reserve Earnings Total
For the year ended 31 March 2022 Notes £000 £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
At 31 March 2021 79338 43,162 43,971 1,159,962 1,326,433
Total comprehensive income - - 281687 281,687
Dividends paid 17 - (453871} (45,381)
At 31 March 2022 79,338 43762 43971 1,396,268 1,662,739

The notes fromi pages 80 10 104 form pat of these F nanzia Statemens

Arniaa Report & Accounts 2022

MIIAIBAQ

uoda. o1631eNnS

JOUBLIDA0D

24
o
1)
@
&
<
o
3
&
s
nal
=
o
a.
o
[N
=]
]
£
£
rn

WOV Jo 30noN

UORBWIIOUI JDP|OYBIBGS



Group and company balance sheets

Company Group Company
2023 2022 2022
Notes £'000 £'000 £000
Non-current assets
Investments held at fair value 10 948,672 948,672 1,506,436 1,506,436
Investments in subsidiaries 10 - 36,292 36,297
Investments held for sale 10 ) - - 48880 48,580
948,672 984,964 1555416 1,581,713
Deferred taxation asset 12 903 903 903 ) 903
949,575 985,867 1,556,319 1592616
Current assets
Debtors 12 65,287 65,293 97 673 97,208
Cash and cash equivalents 36,071 36,069 32,109 32107
101,358 101,362 129782 129315
current liabilities 13 (23,654) (59,950) (66,109) (101,939)
Net current assets 77,704 41,412 63,673 27376
Total assets plus net current
assets/(liabilities) 1,027,279 1,027,279 1,619,992 1,619,682
Non-current hiabilities 13 (58,933) __(58,933) (567.253) {57253)
Net asgets ) B 968,346 968,346 1,562,739 1562739
Capital and reserves
Calied up share capital 14 79,338 79,338 79,338 79338
Share premium account 15 43,162 43,162 43162 43162
Capital redemption reserve 15 43971 43,971 43971 43971
Retained earnings 16 B01875 801,875 1.396.268 1396268
Equity shareholders’ funds 968,346 968,346 1562,739 1,562,739
Net Asset Value per:
QOrdinary share 19 305.13p 305.13p 492.43p 492 430
Trese financ a. statemenrts v &0 apprCred By the airesto7s of TR Propetty nvestment Trustplo Camipany No 84497 290
SUTOr st Torissue o 1 June 2025
D Watasn
D Watson
Director
Trenctes fro~ pages 20 o " Cafor™ part of tnese Rirarc g Statererts
e TR Sroperty lrvestmert Tras



Group and Company cash flow statements

Company Group Company

2023 2022 2022

£'000 £'000 £'000
Reconciliation of profit from operations
before tax to net cash outflow from
operating activities
{Loss)/profit from operations before tax (543,674) (543,674) 283,605 283,605
Finance costs 4,584 4,584 2,515 2515
Losses/(gams) on investments and
derivatives held at fair value through profit
or loss 594,986 594,990 (265,399) (258387}
Net movement on foreign exchange; cash
and cash equivalents and loan notes (336) {336) (977) (9773
Scrip dividends inciuded n investment
income and net returns on contracts for
difference {6,325) (6,325) (10,839} (10,839)
Sale of investments 448,587 448,587 544,370 544370
Purchase cf investments (427,509) (427,509} (430,830) {430,831}
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments and
accrued incame (978) (978} 8 8
Decrease/(increase) in sales settlement
debtor 30,399 30,399 (32.871) (32,871}
Increase in purchase settlement creditor 3,172 3172 5170 5,170
Decrease in gther debtors 1,419 1,413 2,851 2,851
(Decrease)/increase in other creditors ~ (22,265) (21,797} 13809 6,798
Net cashflow from operating activities
before interest and taxation 82,060 82,526 171,812 111,612
Interest paid (4,584) (4,584) (2,515) {2,515)
Taxation paid o . (3,403) (3.869) {1,258) (1,258)
Net cashflow from operating activities 74,073 74,073 107,739 107,739
Financing activities
Equity dividends paid {(47,127) (47,127) (45,381) (45,381)
Repayment of loans (25,000)_ (25,000) (60,000) {60.000)
Net cashflow from financing activities _{72,127) (72,127) (105,387) (105,381)
Increase in ¢ash 1,946 1,946 2,358 2,358
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 32,109 32,107 29114 29,112
Net movement on foreign exchange; cash
and cash eguivalents 2,016 2,016 637 637
Cash and cash egquivalents at end of year 36,071 36,069 32,109 32,107
Tne notes fram pages 8010 104 form part of these Finangial Statements
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Notes to the financial statements

01 Accounting policies
The financial statements for the year ended 21 Marcn 2023 have heen preparec on a going cancern bas s, 1N accorcance with
Uk-adopted inte'nationa accouniung standards znd n conform ty weth the recurrements of the CompameQ Act 2006 The f.nancial
staterments have also been prepared in accordance with 1ne Statement of Recommended Practice, 'F nancial Statements of
investmenit Trust Comparnies and Veriture Capital Trusts, ['SORPY, tothe extent that 11 consistent with JK adopted imernational
accouing standards

nassessing Gong Concern the Boare hag made 3 getaned assessment o the abil ty oF the Company and the Group to meet
s habl'res as they *a'l due, \nclud ng stress anc guicty tests whooh considered tne effectz of subsiant a/fails ininvestment
valuations, revenues received and market | guiaity as the globa economy coni nues 16 sutfer ¢ sruption due o inflat:onary
pressures, tng warin Jkraine and the after-effects of the COVID-18 pandemic

7 ught of the test ng carnec out, the Fquidity of the leve 1 asses held by tne Company and tne s go ficant net asset vale.
and the net curreni assel position of the Group and Parent Company, the Directors are satisfiec tnat the Company and
Group have adequate financial resources to cont nue in operation for at least the next 12 months following the signing of
e finzncial statements ang therefore it is appropr ate to adopt the gomg conzern bas's ¢ zccounting

The Group and Company financial statements are expressed m sterling, which 1s tnerr functional and presentational
surrency Ster. ng s the functional currency because it s the currency of the primary economic enviroment in which the
Group operates Values are rounded 1o the nearest thousanc pouncs [£ 00T except wnere othe wise indicated

Key estimates and judgements

The preparation of the fnancia’ statements necessar 'y requires te exerc se of juagemenst, botnin apelicat o0 of

accounting po'icies, wn cnare sel oui below, ana nthe selection of assumpt ans used in t1e ca'cuation of estimates
These estimates and judoomeﬂts are veviewed o an ongoing bas s anc are continuglly evaiuated baseo on h'stor cal

experence ana atne factors However, actua resul's may aiffer fromtnese estimates Tne anly key estimate

s considered 1o be the vawuat on of Investmen: properties See section (f) of this note ~hera are not considered

o be any kev juagements

a) Basis of consolidation

The Group financial statements consolicate the fnancial statements of the Company and ts subs diares o 37 Marzn
2023 Althe subsidiar es of tne Company have been conso! dated in these f.nanc.a, statemen’s Inaccordance wit
IFRS1C the Company has been designated 2s an nvesiment entity on the basis that

it obtaims funas from invesiors and provides those investors wih invesiment management serices;

st commits to 1t 7vestors that its business purpose s o invest *unds sole’y for ~eturns fom cap tal appreciation anc
avestment income, and

- it measues anc evaluates performance of substant ally & - 07 11s 1nvestments o1 a fa v2'ue basis

Eacn cf the subsidia-es of the Company was estabi.shes for the soe purpcse of aperating ar support ng tne investment
aperst-ons of the Company L noud Ag ra:s ¢ acdiienal financingi, and s 1ot nself ennvestmententty SRS 1C sels owt

matin the case of controllec entties that suppot The mvestment act v Iv af tne qvestment entty, inose ent tes shouic be
consoldatec “ather tnatpresented as invesiments at “a r value Accorcingy ine Company nas conscedated the resu ts
anc fnancie postons of tnose subsidiares

Subsic ares are conso idated from t1e date of the 1 acqu stion bemg ne dzteon “r‘u:ﬁ the Company obta ns conto . ang
contnue to he consel dated unt] the dete tnat such contro ceases Toe fimanc al statements of subsicia-es used 1n the

Lreparauon o"’me consc' c‘%*eﬁ ‘Inanca’ statements are bgsea on consistent accounting polc€s Al ntE-greup baances ana
Fa'TSoCtC’” slud 1g unteal sed profits arsng therefrom, are enminated
b) Income
S ulcencs rece - «cb €07 equty Sha €3 a€ T"ealec 35 "evenue ‘0" The vear on an &x-C.v cend basis Yihere g ex-div cenc
nste s a/2 abig o v cenas rece vah e oo belore the yea-enc are Tesied as "evenue “o7 the vea ©Cy 2107 § Mage
for any divicencs not expectec to be rece ved Vinere The Group has electec o -ece ve tmese o v dengs 1 the form of
ade tor .a' shares ratner Than cas e amount of casn o vicenc foregone s recogn sec s ncoeme L fferences beteeen
e value of 4 ‘EC @70 TTE CEST m.‘zmr* Oregone &'e "ecogTsed nine capta etutns of the Group Sretemen
o' Comprehens ve mcome “he fxed returns o debt securites ere recngn seC QN & T Mme appcTicnment Basis so csic
'oﬂe" the e*fest ve yigiC on eaci SusT secu” iy mterestrecen.ah e from 2ash and 51071 M Cepos s

£1¢ of Tne year Stodk .engig Tcome & 'e“of“”l SEC 0T 87 aJJu: shass ondenwyr I “c COMMEs 00 51
AR ess any snares under ‘80 A7e "eqy - fnepro
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Accounting policies
c) Expenses

Al expenses and “ nance costs are acoountec for on an accruals basis An ana'ysis of retained earnings broken gown nto
revenue and cap.al tams.s given i1 10te 16 In ariving at this breakdown, expenses nave been presented as revenue
Items except as follows

- Expenses which are incicental to the acquisition or disposa of an investmen:,

« Cxpenses are presented s capita whe'e a connection witn the ma ntenance or enhancement of the value of the
avestimients can be demanstrated, i1 s includes nrecoveable VAT incurred on costs relating to the extension of
resicetial leases as premiums recerved for extending or terminating leases are recognised 1N the cap ta! azcount

- One quarter of the base management fee is chiargec ta revenue, with three cuarters allocstec 1o cap tal return o reflect
:he Board's expectations of long term mvestmen: returns Al' performance fees are charged 1o capital return,

- Tne fund administration, depositaty, custody and company secretar izl serv ces gve charged directiy to the Company and
are nc uded with 2 'Other admin'strative expenses’ Innote 6 These expenses are charged on the same basis as the base
management *ee; one gua~er to ncome and tree quariers 1o caplial

d) Finance costs
cu ated so as to give a constant rate

"he finance cost in respect of captal .nstruments otner than equily shares s ca.
ed 1o revenue and three quarters to

of retu'n on the cutstanding batance. One quarter of the finance cost 1s charg
cap.tal return,

e) Taxation

Current tax assets and habilities are measured at the amount expecied to be recovered from or paic 1o the taxation
authoriies, hased onlax raies and laws that are enacted ar substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

mcoime tax s charged or crecired directly to equity £ it relates to tems that are credited or charged to equity
Otherw'se income tax is recogrised in the Group Statement of Comprehens’ve Income.

The tax effect of different fems of expenditure is alocated between capital and ~evenue us'ng the Group's effective rate
of tax for the year The charge for taxation is hased cn the profit ‘or tne year and takes into account taxation deferred
because of temporary ¢ifferences between the treatment of certain items for taxation and accounting purposes

naccordance with the recommendations of the SORP the allocation methoa used to calculate tax relief on expenses
presented aganst capital returns in the suppementary informeation in the Statement of Comprehensive Income s the
‘marg nal basis® Under this basis, If taxable ncome s capabie of being offset entirely by expenses preseniec in the
revenue retu-n column of the Staternent of Comprenenswe Income, then no tax rel ef 1s transterred 1o the cap'tar column.

Deferred tax is the tax expectea to be payable o recoverable on differences between tne carrying amounts of assets
ana habilities 17 the Balance Sheet and the corresponding tax bases usec in the computation of taxable profit, and is
accountea for using the ba‘ance sheet .ability method. De‘erred tax habililies are recognised for af. taxahle temporary
differences and deferred tax assets are ~ecogn'sed to the extent that 1t 1s probable tnat taxzble profizs wiil be availab.e
against wnich dgeductible temporary differences can be utilised.

The Company s an -nvestmenttrust uncer s 1158 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 and, as such, is not | able for tax on
capital gains Capital gains ar's'ng in subsidiary companies are subject (o cap.tal gains tax.

f} Investment property

Investment property 1s measured nitially at cost inciuding transaction costs Transaction costs nclude transfer taxes,
professional fees for iega: services and intial leasing commissions o bring the property 1o the condition necessacy “or
110 be capable of operating The carrying amount a.so mcludes the cost of replacing part of an existing nvestment
property al tne time that cost 's imcurred i the recogiition criternia are met. ~ he purchase and saie of properties s
recognisec to be effected on the date unconditional contracts are exchanged

Subseguent to it al recogrition, nvestment propery 1§ statec at fair value. Gains or losses &7 sing from changes n the
farvalues are ncluced in the Group Statemen: of Comprehensive Income in the year “1 which they arise,

Investmen: praperty 1s derecognised when it has been dispased of or permariently withdrawi from use and no future
econom ¢ beneft 18 expected from ts d-sposal Any gains or osses on the retrement or disposal of investmen: property
are recogn,sed i1 the Group Statement of Comprenens've ncome nthe year of disposal

Gans or losses on the disposal of nvestment property are determined as the d flerence between net disposal procesds
and the carrving value of the asser at the cate of disposal

Revaluation of investment properties

The Group carres 1ts investment properties at fan valug in accorgance w ih IFRS 13, revalued twice a year, wilh changes
infai- values bemc recagnised inthe Group Statement of C mprenensve ! ncorrie The Group engaged Kught Frank as
independent vaiuation specialists to determine fair va-ue as at 31 March 202
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

01

Accounting policies

Valuations of investment properties

Determination of the fa rvalue of investment propertes Nas been prepared 01 the basis defined Gy the RICS valuation -
C'obal Stendards (7 he Rec Book Globa Stancards) as follows

"The est matec amount for waich @ property snou'd exchange on the date of vaiuat on between a willing buyer and a
wil'ing seller 1in g arm's lencth transaction after prope” matket 1g wherein 11e parties nad each acied knowleageably,
prudently and without compu'sion”

The valuation tekes 1m0 account future cash flow from assets (such as lettings, tenants profies. future revenue streams,
capital va ues of fixtures and fitt ngs. plant and mach ey, any envircnimenta’ matters and the overa. repair a1c cond.1.on
of tne property) and g'scount rates appacab e 10 *hose assets These assumpiions are based on locai market zondr ons
exi1sting at the talance sheet date

Imarriv ng at thei- estmates of fa v values as a* 31 March 2023, the valuers Yave usec the:r marke: knowleage and
profesaonaﬂ judgement and have not only reliea sclelvonh S!OHCdl transactional comparates Examples of inputs to tne
valuat.on can be seen ntne sensitivity anaiysis asclosed in note 10 (e)

Heid for sale mvestment are presented separately on the face of the 3a ance Sheet

Held for sale
investment property classifled as heia for sale s measdred far va'ue

This condiucn g regarded as met any winen the investmen: property s avalabie for immeg ate saein s present
conationanc the sz e 'sugh v prokab e

Management must be comm ied to a plan for seie with an active programme 1o1entify a buyer at a reascnab.e pricein
relat on to g fair value whicn should be expected o quahfy ‘or recognition as a comp'etec sale withun one yvear from-he
cate of - assication

Rental income

Rentaiincome recevab.e uncer opera: ng legses 1S recoga Sec on & straigit-hne bas:s over tne term of the iease, except
for conungent sentalincome wiich s recagn sed when it arses.

[Mcentives o7 lessees to enter 0 1e2se agreements or other negot ated rent free penoas agreed are spread evenly over
the 'ease term evenif ine payments are not made on sucn @ basis Tne iease term s ine non-cancellable peniod of the
lease together with any furtner term for whicn tne tenant has ‘he opt on tocont ue the lease, wnere, at the mception of
e lease tne directors zre recsumbh ceriam inat the tenant w ' exercise that opt on Premiums recerved 1o terminate or
extend eases are recognesed nthe cap ta' account of the Group Statement of Comprehens.ve income when they ar se

Service charges and expenses recoverable from tenants

nceme 87 sing from expenses recharged 1o tenan's 1s recognised nthe perod 7 whicn the expen " De contractuany
recoveteC Servce cnarges end other such recents are inc.uged gross of the resated costs 1re.e"1ue as e dretors
cons ger tnat the Croup 8218 &s pnsipa. in th s respect

g) Investments

When & purchase of salets Imace unae conraci, the terms of wh on require ael very w tnun the t meframe ¢f the reievant
mialkel, e Nvesiments conce e are "ecogn sed o derecagn Sed o tne race cate

A tne Grodp's investmenis gre aef neg
&

ide” RS as nvestmeriis *qu
a 8o cessribeq 1 inese f nanc E K

U cecasfarvavetioughpro™roriosshbut ae
I statements as nyestments nelo e

A vestmenis are des §netec upon iia recognition as value a1c ae Mmeasured at subsequent report g cates &t far
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for e en ‘WC 15 QN Y 871 NESve mat<er até ne ¢ at far va ue wich s hased o vaiuat ons mace by the Cret0s naccordance
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Accounting policies

Derivatives continued
CFIs are synthetic equities and are vawed by reference to 1he investments’ underly ng ma-ket values

The sources of tne returns uncer the cerivative contract 1e ¢ notional dividends, financimg costs, interest returns and
capita changes! are allocated to the revenue and capital accounts in ahgnment w.th the nature of the underlying source
of mzeme ana in zccordance wth the guigance given 'nthe A1C SORP Notuional civ deng incomme or expenses ars g o7
'ong or short positions are apporticned wholly o the revenue account Notional interest expense on leng positons 1s
apportoned between revenuea and capiial i aceordance with the Board's .ong term expected returns of 11e Company
rcurrently determimed to be 25% 10 the revenue account and 75% 1o captal reserves) Changes invelue elating to
under.ying price movements of secutities in 1elation to CFD exposures are allocated who ly 1o capitai reserves

h) Borrowings, loan notes and debentures

Al loans and aebentures are ininally recognised at the fair va,ue of the consideration recewed, less 1ssue costs where
appicahle Afer mimal recegnition, all imterest hearing Joans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amaortisec
cost Amottised cost is calculated by tak ng into account any discount ar prem um on settlement The costs of arrang ng
any interest bearing loens are capitalised and amortised over the fe of the 'oan on an effective :nterest rate basis

i} Foreign currency translation
Transactions nvolving fore'gn currencies are converted at the rate ruing at the date of the transaction

Fore gn currency monetary assets anc habilities are trans'ates into sterling at tne rate ru ng on the balance sheet date.
Fore gn exchange cifferences are recogmsed in the Group Statement of Comprehensive income,

j) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash anc cash equivaients are measured a3 amorisad cost ane compnse cash nhano and demand deposits
k) Dividends payable to shareholders

Interim dividends are recognised n the period in which they are paid and final dividends are recogn.sec when spproved
by sharehalders.

I} Adoption of new and revised Standards

Standards and Interpretations effective in the current period
The accounting potic'es sdopted are consistent with those of the previous consclhdated “inancial statements

Trere were no amendments to Imernational Finanaial Reporting Standards or Interpretations inat had zn effect during the perod

Early adoption of standards and interpretations

The standards issuec before the reporting date that become effective after 31 March 2023 are not expectec to have

a matenai effect on equity or profit for the subsequent perod The Greup has not early adopted any new internat.onal
Financia! Reparting Standard or "terpretation. Siandards, amendments and interpretations issued but 1ot yet effective up
1o the date of 1ssuance of the Group's mancial statements are hsted below:

IAS 1 Amendments - Classification of Liabi ities as Current or Non-Current (effective date amenced 1o ? January 2023)
The amendments specify the requirements for ¢ assifying 1abilit'es as current or non-current. Tne amendments are not
expected to have & matenial mpact onthe Group s financial statements,

AZ 1 Amendments - Sisclosure of Accounting Pohcies (effective 1 January 2023} The amendments require an ent'ty 1o
discose I'g matenal accounting porcy information nstezd of 1rs significant account'ng pal'c.es The amendments contaity
gquidance and examp.es on ident fying matenal accounting policy information.

AS B Amendments - Definition of Accounting Estimates ieffective 1 January 2023) The amencments define accounting
estimates as ‘monetary amounts in financial statements that are subtect to measurement uicertanty  ~he amendments
also clary the interaction between an accounting pol-cy and an accounting est mate.

IAS 12 Amendments - Deferrea Tax related to Assels ang cigh 1t es ansng from a Single Transacton feffective 1 January
ZG23) The amendments regu re entities w.th certain assels to recognise ceferred tax on paiicular iransactions that, on
Immial recognition give nse to equa amaounts of taxable and deducub.e temporary differences

IAS T Amendments - Non-current _.aki ties with Covenants teffect ve 1 January 2024). The amendmenis require disc cse
o formation when there 15 2 nght o defer settement o a bab lity for ai least teelve manths
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

D2 Investment income

2023 2022
£000 £'000
Dividends from UK listed investments 3,084 3107
Dividends from overseas listed investments 30,891 21349
Scrip dividends from listed investments 6,325 10,693
Property income distributions o o e A Y 1) - 8627
- S _ R 52,077 44170
03 Netrental income
2023 2022
£000 £000
Gross rental iIncome 3,513 2,773
Service charge income 946 1,103
Direct property expenses, rent payable and service charge costs __(1,660) (1435}
L LLA799 244
Operating leases
The Group has enterea ntc commerc al'esses on s property pottfolio Commerca’ property leases tvp cally have case
terms betiween 5 and 15 years anc mziude ¢'auges 1o enab e penad ¢ Upwa g "evision o the renta oarge accordng o
prevallng market conqainons Some eases contain optons 10 break before the end of the lease term
Future minamumm -entais under non-cance’ ab'e operat g leases as at 31 March are 25 ‘olows
2023 2022
£'000 £'000
Within 1 year 2,900 2,800
After 1 year but not more than 5 years 9,900 10,250
More than 5 years . 14380 17,500
_ 26,950 30,550
04 Other operating income
2023 2022
£'000 £'000
Interest receivable 255 -
Interest on refund of overseas withholding tax - 5
Income receivea to capita, B - 12 -
267 5
54 TF Frooertgin sestmrert Trost



05 Management and performance fees

2023 2023
Revenue Capitatl

£'000 £000

Management fee 1,560 4,680 6,240

Performance fee - -

1,560 4,680 6,240

2022
Revenue
£000

1,663

1663

2022
Capital
£'000
4,988
24,489
29477

A summary of the termis of e manegement agreement 1s given in the Report of the Directers on page 47,

Under the terms of this agreement the manager I1s not entitled to a perfoermance fee for the year to 31 March 2023,

06 Other administrative expenses

Directors’ fees {Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 63 1o 65)
Auditor's remuneration:

- for audit of the consolidated and parent company financial
statements

Legal fees

Taxation fees

Other administrative expenses
Other expensesg

Irrecoverable VAT

Expenses charged to Revenue

Expenses charged to Capital

Other administrative expenses clude deposinary, cusiady and company secretarial serv'ces Tnese expenses are

2023
£000

228

97
]
90
187
532

28

1,163

_ sS4z
1,705

2022
Total
£000
6,651
24,489
21140

2022
£000

220

cha ged o the same bas's as the base managemen: fee, 256% to income and 75% to capital Total other adm rustrative

expenses chargec to both income and captal are £721 0CC 12022 £8C7,000)

Other expenses -nzluce broxer fees, marketing and PR costs, Cirectors’ National Insurance anc recrutiment, Registrars
anc histing fees. and annua: report ana other publication prnting anc distribution costs These expenses are charged

sclely 10 the revenue acceunt

Anrual Repont & Azcounts 2023
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

07 Finance costs

Loan notes, bank loans and overdrafts repayable within 1 year 3,189 1,162

Loan notes repayable between 2 - 5 years 837 814
Loan notes repayable after Syears ~ 558 - 539
4,584 2515
Amount allocated to Capital _ - (3,438) L {1,880)
Amount allocated to Revenve L 1,146 B 628

08 Taxation

a) Analysis of charge in the year

2023 2023 2022 2022 2022
Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total
£'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £000

UK corporation tax at 19%

(2022 19% 4,221 (3,521) 700 2832 (2832) -

Overseas taxation 2,148 1,026 3,174 2,135 - 2,135
6,369 (2,495) 3,874 4867 (2,832) 2,135

Qver provision i respect of prior

years (282) - (282) - - -
6,087 (2,495) 3,592 4967 (2,832) 2135

Deferred taxation - - - - {217} (217

Current 1ax charge for the year 6,087 (2,495) 3,592 43967 (3,049) 1918

w
h
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08 Taxation

b) Factors affecting total tax charge for the year

Tre tax assessed for the year 1s lower (2022 lower! than the standard rate of corporat on taxan the UK for a large

company of 18+ 12022 0%
Tne difference s explaned below

2023 2023 2022
Revenue Capital Revenue
£'000 £000 £'000

Net profit/{loss) on ordinary

activities hefore 1axation ) 60,724  (604,398)  (543,674) 48404
Corporation tax charge at 19%

(2022:19%) 11,538 (114,836)  (103,298) 9197
Effects of:

Non taxable losses/(gains) on

investments - 104,392 104,392

Currency movements not taxable - 145 145

Tax relief on expenses charged to :

capital - {1,878} (1,878}

Non-taxable returns - 8,656 8,656

Non-taxable UK dividends (586) - (586) (603)
Non-taxable overseas dividends (6,791) - (6,791} {5810}
Jverseas withhoiding 1axes 2,148 1,026 3174 2,135

Deferred tax movermnent - - -

Cver provision in respect of prior

years (282) - (282)

Disallowable expenses 131 - 131 26

Deferred tax not provided 71) _ - {71) 22
6,087 (2,495) 3,592 4067

c) Provision for deferred taxation
The amounts for defer-ed taxation proviged at 25% (2022 25%) comprise.

Group
2023 2023 2022
Revenue Capital Revenue
£'000 £000 £'000
Unutilised losses carried forward - (903) (903)
Shown as’
Deferred tax asset - (903) (903}
Company 2023 2023 2022
Revenue Capital Revenue
£'000 £000 £000
Unutilised losses carried forward - (903) (903)
Shown as’
Deferred tax asset - {903) (903)

Annuzl Report & Accounts 7023

2022
Capital
£000
235,207

44,688

(47317}
(337}

3,243
(3.109)

{217}

(3,049)

2022
Capital
£'000
(903)
(503)
2022
Capital
£'000

(903)

(903)

2022
Total
£'000

283,605

53885

{47,317}
(337)

3.243
(3,109}
(603}
(5810}
2,135
(217)

26
22
1918

20272
Total
£000

' 903)
(903)

2022
Total
£000

(903)

(303}
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

08

0%

Taxation

¢) Provision for deferred taxation contunued

The movement in provision in the year is as follows’

Group 2023 2022 2022 2022

Revenue Revenue Capital Total

£'000 £'000 £000 £'000

Provision at the start of the year - (903) (903} - 686} (686]

Unutllised losses carned forward ] - ) - - - - (217) {(2717)

Provision at the end of the year - {903} (303) - (903) (903)
Company

2023 2023 2022 2022 2022

Revenue Capital Revenue Capital Total

£000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000

Provision at the start of the year - (903} (903) - {636) (686)

Unutilised losses carried forward - - - - (217 (217}

Provision at the end of the year - (903) (903) - (903) (503)

The Group n&s notrecognisec deferrec tax assets of £5,6071.017 (2027 £8007./69) ar'sing as a result of 'osses carried
forward 115 cans.derec toa uncertain that tne Group wii' gene-ale profiis nihetelevaT: companes that the 'osses woud be
avarableto offset aganst and, 01 17's basis, the aeferred tax asset Inrespect of 1mese expenses nas not been recogised

Due to the Company's status as an investment trust company anc the mtention 1o continue meetnc the conditons
~equired to obiain approval for the foreseeable ‘uture. the Comgany has not provides ceferred iax on any capita) ga.ns
275 ngon*he revaluat on o a'sposal 0° INves ments

Earnings/(loss) per Ordinary share

Earnings/(loss) per Ordinary share

The earnings per Ordinary share can be analysed hetween revenue and capital, as below.

Year ended Year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

£000 £'000

Net revenue profit 54,637 43437
Net capital profit N (601,903) 238250
Net total profit i ] L . _ . . |(547286p 281887
Weighted average number of shares in issue during the year 317,350,980 - 317,350,98C
Revenue earnings per share 17.22 1369
Capital earnings per share (189.67) 75.07
Earnings per share (172.45) 8876

The Group has no securities inssue that coud dilute the return per share Therefore the basic and di'uted return per share
are the same

TR Pioperiy inestrert Trust
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10 Investments held at fair value

a} Analysis of investments

Corhpany Group Company

2023 2022 2022

£000 £'000 £'000

Listed in the United Kingdom 383,303 383,303 516,076 516,076

Unhsted in the United Kingdom 2,573 2,573 2.34 2,347

Listed Overseas 488,839 488,839 940,744 240,744

Investment properties 73,957 73,957 47275 47275

Investments held for sale S - - 48980 48,980

Investments held at fair value 948,672 948,672 1,555,416 1,555,416
[nvestments in subsidiaries

atfairvalue - - 136,292 - ) 36,297

948672 984,964 1555476 1,591713

Investments held for sale. mixed use property, the Colonnades, London, W2, was under offer at 31 March 2022 with a

sale expected to complete by the end of June 2022 Ultimately, the residential element of the Colonnades was sold and a
decision was made to retain the commercial elemment for the foreseeable future. There are no investments held for sale as
at 37 March 2023.

b) Business segment reporting

Gross Gross

Valuation Net Net Valuation revenue revenue

371 March additions/ appreciation/ 31 March 31 March 31 March

2022 {disposals) (depreciation) 2023 2023 2022

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000 £'000

Listed investments 1,456,820 {52,597} (532,087) 872,142 51,450 43775
Unlisted investments 2,341 - 232 2,573 627 385
Contracts for difference 7.657 42,561 {45,556) - 4,662 9,462 5701
Total investments segment 1,466,818 {10,030} {(577.411) 879,377 61,539 49,871
Direct property segment o 96,255 4723y (17.575) 73,957 4,459 3,876
1,563,073 {14,753} {594,986 953,334 65,998 53,747

In seeking 1o acnieve its nvestment oh,ective, the Company inves:s in the shares anc securities of property companies
and property retated bus nesses | nlernat onally and aiso In investment property located 1n the UK The Company
therefore considers tnat there are two d stnct reporting segrments, nvestments and airect property, which are used

‘or evaiuating performance anc alocat.on of -escurces. The Board, wh ¢h s tne pr ncipal aecision maker, recelves
‘nformation on the two segments on a regular basis. Wheist revenue streams and cirect property costs can be atinbuted
to te reporting segments, general administrative expenses can1ot be spht to allow a profitfor each segment to be
deterrmined, The assets and gross revenues Tor each segment a7e shown above

£35,000) anc deduc: 'wa these costs from the direct

The property costs na'uded within note 3 are £1,66C,000 (2022 £1.
7920002022 £2441,000 for the cirect property

property gross revenue above wou d result 'nnet income of £27
TEpOriNg segment
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

1

W
(W)

0

Investments held at fair value

¢} Geographical segment reporting

Gross Gross
Valuation Net Net Valuation revenue revenue
31 March additions/ appreciation/ 31 March 31 March 31 March
2022 (disposals} (depreciation) 2023 2023 2022
£'000 £'000 £000 £000 £000 £000
UK listed equities and convertibles 516,076 46391 (179164) 383,303 15,941 11,7371
UK unlisted equities 2,341 - 232 2,573 395 385
UK direct property” 96,255 (4723} (17575) 73,957 4,459 3876
Continental European listed equities 940,744 (98982} (352923) 488,839 35,741 32,044
1555416 (57,314} (549430) 648,672 56,536 48,046
UK contracts for difference? 1.627 37,268 {33837) (936) 3,425 1,616
Eurcpean contracts for difference? 6,030 11,293 {11.725) 5,598 6,037 4,085
1,563,073 (14753) (594,986) 953,334 65,998 53747
Inc'uged i the above figures are purchase costs of £081 000 12027 £489 030) and sa'es costs of £238,000. 2022
£250,000!
These comprise mamiy siamp duty and comm $5.071
The Comp:m/ recelven £512 15500012022 £544,002,000) f-om investmen's, mctuding orect property, so'd in the
vear " ne book cost of tnese vestments when they were purc haseo was £412,2 O‘POG 12022 £356,438, UCF These
imvestmenis have been revaluea over time and until tiey were 50'd any ur-ealised gais losses were nc uded i tie far

value of tne invesiments

! Net zaditions.icisposalsy ne udes £480.000 (2022 £366,00C) of cap izl expenciure Netappreciation. {deprecation

ncluges amounts 1 respect of rent free perocs

Gross -evenue for coniracts for a fference reiates o orv aends recelvable, on an ex ¢videno has ¢ on the under'y ng

posit ons neid Tae zpprectation:iaepreciat ont i CFOs reaies ic the movement in “a ~ wa.ue 1 *he vear

The deprec.al.cn inthe TRS refates t¢ tne movernent in fair va ue m the vear unt' matur ty

d) Substantial share interests

The Group neld mterests in 3 . ormote of any class of capta’ 16 companes 12022 § companies) .«
None o these mvesiments s consideec signTeant 1 the context of these financ &' slatements &
anc 164 for further detars of subs ciaiy mvestments

e) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

Finanoiarzssets and “manc e iab tiesare carred imt1e Baance Sheetener attner fa rva e
baiznce shest amount s a reasanable spprox mahon of ‘ar va ue ’d 1hroxers dyveocends ¢
due o broxers acirds s and casn et bew

?

dinmeres:

Fair value hierarchy disclosures

ceve - zuedus ngoucted orices
€& 7 - vaueabyeference o vz uz
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Investments held at fair vaiue
e) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities continued
The table below sets out fair value measuremenis using iFRS 13 fair vaiue nierarchy

Financial assets/(liabilities) at fair value through profit or loss

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

At 31 March 2023 £000 £000 £'000 £000
Equny investments 861,611 10,531 2,573 874,715
Investment properties - - 73,957 73,957
Cunlracls lor difference - 4,662 - 4,662
Foreign exchange forward contracts o - (386) - _(386)

o L 861,611 . __'a807 76530 952948

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

At 37 March 2022 £000 £°000 £'000 £000
Equity investments 1,456,820 - 2,341 1,459161
Investment properties - - 96,255 96,255
Contracts for difference - 7,667 - 7.657
Foreign exchange forward contracts o - ) 2736 - 2,736
1,456,820 10,393 9809 1565809

The table above represents the Group's fair value niemarchy The Company's fair value hierarcay is centica: except for the
nclusion of the fair value of the nvestment in subsidianes which at 31 March 2023 was £36.292 000 (2022 £36.207,0001
These have been categorised as level 3 in both years. The movement in the year of £5000(2022 £7,315000) 15

the change in farr velue in the year The otz financial 2ssets at farr value for the Company at 37 March 2023 was
£984,564 000 (2022 £1,591,713.000).

Reconciliation of movements in financial assets categorised as level 3

31 March Appreciation / 31 March

2022 Purchases Sales (Depreciation) 2023

At 31 March 2023 £'600 £'000 £'000 £'000 £000

Unlisted equity investments o 2,341 - - i 232 - 2,573
Investment properties

- Mixed use 48,187 387 (5,203 (6.746) 36,625

- Office & Industrial 48068 93 - {1 0.829) 37,332

96,255 480 (5203) (17,575) 73,957

98,596 480 (5,203 (17.343) 76,530

Al apprecistion/tdepreciat.ony as stated above reates ta movements 1 “air value of un! sted eculty nvestments and
nvestmen: propertes held at 31 Marcn 2023

The Group neld one unquoted investment at the year end isee 11 & overleaf)

Transfers between hierarchy levels
There were iz transfers durmg the year botween any of the ieve 3
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Notes to the financial statements
continued
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Investments held at fair value

Sensitivity information for Investment Property Valuations

The signif.cant unobservable inpuis usec n the fair value measurement categorised w thin Leve 3 of the "air va'ue
hierarchy of nvestment propert es are.

- Estimatea rentaivalue £7 5- £65 per sq f1i2022 £6 5 £65;

«Capitalsaton rates 30% - 60712022 20-.-6 0w

Significant ncreases {Gecreases! mestimated “enta vaiue and -ent growthin solator
a.gher (lowe- *air value measurement. A sign ficant increase (decreasel in.og-term
result i & sigmifcantly 'ower (ngneri Tair value measurement

vould resu’ i & significant ¥
vacancy "ate naisclation waou d

There are Interrelalionsiugs between the yielas anc renta vasues s they are partia v determmnec by market rate
conditien The sensitivity of The valuat on 1o changes 'n the most significantinputs per class of nvestment property are
showin below

Estimated movement in fair value of

investment properties at 31 March Retail industrial

2023 arising from £'000 £'000

Increase in rental value 5.0% 289 1,712 - 2,001
Decrease in rental value 5.0% {(289) (W72 - {2,001)
Increase In Yield 0.5% (3.538) (3.466) - (7,004)
Decrease in Yield 0.5% 4,343 4,261 - 8,604
Estimated movement in fair value of Office &

investment properties at 31 March Retail Industrial Other Total
2022 arising from £000 £'000 £'000 £'000
increase in rental value by 5% 306 2266 145 2717
Decrease in rental value by 5% (294) (2.266) (1 (2.567)
increase in yield by 0 5% (3,865 {6,343) (B32; {11,040}
Decrease in yield by G.5% 4547 8711 1,101 14,653

o
o
oF
o]
+
(98]
T
ok
=
@]
5
[
[en]
o]
[ge)

No mmpairment losses have heen recogrise

Financial instruments

Risk management policies and procedures
Tne Group mvests inecuil.es and other instruments for the i01g Term in the pursu of 11e Investmen Ohrect e s&1 out
on page 33 The Group g exposed 10 & vanety 0f raks gt cowd teslit e ner g reduction or anncrease N the profis
ave izhe ‘or distrbotion by voay of ¢ vicends

TAEpnC pal exs the Group faces o s portfo o management 8t ates e
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Financial instruments

11.1 Market price risk
By the very nature of 1ts activties, the Group s investments are exposed 1o market pr ce uctuations.

Management of the risk

The Manager runs & civersified portfolo and reports 1o the Board on the portfelo activily ana performance at each Bearo
meeting The Board maonitors the investmen: act v Ty and stiategy tc ensure 71s compatik ¢ with the stated objectives

The Group s exposure to changes in marxet prices on 1ts cucted equity investrnents, CMO0s and investument property

portfolio, was as ‘o lows
2023 2022
£000 £'000

Investments held at fair value 948,672 1.555476
CFD long gross exposure - 130,906 144,642

Concentration of exposure to price risks

As set out in the nvestment Po icies on page 34, there are guidelines 1o the amount of exposure to a single company,
geograph cal region o- direct property Tnese gwide nes ensure an appropriate spread of exposure to individua or sector
price n1sks As an investment company dedicaleg to nvestment i the property sector, the Group 15 exposed to price
movements across the property asset class as g whole.

Price risk sensitivity

The following takle ithustrates the sensitivity of the profit after taxation for the year and the value of shareho.ders' funds to
anincrease of decregse of 15% nthe fair values of tne Group's equity, fixed interest, CFD and direct preperty Mvestments
The leve’ 0f change s cons stent with the illustration shawn 11 the previous year The sensitivty 15 based on the Group's
ecuity, fixed terest, CFD and direc’ property exposure at each balance sheet date, with al' other variables heid constant

2023 2023 2022 2022
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

in fair value in fair value in fair value in fair value
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000

Statement of Comp're'r_weﬁsive
Income - profit after tax

Revenue return 71N 71 (115} 115
Capitalreturn _ 142,826 (142,826) 234176 (234.176)
Change to the profit after tax for the

year/shareholders’ funds - 142,755 . {142,758) 234061 o (234,061}

Change to total earnings per brﬂdinary
Share 44.98p (44.98)p 73.75p (73.75)p

11.2 Currency risk
A proport:on of the Group's portfolio 1z invested in overseas securties and ther sterling value can be s'gnificantly affectec
By movements .n foreign exchange rates

Management of the risk

“he Board receives a report at each Board meet'ng on the proporhon of the nvestment portiolio held in sterling
Euros o+ other currencies The Group may somet.mes hedge fore.gn currency movements cutside the Eurozone by
funding investments 'n overseas secunities witn uisecured logns cenominatec o the same currencey o through
forward curtency contracts

Cash deposits are neid .n ste'l'ng and. o- Euro denom nated accounts

O
(48]
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Notes to the financial statements
continued
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Financial instruments

Foreign currency exposure

At the reporuing date the Group had the following exposure

{sterling has been shown for reference)

Currency

Sterling

Euro

Swedish Krona
Other

2023

34.0%
42.0%
14.0%
10.0%

2022

34 0%
42 0%
16 0%
80%

The following takle sets out the Group's 1ota exposure 1o faregn currency ~.sk @nc tne net exposure to foreign cu-renc.es

of the net monetary assets ana abl’ ties

2023

Receivables tdue from brokers,
dividends and other income receivakle)

Cash at bank and on deposit

Bank loans loan notes and overdrafts

Payables (due to brokers, accruals and
other creditors)

FX forwards

Total foreign currency exposure on net
monetary items

Investments held at fair value
Non-current assets
Non-current habilities

Total currency exposure

2022

Recelvables {due from brokers
dividends and other income receivable)

Cash at bark and on deposit
Bank 0ans, ican notes and overarafts

Payables {due to brokers, accruals and
other creditors)

FX farwards

Total foreign currency exposure on net
monetary iems

Investrments held at fair value
Non-current assets
Non-current llabil'ties

Total cfrency exposure

Foreign currency sensitivity

ceb e

Sterling

£'000

10,534
8,226
(10,000)

{(10,573)
(118,592)

(120,405)
455,832
903

(15,000)

325,330

Sterling
£'000

53,812

20,347
(35.000)

(25.642)
(38,280}

(74669
614672
503

51,105
20,620

(1,221)
52,283

122,787
330,586
(43,933)
408,440

19898
680,755

(42.253)

£58 407

Swedish
Krona
£'000

2,811
4,299

(1,474)
39,628

45,264
88,592

133,856

Swedish
Krona
£'000

12,659
2,883

(1634}
59877

73,785
1871455

255240

837
2,926

26,295

30,058
69,662

99,720

Other
£000

608
5638

(3.722)
42135

44 659
78,534

TRSropert, Irvestrent Traet
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11 Financial instruments

Foreign currency sensitivity continued
It sterling nad strengihenea against the currencles saown, this wou d have nad the followng effect

@
Year ended March 2023 Year ended March 2022 §
Swedish Swedish g
Euro Krona Euro Krona Other d
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 -
tatement of Comprehensive
Income — profit after tax

Revenue return (4,080) (354) (370) (3.215) (399) (252}
Capital return (53,496) (17,442}  (12,993) {72110) {33,256) (16,053 o
=]
Change to the profit after tax for &
the year/shareholders’ funds (57,576) (17,796) (13,363) (75325) (33,655) (16,305) §
13

2023 2022

Change to total earnings per share o {27.96)p o . (3948)p

If sterling had weakened against tne currencies shown, this would have the following effest

Year ended March 2023 Year ended March 2022

Swedish Swedish
Euro Krona turo Krona Qther
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000 £°000

taterment of Comprehensive
Incorme - profit after tax

Reverue return 5392 446 475 4419 475 314
Capital return - 72,392 23,608 17,586 136656 45017 4,771 -
Change to the profit after tax for g
the year/shareholders’ funds 77,784 124,054 18,061 141,075 45462 5085 2
4
b
2023 2022 I
R . - . L]
Change to total earnings per share o 37.78p o .. B03% %
2
]

11.3 Interest rate risk

Interest rate mavements may affect =z
2

- t1e far value of any nvestments in fixed interest securities, g

- tne farvalue of the loan notes, =X

« tne level of income recewable from cash at hank and on deposit; P4

- t1ie level of interes? expense on any varieble rate bank loans; and =

- the prices of the underlying secunues neld 'ri the portfoi os

Management of the risk

Tne poss ble effects on “air vaiue and cash flows that could anise as a “esult of changes 1 interest rates are taken nto

account when making nvestment decisions Property compan.es usually have borrow mgs themselves and e evel of

gear ng and st-ucture of its debt portfoois a key factor when assessing the mvestrment 1 s property company
w

The Group has f xed ana has had vanable rate borrowings during the year The terest rates on the loan notes s fixed g

cetalls are set gut in note 13 In adamon ta the ican 1otes the Group has unsecurea, multi-currency revoly'ng loan %

facilities which carry vanable rates of interest based on the currencies crawn, plus a margin. The unusec fac' tigs total =

£120,000,0006 2022 £95,00C.000 5
g
3
%
=S
>
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

11 Fimancial instruments

Management of the risk continued

The Manager considers boin the leve! of aebt ¢1 *he baignce sheet of the Group ( e 1nelcan notes ana any bank toans
drawnlanathe ‘see-thraugn gearing, taxing Mio account the assets and iizbilities of the unasnying Investments, when

constderng the investment portforo Trese geating levels are reported ~eqularly Lo the Board

The majorty of the Group's nvesiment portfol o is non-nierest bea ing As a result the Group's financial assets ar¢ 1ot

directly sub ect o sign ficant amounts of nsk due to fluctuations 1 e preval ¢ leve's of marke: nterest ~ates.
Interest rate exposure

The exposure at 31 March of financ al assets and financ al nab ities 1o 1terest rate s« s shown by reference 1o
- flaatng mrerest rates when 1ie mterest rate s due to be 7e-set

- fixed interest rates when ‘ne financia! nstrument s due 1o be repald

The Group's exposure to floating interes® vates on assets s £81,170,00002022 £77,242.005;
THe Group's exposure o fxec terest rates on habil ties 1s £58,933.00C (2022 £57 253,0000
The Group s exposure io flcat ng nterest rates on habl ties s £10.000,033 ;2022 £350C0,000)
mterest rece vable and finance costs a~e ai the fo .oving rates

‘nierest receved 01 casn ha'ances o paid on bank overara®ts, 1g &t a masgin aver SONA oF i1s “oreign curency
equivalen: 120722 same;
mterest paid on bor-owings unaer the mul -cur-ency loan ‘ac.tes.1s al a margm over SOMNIA o7 s Toreign currency
eqguva'ent for the type of 'oan 12022 same;
+ e fingnce charges on the £50m and £15m .0an notes are at interest rates ©of 1 92« ana 2 597 respect ve'ly
Thevyear end amounts z7e 1ot representat.ve cithe exposuTe 10 interest rates during tne year as the ‘evel of exposue
changes as investments are made n “ixed interest secunties. barrawngs are drawn cown ane repard. and the m x of
borrowings between floating and “xed interest rates changes

Interest rate sensitivity
Achange of 27 00 interest rates at the “eporting cate woula nave hat the o owing d-ect impast

2023 2023 2022 2022

2% 2% 2% 2%

Increase Decrease Increase Decrease

£'000 £000 £'000 £'000

Change to shareholders’ funds (198) 198 (243) 243
Change to total earnings

per share (0.06)p 0.06p {C.08)p C08p

Tris ‘evel of crange s 10t representatve oF Mg year 85 3 wh0o £, $inCe the exposure changes Tiroughout the year

TN S 2SSeSSIMIEnT COEs N0l 1EKe INTC actounT the mEact of nterest

11.4 Liquidity risk

SNGUCiEd INGESIMents M e por’og g e sub ef1 7o aualy ~ 2« T 1e Croup 18 ¢ 0ne WiGUoies inwestmen at 1ne vear
enc‘see 11 8 keawn
0T ONS, of o rect propesty m.esiments may Le regucec AT 31 Meron PI2E 85 DOLT
sTment pontt 4 et property NLestments

W
n

£ CRANGESs Of The Mar«et wa ue of 1NE Westments

TF Property Irvestrert Trugt



11

Financial instruments

Debt and Financing maturity profile

Within Within Within Within Within  More than
1year 1-2years 2-3years 3-4years 4-5years 5years
At 31 March 2023 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Bank loans~ 10,000 - - - - - 10,000
Loan notes - - 43,933 - - 15,000 58,633
Projected interest cash flows on
bank and loan notes 1,382 1,382 1,241 539 539 1,585 6,668
Securities and properties
purchased for future settlement 8,536 - - - - - 8,536
Accruals and deferred income 2,953 - - - - - 2,953
Other creditors o 141 - - - - L
23,012 1,382 45174 539 ) 539 16,585 87,231
Within Within Within Within Wwithin  More than
1 year 1-2 year 2-3 year 3-4 year 4-5 year 5 year Total
At 31 March 2022 £'000 £000 £000 £'000 £000 £'000 £000
Bank lpans 35,000 - - - - - 35,000
Loan notes - - - 42,253 - 15,000 57,253
Projected interest cash fiows on
bank and loan notes 1,350 1,350 1,350 1,247 539 2,124 7,954

Securities and properties

purchased for future settlement - - - - 5364
Accruals and deferred income 25,523
Other creditors - - - _ - - 222
1,350 1,350 43,494 538 17124 131316

ot nFebrizn, kO” S ZUE L J W diden or -'_w Ly 2l e s ante s#t\er_—*irijstr

o Snest date

Management of the risk

The Manager sets guidelines for the maximum exposure of the portfolic to unguotec and direct property iInvestments These are set
out inthe Investment Policies on page 34 At unquoted investmentis with a value over £1m and direct property investments with a
value guer £5 million must be approved by the Board for purchase.

The Company maintains regular contact watn the banks provicing revowving ‘aciities anc renewal discussions commence

well ahead of fac Iy renewal dates In aceition new opportunit.es for the provision of debt are exp ored on an ongaing
basis,

11.5 Credit risk

The *3 lure of @ counterparty to @ ransaction to discharge its ohligations unoer that transaction could result in the Croup suffering
2'0ss Attne perod enc the largest counterparty risk, which the Group was exposed to was within Debtors anc Cash and cash
equiva'ents where the tola' bank balances he d with one counterparty was £5£.326,00C (2022 £52.101,200)

Management of the risk

Investment t-ansactions & e carried out w th 2 number of brokers, whose 2red T stancing 15 revievsed perodically hy the
Manager andg 1m 13 are set o1 the ameount that may be due rom any one broker Cash 2t bank s only helg with banks with
10N que ty externa credtratings

7025 G7
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

11 Financial instruments

Credit risk exposure

In summary, comparec 1o tne amounts

Debtors
Cash and cash equivalents

e Balance Sheel, the maximum exposue 10 ored 1rsk at 31 Marcn was as iohiows

2023
Balance

Sheet
£'000

65,287
36,071
101,358

2023
Maximum
exposure
£'000
65,287
36,071

101,358

7022
Balance
Sheet
£000
97 673
32,109
129,782

2022
Maximum
exposure
£000
97,673
32109
129,782

wWhere the recesvab.es of the Group are exposen To credil ~ gk The requirement 107 IMparment Is assesseo at each vear
eno Forzi recenvzb'es, nthe tazbie above, nompa ~ment has been recogn sed in relat-on to expectec crear osses as the

impact of these \osses s 'mmateria. as a: 31 March 20

Offsetting disclosures

an
L3403

(37 tarch 2

022 ngimpea rment;.

Inorder to define (s cont-actua rignts betier and to secure nights that will help the Group met'gate its counterpa v nisk.
the Group mav enter Nt an S0A Master Agreemen® or similar agreement with i1s OTC denvat ve contract counterparves
ATIE0A Master Agreement s an agreement between the Group a7d the counterparty that governs OTC ger vatives and
fore gn exchange contracts ana typically contains, among other 1hings, col ateral posing tenms ana neit Ng provisions

in the event of g default and. o tenm natian event Under an ISSA Master Agreement, the Group has a contractual nghit

to offset witn the counterparty certa 1 derivat ve f.nancial nstruments payabies andvor recervables witn collatera

hefd anc.'or posted and create one single net payment in tne event of aefauls mcluding the bankruptov or insolvency

of the counterparty Howeever bank-uptcy or nsawvency aws o' 8 perticua” unsaiciion may Impose "estrict ons on or

prohib tiong aga.nst the ngnt of offset in hankruptey, mso vency or other events

The d sclosures set out n the fToiow ng tatles nolude financ'a sssets and “nanc ' liabilines t1al s-e subject Jo an

en‘orceable master netting arrangement o simula- agreeiment

A1 37 March 2023 ana 2022 the Group s cerivative assels and 1abkit es by type and counterparty; were as ‘o oS

CFD positions:
Goidman Sachs

FX forward contracts
HSBC

e
o

Year ended 2623

Net amounts
of financial
assets/

(liabilities)
presented in
the Balance
Sheet

£000

4,662
4,662

(286)
(386)

Cash collatesal
pledged
£'000

65,117
65,117

Year ended 2022

Net amounts
of financial
assets/
liabilities
presented in
the Balance
Sheet

£'000

Cash collateral
pledged
£'000

45133
45733

seriy e cestrer: Trus:
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11 Financial instruments
11.6 Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
Excep: for the -oan notes which are measured at amortised cost (refer to Note 131, the fair values of the financie! agsets
and financia. hakilities are either carrec in the balance sheet at their fair value tinvestments) or the balance sheet @
amount Is a reasonable approximat on of fair value [debtors. creditors, cash at hank and bank overdrats, accruals and E«
prepayments) 5
The farr values of the listed investments are cerved from the cios ng price or ‘ast iraded price atwh ch the secuntes are §
cuoted on the . ondon Stock Exchange and other recogn'sec excnanges -
The fair vawue of contracts for aifference are haseo on the uncerlying listea investment va ue a5 set out above and the
amount due from or 1o 11e counterparty under the contract 1s recorded as g0 asset or lab ity accordmgly. which :s
disclosed i Mote 13 for the current vear
The fair va ues of tne properties are derived from an open market ;Rea Book) vaiuation of the properties on the Ba'ance
Sheet date by enindepencen: “irm of valuers (Krght Frank} -
Q
There was one unquoted nvestmens at the Balance Sheet date, Atrato, with a total value ol £2 573,000 (Z022. Atrato, §
£2,341,0C0). 8
(=]
In the Parent Company accounts there are investments of £36,336,000 (2022, £36,267 0001 in unlisted subsidiares waich *
are classifec as level 3.
THe amounts of change n *air value for investments 'nouding net returns o1 CFOs recogased in the conso 'dated proft
o7 loss for the yea™ was a loss of £584.986,000 (2022 £265329,000 gamn).
11.7 Capital management policies and procedures
Tne Group's capital management ob ectives are
+ toensure thatit wil be able to continue as a going concern. and
+ to maximise the total return (o 1ts equity shareholders througn an appropriate balance o' equity capital and debt.
~he equity capital of the Groug at 31 March 2023 consisted of called up share capital, share premium, capiral redemption
ahd revenue meserves 1otalling £968.346,000 (2022 £1,562,739,000) The Group does notregard the ioan notes anc ‘oans
&5 permanent capitai.
The ipan notes agreement requires compliance with 2 set of financial covenanis, incluang
+ Tota Borrowings shall not exceec 33% of Acjusted Net Asset Value,
- tne Adiusted Total Assets shall at all times be equivalent to a minimum of 3007 of Tota: Borowings, end @
o
- the Adyusted NAY shail not be less “han £260,000,000 g
s
2
12 Debtors >
m
=z
=]
(=™
Company Group Company @
2023 2022 2022 g
£'000 £000 £'000 5
Amounts falling due within one year: z
Securmies and properties sold for Ia:
future settlement 2,739 2,739 33,138 33,138 a
Foreign exchange forward contracts B
for settlement - - 2,736 2,736 =
Tax recoverable 3,857 3,857 3,344 2,879
Prepayments and accrued income’ 6,146 6,146 5168 5,168
Amounts receivable in respect of
Contracts for Difference 5,598 5,598 7657 7,657
CFD margin cash 45,099 45,099 45133 45,133 @
Other debtors 1,848 1,854 497 497 H
=
65,287 65,293 97673 97,208 ;’?
Non-current assets %
Deferred taxation asset 903 903 303 303 g
E_;.
nzludes amounts nrespect o rent free periods :
Arnue Report & Accounts 2023 Ga



Notes to the financial statements
continued

13 Current and non-current liabilities

sl

Amounts falling due within one year:

Bank loans and overdrafts

Securities and properties purchased
for future settlement

Amounts due to subsidiaries

Amounts payable inrespect of
Contracts for Difference

Tax payable

Accruals and deferred income

Foreign exchange forward contracts
for settlernent

Other creditors

Non-current liahilities:
1.92% Euro Loan Notes 2026
3.58% GBP Loan Notes 2037

Loan Notes

Onthe 130tn February 20716, the Company ssuea 1.92%

el

10,000

8,536

936
702
2,953

386
141
23,654

43,933
15,000
58,933

Company
2023

£000

10,000

8,536
36,336

936
700
2,925

386
131
59,950

43933
15,000
58,933

Unsecu-ed Furo 50 0CO,

Group Company
2022 2022
£000 £000
35,000 35000
5,364 5364

- 35,869
25,523 25523
222 183
66,109 107939
42,253 42253
15000 15,000
57,253 57253

GO Loan Notes ana 3 09 Unsecures

GBP 15,000,000 Loan Notes which are due to be ~edeemedq at par onine 10th Felbruary 2026 anc 10th Fehruary 2021

respectively

e fa

r
£14,332 00012022 £14879000) a1 31 March 2023

value of the 1 925 Zurc Loan Notes was £43.970000 12022 £42 345000, and the 3 587 GBP Lgan hotes was

Jsg e IFR3 13 “a'r value hierarchy the Loan Notes are deemed 1o be calegorises with 1 ceve, 2

The 10g71 noies agreemen: feCUIres CoOMp iance w th & se1 of F 187 acovenanis, N ud.1g

< Tota Borrowings sha not exceec 33% of Ad,usied Net Asset Va ue,

« e Acustec Tota' Assets shai at

- the AdiusTes NAYV sha' not be less than £260,00

Multi-currency revolving loan facilities
The Croup 8150 M8t UNSeCU e MU Irourenty, |

ne Company 57C CToup COmMp .ec w1 te tetms of 1

[a Tt
L

e

SAg snott e

SEN TanIest

sasdracncntiese facil wee 2007 fERIOO OO0

ail imes be ectva'ent 1o a moumum oF 360+ of Total Borrow ngs, and

Qrés agreement throuchout the year

T atar e et
ST
i) \,JL"UI‘[I\JU

TP Propery e estmert Tr g

.
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14

15

16

Current and non-current liabilities :
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Long term

debt

Group and Company £000

Opening liabitities from financing activities at 31 March 2022 57,253
Cash flows

Repayment of bank loans i
Non cash-flows.

Movement on foreign exchange ) 1,680
Closing liabilities from financing activities at 31 March 2023 o 58,933
Called up share capital

Ordinary share capitat

Short term
debt

£000

35,000

(25,000)

10,000

92,253

(25,000)

1,680
68933

“he ba'ance classifed as ordinary share capital inc.uces the nominal value proceeds on the issue of the Ordinary equity

share capral comprising ordinary shares of Zop

Ordinary shares of 25p
At 1 April 2022
A1 31 March 2023

The voting nighis are disciosed in the Report of the Directers on page 49

Number

317,350,980
317,350980

Issued, allotted
and fully paid £000

79,338
79,338

Juning the year. the Company made no market purchases for cancellation of Orcinary snares of 25p each 12022 none)

Since 31 Marcn 2023 no Ordinary shares have been purchased and cancelied

Share premium account and capital redemption reserve
Share premium account

The balance class.fied as share premium includes the premium akove nominzgl vaiue from e proceeds on issue of the

equity share capita: comprising O-dinary shares of 25p

Capital redemption reserve

Tne capital redemption reserve .5 used to record the amount eguivalent 1o tre nam nal value of purchtigses of the

Company's own shares in ¢rder to maintain the Company's capital

Retained earnings
Company
2023
£000
Investment holding {losses) / gains (99,771) (81,449)
Realised capital reserves o 828,859 802,597
Total capital reserves 729,088 721,148
RHevenue reserve - 72,787 80,727
Total retained earnings 801,875 801,875

Group
2022
£:000
412,934
818,057
1.330,991
65277

1,396,268

Company
2022
£000
431,260
891,806
1,323,066
73202

1,396,268

The realised capial reserves are disirbutable by way of a dnadenc to snarehoders o utilised for the repurcnase of share
sapta, net of any unrealised losses oninvestiments hele The revenue reserve represents accumuiated revenue prof ts

from which annual ¢iv dends are paic

Lrnual Repart & Accourts 2073
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

17 Dividends

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
£000 £000

Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the year:

Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2022 of 9 20p

{2021:9.00p) per share 29,196 28,562

interim dividend for the year ended 37 March 2023 of 5 65p

(2022 5.30p]) per share 17,931 16819
- _ ~ _Arazr _ 4ssel

Amounts not recognised as distributions to equity holders
in the year:

Proposed final dividend for the year ended 3% March 2023 of 9.85p
(2022 9 20p) per share - 31,259 _ 29196

Tne finar dridena nas not been mciuced as 2 -2b!' ty 1 these financial statements in accoragnce w th AS 10 Events
afier the report-ng pe-oa’
Set out below s the tota, div idend o be paid in respect of the year Th'sis 1ie basis onwnich the reguirements of s 115€

of the Corporat on “ax A1 20710 are consiGeren

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
£'000 £000

Interim dividend for the year ended 31 March 2023 of 5.65p

(2022 5.30p) per share 17,931 16819

Proposed final dividend for the year ended 371 March 2023

of 9.85p (2022° 9 20p) per share ] 328 _ - 29196
49,190 46015

18 Company statement of comprehensive income
As perm tted by Sect 014308 of the Companes Aot ZTJL., the Company
Comprehess ve .ncome Tne net loss gter taxar o0 of The Company ceal
£547 266,000 2022 £281687 050 prof

19 Net asset value per ordinary share
Netasset value per CFC Nary snete s basec onthe net assels st hutah e to Oromany 3nares of £968 346030072022
E1502 TE0 000 ang on 317200980 2022 317 252980 Jroneny snares i ssue atine yeer e

20 Commitments and contingent liabilities
A3 M Az s 2023 the Croup rac cap e commiments of D20 00T D022 £74200 buins contngen b tes ZUZT N

.

ol TR ProperT Ir sestrent Truss
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21 Subsidiaries

The Group has the fol owing principa: subsid.aries. aill of waich are registerec and operating in Scotiand, Fagland and

Waieg
Name Reg. Number Principal Activities g
New England Properties Limited 788895 Non-trading company §
The Colonnades Limited 2826672 Non-trading company 'g
Showart Limited 25006726 Non-trading company -
Trust Urion Properties Resigential Developments Limited 2365875 Non-trading company
The Property Investment Triist | td 2415046 Non-trading company
The Real Estate Investment Trust Limited 2416015 Non-trading company
The Terra Property Investment Trust Limited 2415843 Non-trading company I
Trust Union Property Investment Trust Limited 2416017 Non-trading company '§
Trust Umion Properties (Number Five) Limited 24715839 Nonr-trading company %
Trust Union Properties (Number Six) Limited 2476018 Non-trading company
Trust Urion Properties (Number Seven) Limited 2475836 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Eight) Limited 2476019 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Nine) Limited 2415833 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Ten) Limited 2416021 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Eleven) Limited 2475830 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Twelve) Limited 2416022 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Thirteen} Limited 2415818 Non-trading compary
Trust Union Properties (Number Fourteen) Limited 2416024 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Fifteen} Limited 2416026 Mon-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Seventeen) Limited 2416027 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties (Number Eighteen) Limited 24715768 Non-trading company
Trust Union Properties {Bayswater) Limited 2416030 Property investment o
Trust Union Properties {Cardiff) Limited 2415772 Non-trading company %
Trust Union Properties {Theale) Limited 2476037 Non-trading company '§
Trust Union Properties (Number Twenty-Two) Limited 2475765 Non-trading company g
Trust Union Properties (Number Twenty-Three) Limited 2416036 Non-trading company =
Skillian Finance Limited 2420758 Non-trading company i
Trust Union Finance (1991) Plc 2663561 Investment financing E
FGH Developments Limited 1481476 Non-trading company °
FGH Developments (Aberdeen) Limited SC68799 Non-trading company g
FGH (Newcastle) Limited 1466619 Non-trading company ‘_3;
NEP (1994) Limited 977481 Non-trading company §
New England Developments Limited 1385909 Non-trading company
New EFngland Investments Lirnited 2613905 Non-trading company
New England Retail Properties Limited 1447221 Non-trading company
New England (Southern) Limited 1787371 Non-trading company
Sapco One Limited 803940 Non-trading company o
Trust Union Properties Limited 2134624 Non-trading company §
Trust Union Finance Limited 1233998 Investment holding and finance company %
TR Property Finance Limited 2475941 investment holding and finance company %
Trust Union Properties (South Bank) Limited 2420097 Non-trading cempany a
E]
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Notes to the financial statements
continued

21 Subsidiaries

"te Company has provided a guarantee for eacn of these subsicignies 1 oraer for tnem to té<e the exempiion from the
“equirernent of an audt, nlne with the reguirements of 5 4794 of the Companies Act 2006

All the subsidiaries are fully cwned and all the "elangs are o-dinary shares.

All comparies have 1ne registered off ce of Exchange house, 2-imrose Street, _oncon, EC2A 2NV w.t1 the exception of
FCH Developments Aberdeen) Limited whicn s reg stered to 50 Loth an Road Festwa Sguare, Edinburgn EH2 28Y

22 Related party transactions disclosures

Balances ano transactions between the Company anc s subsia'anes, which e related parties, nave beene minated on
consclidation The balances are interest free, unsecured ana repavable on gemand

Amounts due by the Company to subsidiaries per note 13

2023 2022

£'000 £'000

The Colonnades Limited 23,101 22618
TR Property Finance Limited 13,255 13270
New England Properties Limited ) (20) {207
36,336 35,869

Remuneration of key management personnel

Tnerermuneration of the Sirectors who are the key manzgement pérsenie of the Company for each of the relevan:
categor es specrfied 1 AS 24 Related Party isclosures 1s prov.aes " 11e audited part of ine Directore’ Remuners® o
Repor: on pages 63 ana 63

Directors' transactions
Orectors transaci.ons in the Company s shares are cons derea t0 be 5 related party ransachion Que TG the naturc af Therr
Qe as Srectons
Movements in Crectors shareholmngs are ¢ =2 osed wthin the Directors Remuneration Repo on page €5
23 Subsequent events
|

There are no esents that have cocurrec subsecuent tg*he fanoiz year end (o repor

I
h

[P Property Irvasiment Trus:
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Glossary and AIFMD disclosure

1.0 Alternative Performance Measures
Aternative Performance Measures ale nunerica
measures of the Caompary's cuirent or wustorcal
perforrance, financa' posit.on or cash flows, other
thar the fimancial measures defined or specified in the
Fancial Statements

Tre measures defired belcw are considered to be
Aiternative Performance Measures They are viewed as
particuiarty relevant and are frequentiy guoted for closed
ended ~vestment comparies

Total Return

The NAY Total Returr ig caicu'ated by rervesting the
divdends i the assets of the Company from the relevant
ex-dividend date. Dividends are deemed to be reinvested
arthe ex-dividerd date as tris stre protoco used

by tne Company's bencrmark and other '»d.ces Tre
Share Price Tota' Returnis calceiated by rerrvesting the
dividends ntre srares of the Company from toe relevant
ex-d wdend date

Year to
31 March

2023

NAV/share price per share at

31 March 2022 (pence} 492 .43 456.5
NAV/share price per share at

31 March 2023 (pence) 30513 27990
Change in year (38.0%)  (38.9%)
Impact of dividends reinvested B 25% 26%
Total Return for the year . (355%)  (363%)

Yearto
31 March

2022

NAV/share price per share at

37 March 2021 (pence) 477 G7 392.50
NAV/share price per share at

31 March 2022 (pence; 492 .43 456,50
Change in year 17.8% Y6 3%
impact of dividenas reinvested _36% 0 36%
Total Return for the year B i 21.4%  198%

()

[ai

Ongoing Charges
The CGngoing Crarges ratic has beers caleulated ir
accordance w tn tne guidance ssued by the AIC as tne
totar of investment maragement fees and adruristrative
expenges expressed as a percentage of the average

Net Asset Va..es thro.ghout tne year The definition of
admunistrative expenses does inciude property related
expenses, the Ongo ng Charges calcuiaton 1s snown
mclusive ard exclusive of these expenses to a'ow
comparison of the direct administrat ve and n-anagemert
charges w ik the majorty of Investmert Trusts wnich do
rot hoid any direct property irvestments

Year to

31 March
2023

Management
Fee (note 5)
Other
Administrative
expenses
fnote 6)
Property
Costs

Less: Non
recurring
expenses

A\Erage Net
Assets
Ongoing
Charge 2023

Yearto

31 March
2022

Management
Fee (note &)
Other
Administrative
expenses
(note 6)
Property
Costs

Less Non
recurring
expenses

Average Net
Assets
Ongoing
Charge 2022

Including Excluding
Performance Performance

Fees Fees

£:000 £'000
6,240 6,240
1,705 1,705
714 714

_ 8659 _B6LY

1.184,462 1,184,462
0.73% 0.73%

Including including

Performance Performance

Fees Fees

£000 £000
37,140 6,651
22720 2,220
332 332
33692 3,203
1.536.825 1536825
2797% 0.60%

Excluding
Performance
fees & Direct

Property Costs
£000

6.240

B 794_5_
1184462
0.67%
Exciuding
Performance
Fees & Direct

Property Costs
£000

6,651

2220

8871
1.53€ 625

C.58%

TR Procerty ircesirmert Trust



Net Debt

Net debt sthe total va.ue of loan notes, ‘cans (nouding
notiona. exposure to CFDs and TR3S) 'ess cash as a
proportion of ret asset va.ue

Trhenet gearng has been calculated as follows:

Loan notes 58933 57,253
Loans 10,000 35000
CFD positions (notional exposure) 130,906 144642
Less Cash (36,07%)  (32,109)
Less: Cash collateral {included within

'Other debitors’ in Note 12) (4509¢) {457133)

118,669 159,653
968,346 1,562,739
12.3%  10.2%

Equity shareholders’ funds
Net gearing

Tre Ongo'ng Crarges ratio provided in the Company's
Key Informaton Document 1s calculated nore w'th
the PRIIPs regulations whicn is different to tre AIC
mrethodology above

Key Performance Indicators

The Board assesses the performance of the Manager
rmeeting the Cormrpany's objective against a number
of Key Performance Ind:icators, which are considered to
be Alternative Performance Measures Detaiis of these
calculations are set out above

Compound Annual Dividend Growth

This s calculated by taking the final div dend - in the time
series, divided by tne imtial dividend 0 the period. raised
to the power of 1 divided by the number of years' nthe
series,

5 vear penod:

a - 1550p ° _ 4.9%
b 12.20p

Premium/(Discount)

The amourt by whicn the market price of a share of an
mvesteant trust company .s bugher or lower than the Net
Asset Va Le per share expressed as a percentage of the
NAY per share. If the share price 1s lower than tre NAY per
siare tne snares are trading at a discount and Jf the shaie
prce s figher thar the NAV per snare the shates are

trad ng at a premium

2023 2022

pence pence

Net Asset Valye per share (a) 30513 492 .43
Share price per share )] 279.00 456.50
Premium or (Discount) (c= (b-a)/a (¢}  (8.6%} {(7.3%)

Annual Reaort & Accounts 2073

Anaverage prem’um or discount 1s calculated by taking
the sum of each da'ly premiurm and discourt for the
penod under review, divided by the number of days inthe
giver pelod.

2.0 Glossary of terms and

definitions AIFMD

The Aternat ve Fund Managers Directive is Europear
legis'ation whicn created a European wide framework
for regulat ng the managers of "alternative nvestment
funds® (AlFs) [Lis designed 1o regulate any fund which
1s not a UCITS (Undertakings for Collect:ve Investment
in Trarsferab e Securities) fund ard which s 1managed
or marketed 0 the EU.

AlC

The Association of Investmert Compan:es, the
representative body for closed-ended Investment
COMmpanies,

Alternative Performance Measure

A financial measure of financ al performance or firancial
position otner thar a financial measure defired or
specified i tne acceunting statemenrts

Key Information Document

Under the PRIIPs Regulatiors a short, consumer frendy
Key Inforraton Document is requ.red setting oLt the
key features, risks, rewards ard costs of the PRIIP and
1s intended 1o assist investors to better understand the
Trust ard make comparisons between Trusts

The document ircludes estimates of investment
performance under a number of scenarios These
calcJlations are prescr.bed by the regulation and are
based purely on recent historica: data. t s mportart
for investors to note that there .s no judgement applied
and these do not in any way reflect the Board or
Manager's views

Key Performance Indicator ('KPI')

A KPI s a guantifiable measure that evaluates now
successfu: the trust1s N meeting :ts objectives Tne
Compary's KPls are discussed on pages 35 and 36.

MiFID

The Markets in Financiar Instraments Directive 1s the EU
leg slation that regulates firms who provide services 1o
clents inked to “financ al .nstruments” (shares. bonds,
units in collective mvestment schemes and dervatives)
and the venues wnere those mstruments are traded

Net Asset Value (NAV) per share
The value of total assets less abiltes {Incuding
borownrgs) divided by the nur-ber of shares nissde

-
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Glossary and AIFMD disclosure
continued

3.0 Alternative investment fund managers
directive (AIFMD’)

i1 accordance with t-e AIFMD, informat.or in relation
to the Company's leverage ardremuaneration of tne
Compary's AIFM, Calumbia Trreadreedie Irvestment
Busimess L'mited, 1s requ red to be made avanabe to
mvestors. Detailed regulatory disclosdres inciuding
those on tre AIFM's remicneration po'icy are avallab e or
the Columbia Trreadneedle website or from Colun-bia
I'nreadneedie onreguest. Tne rumercal rerruneralion
gisclosares nrelat on to tre AlFN's first relevant
accounting penod w i’ be made avanab'e in due course

Leverage

Under tre AIFM Directive. it 1s necessary for AlFs
1o disciose then .everage in accoerdarce with
prescribed ca.cJlat.ons

Athougr leverage s often used as ancther term for
gearing, under the AIFMD ieverage 1s spenifica'ly defined
Two types of ieverage calculations are defired the gross
and commamert meitods. These methods sumimarn'y
express everage as a ratio of tre exposare of the AlF
against its ~et asset value ‘Exposure typica lv ncludes
debt, the value of any physicar properties subject to
martgage on-stern g cunency, equity or currency
redgng at absclute notionar values ieven those held
putery for risk redaction purposes, sucr as forward
fore:gr excrarge contracts reid for currency hedgirgj
arddervative exposure tconverted rta the equivaent
urderly rg posit.ors) The comrmitment method nets
coff denvative irstrumerts, whie tre gross method
agyregates them

Tretable beiow sets out tne current max Mur perritted
Lt and the acteal ieve of ‘gverage fortre Company as
at 31 Marcn 2023

Gross  Commitment

Leverage exposure method method
Maximum permitted limit 200% 200%
Actual 138% 130%-

Tne everage ~isare set by tre AN a~d approved
by the Boardandare » rew it tme TS S t
Corparys Artc es of Assoc aton

Trssmoud-otpecorfised wintregear ~g set oot
~treF rgrca Hge gitis oo o7 §caco ated Lnder
fretradicra ~etmoaset oot by tme AssoCc ator o

I~vest~e~t Compar es Tre ARN s ascregeredio

Loy s T ire gea ~g paraTteters set oy te Board ~

TF Procery i sester Trudt
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

This Notice is important and requires your
immediate attention

If you are in any doubt as to the action you should take
you should seek your own advice from a stockbroker,
solicitor, accountant or other independent professional
adviser who is authorised under the Financial Services
and Markets Act 2000 if you are resident in the

United Kingdom or, if not, from another appropriately
authorised independent financial adviser.

If you have sold or otherwise transferred all of your
shares, please pass this document, together with
the accompanying documents, to the purchaser or
transferee, or to the person who arranged the sale
or transfer so they can pass these documents to the
perscn who now holds the shares.

Notce s ~ereby given that the Anpua' Gereral Meeting
of TR Property Investmert Trast pc (the Company’; wil
be reld at the Royal Actorrobite Ciub, 89797 Pall Ma |,
Lordom SWI1Y 5HS or Tnursday 28 July 2023 at 2 30 pre
for tre purpose of traasacting the folowing business

Tocorsder and,  f thought fit, pass the foliowng
Resolut ons of wrich Reso'ations 110 12 wil. be
proposed as Ordirary Resolutors and Resaclut ons 13
a~d 14 sra.lbe proposed as Special Resolutiors.

1 Torece vetne Report of the Directors ard the
Audted Accounts for tre year ended 31 Marcr 2023

2 Toapprove tne Directors Rerraneration Poicy

3 Toapprovetre D rectors Remuireration Report
texc uding tme Drrectors’ Remruneratinn Po cy) for

trevearended 3* Marcr 2023

4  Todecares fina dividend of @ 85p per Crd ~ary
share

(2]

Tore-eect Kate Bo sover as g Drector

& ToreeegctZara~care Cort s asa Drecto

7 Toreelect T G- -harksasaDrector

8 TcreeectBusca Sode ~deasaDrector

S Tcre-eect Andrevs Vawgra© asa Drector
Toreapps ~tKPMG LLE ire Aldtor sas Aodtor

of treCorpary oo dofice .t treccmc usor of

tre next Anoua Gerera Meet ~goftre Corpany

11 Toautnor sethe Drectors 1o deter~ e toe
re_oreraton of tre A dor

Special business

Ordinary resolution

12 THAT, ir substituton for al' sacn existirg authonties,
the Direcicis be gereral'y and urcondinonally
authorised pursuart to and m accordarce with
Sect.on 5571 of the Compan.es Act 2006 {the ‘Act’)
to exercise a'l the powers of the Comipany 1o aillot
shares .~ tne Compary ard to grant ngkts 1o
subscribe for, ortc corvert any securty to, shares
e Company Jp to a nomina. value of £26.181 455
(beirg approxirrately 33% of the total 'ssued share
cap.tai cf the Company as atte latest practicab'e
date prict to publicat.on of th s Notice) provided tnat
this actrar ty sha. expiie at the conclusion of the
Anarda, Genera: Meetirg of the Company 1n 2024
(or fearier atthe close of business or 19 Gctober
2024) save that the Company snal be entitled to
make offers or agreemenis before tne expry of iris
autiority wrich wou'd or mght require shares to
he al'otted or rignts to be granted after sacr expiry
and the Directors shall be entitied 10 allot shares
and grant nights pursaart to ary sucn offers or
agreerrents as f t™is authonty had not expired

Special resolutions

13 THAT nsubstitetion for @' sucn ex.st rg astnorties
ard subject tc tre passng of Resoiution 12 get
out above, the Directors be empowered pursuant
to Secton 570 a~d Sector 573 of the Actic adot
eqJ ty securit es (as defired = Sectior 560 of the
Acti for casr pursaant to the agthorty canferred by
Resoistcn 17 above ardror 1o seit shares held by tre
Compa~y as treasary srares for cas as if Sect:or
567 of the Act d d not apply to 3~y suck allotment or
saie provded tratthis power shail be urited

fa) totrea'ctrert of equ ty secunties and sale
of treasury snares for casr in connect o7 witn
ar.cffer of or ~vtaticn tc apply for eqaity
gecartes

i1 tocsnarercders © proport ar (@s mearty
s vay bepractcabeytotnerex stng
"cidngs and

Lo to o ders of civereqan ty secortes as
reg.red by treng-ts of those securt s or
as tre Beard otrerw se comsiderg mecessaly

ardsciratire Board ~ay ~poseaty T isor
restrotcrgarg ~ake any alarge™ets v o7 1
COTS.CEIS TRUESSATY Of appronr ale 1o dea w in
treas.ry s-ares fractcra ertte~ents record
dales ega’ requ atary or practca prob erts 't Gr
Lodertre ans of aryiten tory orany otoer matter
ad

FRrosers, Ircestrert Trst



{b) mthe case of the autnanty grarted uncer
Resowtion 12 and/or in the case of any sale
of treasury shares for casn, fo the al oimrent
{otherwise tnan under paragrapt () above)
of equity securities or sale of treasury shares
uptoanommal amount of £3.966 887 (berg
approximately 5% of the total 1ssued share
capital of the Company as at the latest
practicable date pricr to pub icatior of the ~aotice
of meeting),

e power g ven by this resolution shall expire upon
tne expiry of the authanty conferred by Reso.ution 12
above save that the Company sha.l be entitied to
make offers or agreements hefore exp ry of such
power winch wou d or might require eguity securties
to be a 1otted after such expiry and the Directors
shall be entitled to allot equity securties pursuant

1o any such offer or agreemert as f the power
conferred hereby had not exp red

14 THAT the Company be and 1s hereby generally and
uncondit.onally author sed in accordance with
Sectior 707 of the Act 1o make one or mare market
purchases (withir the meaning of Section 693(4) of
the Act) of Ord'rary shares of 2op each in the capital
of the Compary on such terms and in suLch manner
as the Directors may from time to t'me determine
provided that

(z) the max murmr rumber of Ordinary shares hereby
authorised 1o be purchased shall be 14.99% of
the Compary's Ordirary snares inissue gt tne
date of the Annual General Meeting (equivalent
10 47,570,911 Crdinary shares of 25p each at
30 May 2023, the latest practicable date prior to
pubicatior of this Notice),

{b) tne maxmum price (exciusive of expenses)
which may be paid for any such share shall rot
be ~ore than the higher of:

{1l 105% of the average of the rmiddle market
quotations for an Ordirary share as taken
from the London Stock Excnarge Day
Official List for the five business days
immed ate y preceding the date on wnich
the Company agrees te buy the shares
concelned, and

(' tneh gher of the price of the .ast
independent trade and tne highest current
irdeperdent bid for an Ordinary share in the
Company on the tradirg venue where the
purchase 's carned out at the relevant time,
and

Annda Report & Accoun:s 7023

(2} the min mum price (exclusive of experses} which
may be paid for ar Crdinary share shail be 25p,
bemg the nominal value per Grdinary snare,

the author'ty bereby conferred shail expie at

the conctusior of the Annual General Meeting of
the Company ™ 2024 (or, f earliern, at the close

of busimess on 19 October 2024) save that the
Company shal be ertitled to erter into a contract
to purchase Ordinary shares which will, ar may be
complieted or executed wnolv or partly after the
power expires and the Company may puiclase
Crdirary shares pursuant te such contract as if the
power conferred hereby had not expired

Q) Lattan

gy Order of the Board
Fora~d o beralf of
Col.mba Tweadreede
ryegtment Busimess Lomited
Company Secretaty

N e A
D Lune 2023

Registered Office

Company registered in Englard and Wales
Company number 84497

13 Woodstock Street

Londor W1C 2AG
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
continued

Notes

Shareholders intending to attend the AGM are asked 1o
register their intention as soon as practicable by email
to the following dedicated address:
trpitagm@columbiathreadneedle.com.

Srareholders wno are not able or do not w.sh to attend
the rmeeting n person will be ab'e to watch a live webcast
of the meetrg. Th s wii' nciude the forrras busiress of
tne meeting, the Manager's presentatior and questions
ard answers, Tne webcast will not erab'e sharenc.ders te
particpate ir the meeting or to vole However, snarehoiders
wil' be nvited to submit guestions througr our website

by 12 00 noor or Tuesday 18 Ju'y 2023 Questions

may be sent 1o the following e~aill address: trp tagmig
colutrathreadreedlie com. Quest ons of a very s miar
nature ay be grouped together to ersare tre orderly
reering of the AGM

1 Armemberentitled o attend and vote at the ™eeting
convened by the above Not ce s erttled to appoint one
or more proxies to exercise al” or ary of the rigrts of the
mermber to attend, speak and vote in his or her place

Sharenolders are strongly ercouraged 1o subimvt their
proxy vole nadvance of the meetng and to appoirt
te Charran of the meeting as tne’r proxy. rather than
any other raried person wiro may ot be perritted to
attend tre AGM irthe event of restrictions or Limits o0
attendarce A proxy need not be a srarenc'der of the
Company To appoint more thar one proxy, the proxy
form shouid be protocopied and tne name of tre proxy
to be apported indicated on each proxy forr together
witn the 1umber of shares that scch proxy s apponted
inrespect of Completior and subriss 01 of a proxy
nstrLclion v not prec ude a member from attend ng
a~dvotirg i~ person at the AGM (subject to any
restrictiors or prysical attendance)

Tc beva dary proxy form or ot-er nstrument
appontng a proxy Must be returred by post, by courer
or by hand tc the Corpanv's Reg strars, Corputersrare
fmvestar Serv ces PLC The Paviiors Bridgwater Road
Bristo BSYG 62V or atterat vey, by going 1o www
eproxyappoi-t~ent cor- and following the imstroct ans
provded A proxies ~ust be appoirted by no ater tran
48 hours beforetret meof the AGM I trecase of
10t~ ders, wrere ~More t~an one of trejo -t ~olders
purpoits ic appo. -t a proxy. oF yire appontrent
s.hr tted by tre most sen o order w i be accepted
Senior tyis aeter—ned by the arder = wo ¢ 1me names
of tre o rt ~oders appear i the Company s Req ster of
Ne~hers rregpectof the o rt~cd rgitre first nged
be ng dee~ed t-e maost se” O

2 Irorder to be abie to attend a~d vote at tre AGM Or
a~yadicorred mest g 1an0 2 sc for tne puipose of

ca'cuiat g nove ~Tany wOles @ PErso” gy east) a

(R3]

persor st have his orher nar-e ertered on the
Corrpany's Register of Members by 2 30 pn~or 18
LUy 2023 (or 6 00 pm or the date two days before
ary adjodrned meetirg) Changes to entries on

tne Register of Members after tris t me shal be
disregarded .- determiring the r gnts of any persor to
attend or vote at the meetng.

Votng w ', be conducled 0 a poil at the meet ng 0N
a poll vote every searehoider w ' throughn ther proxy

nave one vote for every Cidnary snare of whicnbe or
she is the holder.

Sharerc ders sho.ld note that 11s pessibie that,
pursuart 1o requests made by shareholders of the
Company urder Sector 577 of the Act, the Compary
miay be reqdired to publish on a website a statemert
setlirg out any matter reiating to. (1) the audit of the
Cornpany's accourts {(inc uding tne Auditor s Report
and tre conduct of the audit) that are to be aid hefore
the AGM cr (1) any circJrrstance comected w tn

an guditor of the Company ceasng 1o hold office
srcethe previous meeting at winich annual accouits
and reports were aid n accordance w tn Sect on

437 of the Act Tne Corrpany may not requ re the
shareno'ders requesting any such webste pubicat o
10 pay s expenses N compiyirg w T Sectiors 527 or
528 of the of tre Act Where the Company 1s regoired
10 place a stater-ert on a websie Lnder Section

527 of the Act, it st forward tne statemert to

tre Corrpany's auwttor rot ater thar the time wrer

it makes the statemernt avalab'e or trne webs te

Tre bLsiness waich may be dealt w ik atthe AGM
inclades any staterent thal the Compary nas been
reqd red under Sect or 527 of the Act to publish 0™ a
webs e

Ary corporat onwhbich s a member of the Company
car appoint one or More corporate represertat ves
wro may exercise or tsbehafan of tspowersasa
merber provided trat trey do rot do so nrelat or to
e sa™e §Mares

Trerghtto appot 3 proxy does ~ot appiy 1o persons
whose shares are re d or ther behalf by anoter
person and wro ave bee” rominaled to recenve
coras cator from tre Compary 1 accordance
with Sect o7 146 of tre Acti Nemirated Persers
Norr rated Persors ™ay ravear grtorderar
agreerent w - thereg.stered gnarero der wrerods
sharesc~t~erbenaftobeappo riediortc nave
soroecne e se appo Tled) s a proxy Atterrativey f
roimated persos do at have sLcr arrgnt arde
not v srto exercise §trey Tay ave ar ght uoder
SLCT " agree ent 1o gve nstruct onsto fre person
~cdirgthe shares astotre exernise of vl rgrgrts

“F Property frvesimert st



5  CREST memrbers who wish 10 appa:nt a proxy
or proxies tarough the CREST electronic proxy
appointment service may do so for the AGM to
be heid or 20 July 2023 and any adjadrimert(s)
therect by using the procedures described 1 the
CREST Manual. CREST personal members or other
CREET sponsored members, ard t~ose CREST
memrbers wno have appoi~ted a voting service
provider skould refer to ther CREST sponsors o
voling service provider(s), who wili be able to take
the appropnate actior o1 their beka'f. [~ orden Tur
proxy appomtrent or nstruction made by means of
CREST o e vaiid, tre appropriate CREST message
(@ CREST Proxy Instructior’) must be propery
authenticated in accordance with Eurcclear UK &
Ireland Lomted's specificators and mrust contain
the mformat on required for such nstractions, as
described nthe CREST Manual. The message must
be transnritted so as tc be receved by the Compary's
agent, Computershare Investor Services PLC (CREST
Partic.part 1D 3RAR0), no later tharn 48 hours before
the time appointed for the meeting For this purpose,
the time of receipt wil be takento be the time (as
determined by tne time stamp applied to the message
by the CREST Application Host) from which tne
Compary’s agent 1$ able to refreve the message by
enquiry to CREST ir the manner prescribed by CREST

CREST members and, where appicabie, their
CREST sponsor or voting service provider snould
nate that Euroclear UK & Ireland Limited does not
make available special procedures in CREST forany
particular messages.

Norma system timings and Emitations will therefore
apply inrelation tc the input of CREST Proxy
Instructions. It is the1responsibility of tne CREST
member concermed to take {or, If the CREST member
$ a CREST persona member ar sponsored member
or has appoirted a voting service prov'der, to procure
that hus or her CREST sponsor ar vating service
provider takes) such action as shall be necessary

1o ensure that a message is transitted by mears
of the CREST systerm by any particular time. Inth's
cornection, CREST members and, wnere applicab.e,
ther CREST sponsar or voting service provider

are referred in particular to those sectiors of tre
CREST Manual concering practica' imitatiors of
the CREST system and tmings Tne Company may
treat as invalid a CREST Proxy Instruction in tne
circumstances set out 1N Reguation 35(5)a) of the
Uncertificated Securties Regulations 2007,

7 Anymember attending the meetng (subject toany
restrictions in place at tne t'me of the meeting) as
treright to ask questions 1he Company must ca..se
to be arswered any such question relating fo the

ArrazReport & Accourts 2303
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business beng dead with at the meeting but 10 such
answer need be given 1 (a) to do so wouid intertere
unduly with the preparation for the meeting or involve
e d-sciosure of corfidential informatior, (b) tne
answer has already been gven on a websile .nthe formr
of ananswer toa guestian, or (cl it 1s undesrab.e in

tne interests of the Cormpany or the good order of the
mest’ ng that the guestior be answered Guestions of a
very similar nature rmay be grouped together 1o ersure
tne ordetly running of the AGM.

Unacceptable behaviour on the part of ary sharenolder
attending the AGM wil not be (o erated and the
Cnairman has the nght to dea: with suc behaviour as
approptiate

Under section 338 ard section 338A of the Act,
members reet ng the threshold reguirements in those
sections Pave tne right to require the Company () to
¢'ve, to members of the Company entitled to recerve
notice of the meet'ng, ngtice of a resclution whicn

may properiy be moved and is intended to be moved

at the meetirg and/or (i) 1o include 1N the business 1o
be deait with at the meet ng any matter {other than a
proposed resolut'on] wk.cn may be propeny Mciuded in
the busimess Aresolution may properly be moved or a
matter may properly be included in the busiress urless
{a} (i the case of a resution gy} it wouid, if passed,
be ineffective {(wnether by reason of nconsistency
with any enactment or the company's constiution or
otherwise), {b] tis defarmratory of any persor, or (¢ 1t

Is frivoloLs or vexatiods. Such arequest may be

hard copy form or ‘nelectronic form, must .dentify the
resolution of which notice 1s to be given or the matter
to be included in the business, must be authorsed by
the person or persons raking t1must he receved by
the company rot later than six clear weeks before the
meeting and (in the case of a matter to be included
inthe busimess only} must be accompanied by a
statement settirg out the grounds for 1he request.

As at 30 May 2023 (being tne latest practicable day prior
to pubucatior of thig Notice), the issued share capital

of the Company was 317,350,980 Crdinary shares of
25p each and no ordinary shares were he:d in treasury
Therefore, the total number of voting nghts inthe
Company at 30 May 2023 was 317,350 980,

The terms of reference of the ALdit Comritteg, the
Managemert Engagement Committee, the Nom nat’on
Committee and the Directors’ Letters of Appoirtment
wil be avalable for rspectior for at least 15 min.ates
pricr to and dunirg the Compary's AGM

You may not use ary electroric address provided
erther nttig Notice or any related docuiments to
comimanicale for any parposes other than those
expressly stated.
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Notice of Annual General Meeting
continued

13 The Company may process persona. data of attendees

=N

at tne Anrcual General Mecting This may ne ude
webcasts pnatos, recording and aud o and vdeo 'mks,
as wen as other forms of persona. data The Compary
Sra’ process sJach persoral data ' accordarce with its
prvacy pohicy, which car foond at wew trproperty come
egal.

TR eracervirsestment Trost



Explanation of Notice of Annual General Meeting

Resolutions 1, 2, 3 and 4: Accounts,
Directors’ remuneration policy, Directors’
remuneration report and dividend

These are the resoLtions whch dea' with the
presentat on of tne audited accounts, the approval
of the Directors’ Remunerat on Policy, the approva
of the Directors’ Rermuneraticn Report and the

dec araticn of the finai dvidend

The vote 1 approve the Remuneration Folicy muast
be put to sharehclders every Unee vears The vote
to approve tne Remunerat'on Report s advisory
only ard will rot regae the Company Lo alter any
arrangemenrts deta ied ir the report srould the
resclution not be passed

The Boaid is propos'ng a firal dividend for the year
ended 31 March 2023 of 9 §5p per Ordinary siare

If approved at the AGM, the Company will pay the
dividend on T August 2023 to those shareholders on
the Compary’s Register of Members at the close

of business on 30 June 2023

Resolutions 5 to 9: Re-election of
Directors

These resciutions deai with the re-election of Kate
Bolsover, Sarah-Jane Curtis, T'm G'llbanks, Busola
Sodeinde and Andrew Vaugnan. Ir accordarce with
the UK Corporate Gover-ance Code, all Directors
relire or an annual bas's and have confirmed that
tney wil offer tnemselves for re-election, with the
exception of David Watson who will retire at the
conclusior of the AGM

A performance evaluation has been completed and
tne Beoard nas determ'ned that each of the Directors
continues to be effective ard demanstrates therr
commitment ta therr role

Trer iograpnical detai s, which are set out on pages
44 grd 45 demonstrate that the Board nas the
approprate balance of skilis, experience,
‘ndependence ard krowiedge to lead the Company

ccordingiy, the Board unanimously recommends
their re-election

Resolutions 10 and 11: Auditor

These dea, w il the reappomniment of the Auditor
KPMG LLP and the authorsation for the Directors to
determire their temureratior

Y
2

Annual Resort & Accounts 2023

Resolution 12: Allotment of share capital

i he Board considers it appropnate that an authority
be granted 1o allot shares in the capital of the
Comnpany Jp 1o a maximum ncminal amourt of
£26.181,445 ‘s stated .0 treresolutior (represerting
approx'mately one third of the Company’s ‘ssued
siare captal ag at 30 May 2023 being the latest
practical date prior to publicat on of tius Notice of
the meeting) As at 30 May 2023 the Company does
rotho d any shares in treasury

Tne Directors have no present imtent'on of exercising
1h:s authority and would only expect to use the
authority If shares could beissued at, orata
premiurr to, the Net Asset Value per shaie.

Tnis authority wii. expire at the eartier of the
conclusion of the Annua’ Genera: Meeting of tne
Company to be heid in 2024 and close of business
on 18 Cctober 2024,

Resolution 13: Disapplication of statutory
pre-emption rights

Tris Resolution would geve the Directors the
authonty to ailot shares (or seli ary shares which

the Company elects to nold ir treasury) for cash
without first offering them to existing sharehoiders in
proportion 1o ther exist.ng shareholdings

This autharty would be mited to aliotments

or sales In connection wth pre-emptive offers

and offers to hoiders of other eguity secunties if
required by the ngnts of those shares or as the
board otherwise considers necessary, or otherwise
Lp to an aggregate nominai amount of £3,966,887
This aggregate nominal amount represents 5% of
the total 1ssued share capita of the Compary as

al 30 May 2023, the latest practicable date prior

to publication of this Notice If the powers sougnt
by Resolut orn 13 are used nreiation to a nor-pre-
emptve offer, the Directors confirm therr intention
1o follow the sharehoider protectiors m paragrapn
of Part 2B of the Pre-emption GroLp's Statement of
Frac ples publisned ir November 2022

This authority wil exp-re at tre earlier of the
conciustor of the Annual General Meeting of the
Cormpany to be heid m 2024 and close of busiress
an 16 October 2024

[l
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Explanation of Notice of Annual General Meeting
continued

Resolution 14: Authority to make market
purchases of the Company’s Ordinary
shares

Atthe AGM heid M 2022 a speciairesoiut or was
passed which gave tne Directors authority, until tre
conciusion of the AGM in 2023 to make market
norenases of the Company's own issued srares Jp to
aaximJr of 14 29% of the ssued srare capital

The Board 1s proposing that tney srod'd be g.ver
renewed autor ty to purchase tre Company's
Ordinary shares in the market 1t believes that to make
s.ch purchases ~ the market at appropriate times and
prices s a s.itabe method of erhancing srareholder
value The Company would, witirin guide'ines set

frorm time to tire by the Board make either a sing'e
poronase or a senes of purchases, when arket
corditions are suitab e, w tr the arm of maxir sirgtre
benefits to sharehoiders

Where purchases are made at prices heiow the
prevanng Net Asset Value per share, th's wil enharce
the Net Agset Va'ue for i~e remaining sharenaders
Trnerefore purcrases woaid orly be made at prices
below Net Asset Va ue The Board considers that it
wil be ~ost advartageous to shareholders for ire
Corpany to be ahle to rake suc parcnases as ard
when it considers the 1 ng to be favourable ard
therefore does rot propose to set a t retable for

miak ng any such parcriases

The Comrmpanies tAcquis 1o of Own Shares) (TreasLry
Shares) Regu'at.ors 2003 enab e compan es rtre
United Kingdormr te o d ¢ treasary ary of treirowr
srares trey Nave purchased wth a v.ew to poss bie
resale at a future date rather than cance irg thenm»

If the Compary does re-porchase any of its shares,
t~e Drectors do mot currertly interd to ro'd ary of

the s-ares re-purcrased rtreasary The srares so
re-purcrased v cont ~ueto be canceied

The LstirgR.esafthe F ranca Conduct Aotnorty
A tine max L proe fexcids.ve of experses)we o
~~ay be pa:d forany s.cm srare It shan ~ot be rrare
tma~tre - gherof

iv 105% of tre average of the ~.dd e market
quetatons for ar Grd ~ary smare as take~ from
irelLordo- Stock Excrarge Oa v OFfc a L st far
e five bosress davs ~red ate v preced g tre
date o7 wo o tre Company agrees 1o by shares

concerred ard

tor trebgreroficeproecttte astordeperdent
trade andtre i grest current ~dependert b afor
a~ Crdrary stare ~the Compary oo tretrad ng
veruewheretre porcrase s can edoat

The mrrar price to be paid wi', be 25p per

Crd nary share tbhe 1g tie norinal va'uel Tne List g
Rd'es alsc imit & hsted company 1o purcnases of
gnares represent.rg Lp to 15% of s igsued share
cap tal mtne ~arket pursuant tc a genera’ autnority
sucn as this For this reason, the Compary s 'mit.ng
1S autnority to make such pLrcnases 10 14 99% of
the Corrpary's Ordinary shares i~ ssae at the date
of the AGM this ‘s equvaent 1o 47 57C.817 Crdinary
ghares of 25peacr mornal value £11.892 727)

at 30 May 2023 ine latest pract'cabe date prior to
pubicatior ih's Notice Tne authorty wil' last Lrt
the conecluson of the Annual Generai Meeting of the
Company icbe heid ir 2024 or if earier at the c'ose
of husiness o~ 19 Cetober 2024,

Recommendation

The Board be.eves that the resciut ons conta ned
nthis Notice of Armua Gereral Meeting are 1 the
best irterests of the Company and srarekolders as
awhole gnd recoryrends that you vole in favol
of trem as vour Directors mterd 1o do i respect of
ther owr benefic.al sharencldirgs

e eesiert Tryst
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Directors and other information

Directors

D Watsor Che rmrani
K Bo'sover

S-JCurts

T Gilbanks

8 Sodeinae
ANauchan

Registered office
13 Wooonsiock Sireet
Lordon W1C 2AG

Registered number
Registereo as an investmienrt compary r
Engiana and Wales N¢. 84462

AIFM and Company Secretary
Columbia Threacreedle Investmenrt
Business Limited

Exchange House

Prmrose Street

London ECZ24A 2NY

Sease contact corathar Latter ‘ol
Company Secretanal araaanm mgrate
matiers

Portfolio Manager

Thames R ver Cap el LLP adthor.ses
ancregulates by the Financial Conzuct
Authornty

Fund Manager
b A Phayre-Mudge (ARICS

Finance Manager and
Investor Relations

LLE o ACA

Deputy Fund Manager
ALhonreur

Direct Property Manager
5P Gay MRICS

a.
The Association of
Investment Companies

Registrar

CormpJiershare Ipvestor Services PLE
The Pavions, Brizgwater Road
Brisicl BS93 6727

Teephone 0370707 7355

Sharebo.ders who hoa the r shares r
certficated forrr can check the'r ho'dings
with the Regesirar Compdtershare irvestor
Seryices PLC via www.nvestorcentre o uk
Slease note that 1c gair access 1o your detal’'s
onthe Computershare site you wi'l neeathe
ho der reference numbaet statea on thetor let
hand corner of your share certificaie

Auditor
KPMGELLP

15 Canada Scuare
LoroorE14 SGL

Stockbrokers

Parmnure Gordon 1JK:Lim ted
One New Chance

L oncon ECARN 9AF

Stfe Nicoaus Egrone LT 1ed
" 50 Cheapside
Loraon ECZV 6ET

Solicitors
S'aughter anc Mayv
Ore Burk | Rov:
Londor BECTY By

Depositary, custodian and fund
administrator

BNFE 2arinas Secdr es Services
"G Harewood sverae

Loraon ™™ BLA

Website

L TEIOGEN Y 20T

Tax advisers

2ricesaertoaselocoers L L=

Cerral Sndare ScJth Grobar

Mesczsteuor TvneNET 247

TR Sioperty e vestmen: Trast



General Shareholder information

Announcement of results
The naif year resuts are announced n late Noverrber

The fuli year resuits are annodJiced 0 eany June.

Annual general meeting
The AGM s hetd ' London i July

Dividend payment dates

Dividends are usualy paid on the Grdinary shares
as foows

[ntenm .anJary
Fral August

Dividend payments

Divdends can be paid to shareholders by means of
BACS (Bankers' sutomated Clearing Services) mandate
forms far this purpose are ava'lable from tre Registrar
Alternatively, sharenoiders can write to the Regrstrar
{tre address 1$ giver on page 114 of th s report) to give
therinstructions; these must include the bank accourt
number, the bark acccunt title and the sort code of the
bank to which payments are to be made.

Dividend re-investment plan ('DRIP’)

TR Property Irvestment Trust ple offers sharetolders the
opportanity to purenase further shares in the Company
tnrough the DRIP. Please note that following Brexit
sharehoiders ir the European Economic Area (EEA)

are no lorger able to participate in the DRIP DRIP forms
may be obta ned from Computershare Irvestar Services
FLC through then secure webs te www nvestorcentre.
co.uk, oreon 0370 707 1694 Charges app.y: dealing
commission of 9 75% {subject to a min'mum of £2 50)
Goverrment stamp duty of 0.5% also appl es

Share price listings

The estimated Net Asset Value and market price of the
Company’s Ordinary shares, as wei. as tne d.scount/
premum, are pablisted dany 1in The Finarcial T'mes.
They can also he found or the Conrpany's website at
www lrproperty.com

Share price information
SIN GBC009064097

SEDOL 09CH409

Blocmberg

TRY LN Reuters

TRY{

Datastream TRY

Ay’ Report & &ccounts 20232

Benchmark

Detais of the benchmark are given i e Strateg-c
Report on page 22 of this Annual Report and Accourts
The bencamark index 1s pubished daily and can

be found on Bioombera:

FTSE EPRA/NAREIT Developed Europe Capped Net Tota
Return Index in stering
Biocimberg. TRCRAG index

Disabilily Act

Cop:es of this Report and Accounts and other
docurnents issued by the Company are availab'e from
the Company Secretary If reeded, copies can be made
ava‘labwe i1 a variety of formats, includirg Brallie, aud o
tape or larger type as appropriate

Yol can contact tne Registrar, Computershare Investor
Serv ces PLC which has instal-ed textphores to a’low
speech and hearing impaired peopie who have therr own
textphone to cortact therr directly, without the need
for an intermediate operator, by dialling 0870 7G2 2005
Specally trained operators are avaiable during rormal
business hours to answer quenes via this service.
Alternatively, if vou preferto go through a typeta 'k’
operator (provided by tne Roya' National Institute for
Deaf Peopie) vou sholid diai 18007 follawed by the
namber you w sk to dial
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General Shareholder information
continued

Nominee share code

Where notification has been provided in advarce
tne Company w'l arrange for copres of sharehoder
commurnications t¢ be provided to the operators of
no™ ree accodrts Nommee nvestors may attend
genera. meetngs ard speak at meetings when
nvited to do se by the Cha‘rman

CGT base cost

Taxation of capital gains for sharehoiders who
formerly held Sigma shares

Upon a disposal of all or part of a srareroider's
holding of Grdinary shares, the nmpact on the
shareholdei’s cap'ta. gans tax base cost of the
convers.o™to Sig-ma srares 1 2007 ard the
redesignatior to Jrdinary srares » 2012 snould
be cors dered

In respect of the conversior to Sigma n 2007,
agreerentwas reached wih HM RevenLe &
Custorrs (HMRC) 1o base the appartionment of
the capta gars tax base cost on tie proportien
of Ord.nary shares trat were corveried by a
srareholder into Sigma shares or 26 July 2007

Trerefore, if an Ordinary srareholder converted 20°%:
of the:r existing Ord nary shares irtc Sigma snares
on 25 Jury 2007, tre captaigairs tax base cost of
the new Sigmra shares acquired wouid be egaa to
20% of t-e origmai cap tal gans1ax base cast of
tne Ordinary shares that they held pre-convers on
The base cost of treirreraining nolding of Ordinary
shares woua'dtren be 80% of the ongina capita
gans tax base cost of tne r Crd nary shares bed
pre-comvers o7

As part of trere-des gnat on of the § gma shares
o Ord rary shares » Decermber 2012, a furt-er
smarero ders agreevent weas reacred with HMRC
t~at a sharenciders capta ga ~s 1ax base cost .
trer new Ordimary stares srouid be equosaent
tCt-ercap taiga rs hase oost m the pre-ex stig
Sgrasraresie e caplta ga nsbase cost L der
treex stogagreevert fapp cabel

I# rdeubt astotne corseguences of s agree~ent
witm HMRC smarercders smoud comsutwintrer

o brofessora adv sors

TR eroperty IrcesTmert Trust



Investing in TR Property Investment Trust plc

Market purchases

Tre Company's snares are |isted and traded on the
Lordon Stock Exchange. Irvestors may purchase
snares through their stockbroker, bank or other firanc a
Irterrrediary

Holding shares in certificated form

Irvegtors may hold their .nvestment in certficated form
Ourregistrars, Computershare operate a dealirg service
wick enables investors to buy and se'i shares quickly
and eas.y online without a broker or the reed tc oper a
trading accodnt Aternative y the Investor Centre allows
Irvesiors lo manage portfolos quickly ard securely,
update detalls and view baiarces without annual
chaiges Further detalls are avallable by contacting
Computershare on 0370 707 1255 or visit

WWW INvestorcentre co k.

Tne Compary offers sharehoiders tne opportunity

to purchase further shares in the company through
the Dividend Re-investment Plan (DRIP) tarough tne
reqistrar, Computershare. Shareholders can obtain
further imformation on tae DRIP througn their secure
website www nvestarcentre co uk, or by phoring 0370
707 1694 Charges doapply Please notethat tc gan
access to your details or reg:ster for the DRIP on the
CorrpLtersnare site you will reed the holder reference
rumher stated on the top 'eft hand corner of your share
certificate.

Saving schemes, ISAs and other plans

A ndmber of banks and wealth management
organ.sations prov de Savings Schermes and 1SAs
through whicn UK cients car invest inthe Company

IS4 ard savings scheme prov ders do charge dealirg
and other tees for operating tne accounts, and investors
should read the Terms and Conditiors provided by these
comparies and ensure that the charges best suit the'r
plan~ed investirent profile Most scnemes carry anral
charges but these vary betweer provider and product
Wnere deanng charges apply, iIn some cases these are
app'led as a percentage of funds invested and others as
a fiat charge The optimum way to old the shares will be
different for each mvester deperding upon tne frequency
and size of investrerts to be made,

Detaiis are g'ven below of two prov ders offerng
shares in the Company, but there are mary ot er opt ons

ol tals

Annugl Report & Accodms 2023

Interactive investor ('ii")

interact:ve investor provde and administer a rarge of
self-select investimert p ans, irclud ng tax-advantaged
ISAS and SIPPs (Se f-Invested Persona Persion) ard
Trading Accourts For moere mformation, nteractive
nvestor can be contacted on 0345 607 6007, or by
VISIHING WWW, L CO. UK/

irteract-ve investor offer imvestors in the Compay and
otherirvestiment trusts a free oniine skharehoider vot g
and rtormatior service that enables investors 1o receive
sharerolder communications and, iIf they wish 1o vate on
the shareho'dings neld im ther account

The Comrpany 1s also on the interactive super 60 rated ust.

Columbia Threadneedie Management Limited (‘CT’)
Columbia Threadneedle offer a number of savings

pians for aduits and cnildren, from general investment
accounts to a range of investment 1SAs and a Chid
Trust Fund Each preduct gives you the ability to
investir a rarge of irvestment trust compan.es. For
more Informat.on see inside the back cover. Columbia
Trreadneed'e can be cortacted on 0820 136 420, or visit
ctinvest co.uk

Flease remember that the value of your :nvestments and
any mcome from thern may go dowr as well as up Past
performance ‘s not a guide to future performance You
may not get back the amount that you irvest. If you are ™
ary doubt as to the su'tability of a pian or any mvestment
avallable within a plar piease take professional advce

Saving Schemes and ISAs transferred from Alliance
Trust Savings (‘ATS') BNP Paribas

Folowing the acquisition of Allance Trust Savings by
interactive investor, ATS sef-diiected accounts were
transferred to the interact've ‘nvestor p.atform on
14th Cctober 2016,

In 2012 BNP Paribas closed down the part of therr
business that operated Savings Schemes and 1SAs
Investors were given the choce of transferring then
schemes 1o Alllance Trust Savings (ATS} or to a
provider of therr own choice, or 1o close their accounts
and se i the holdings

If investors did not respond to the letters from BNP
Paribas, ther accounts were trarsferred to ATS

Folow ng the acquisit-on of Alllance Trust Savings by
nterachive investor, ATS self-drected accounts were
trarsterred to the interactive 1~vestor platfarm or

14 Cotober 2019
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Investing in TR Property Investment Trust plc
continued

Share fraud and hoiler room scams
Sharehioders ina rumber of Investment Trusts have
been approached as part of a snare fraud where they
are rformed of an opportunity 1o sel' their srares as the
company s subjectio a takeover brd Trisis not true and
‘s an attenpt to defraud srareholders The share fraud
2180 seeks payrrent of a comimission' by shareholders
1o 1re parties carry’=g odt the fracd

Shareno'ders snould reman a'ert to tnis type of scam
and treat with suspicion any contact by telephone
offering an attractive investrment opporicrity, such

as a premiun: price for your shares. or an attempt 1o
convince you tnat payment srequred 1 ordertoieease
a settiement for your shares Tnese frauds may 2.0
offer to seli yoor shares in companies which have ittle o
~o vaiue or nay offer youo benus srares Tnese so cahed
‘Borler roam’ 5caMS car & sa irva ve ar gltempt to obtanr
your personal ard/or barking nformation with wh chto
com™it identity fraud.

The calier may be friendly and reassurmg or tney may
take a more urgent tone encouragrg you to act gu.ck'y
otherviise yoo cod d'ese money or riss ot on a deal

If oL have been cortacted by ar Lnauthonsed firm
regard ng your shares the FCA wou'd ke to hear
from you You canieport anuracthonsed firm us g
tre FCA ~elpune o JBCO 111 V6B or by vstngtrer
website wrich aisc has other usefu ~formation
atwwew foa.org uk

Ifyou receve ary unscuc ted investrert adv ce
make sure you getire correct ~ave of the persor
ardorgarisatan If treca'ls persist hang up 1fvou
dea with an ungothorsed fir voaw oot bee'gh e
toreceive pavert order the F nanca Services
Compersat on Scheme

dv sedtrattre Board or tre Marager woo d

5o ctedteeprore ca’s of sucr a mature
S




How to invest

One of the most convenient ways to invest in TR Property Investment Trust plc is through
one of the savings plans run by Columbia Threadneedle Investments.

CT Individual Savings Account

You can use your ISA allowance to make an annual
tax-efficient investrment of up to £20,000 for the current tax
year with a lump sum from £700 or reguiar savings from £25
a month. You can also transfer any existing ISAs to us whilst
maintaining the tax benefits.

CT Junior Individual Savings Account (JISA)*

Atax efficient way to invest up to £9,000 per tax year
for a chitld. Contributions start fronm £100 urnp sum or
£25amonth. JISAs or CTFs with other groviders can be
transferred to Columbia Threadneedle.

CT Lifetime Individual Savings Account (LISA)

Forthose aged 18-39, a Lifetime ISA could help towards
purchasing your first home or retirement in later life. Invest
up to £4,000 for the current tax year and receive a 25%
Government bonus up to £1,000 per year. Invest with a lump
sum from £100 or regular savings from £25 a month.

CT Child Trust Fund (CTF)*

if your child already has a CTF you can invest up to £4,000
per birthday year, from £100 lump sum or £25 a month.
CTFs with other providers can be transferred to Columbia
Threadneedle.

CT General Investment Account (GIA)

This is a flexible way to invest in our range of Investment
Trusts. There are no maximurm coentributions, and
investments can be made from £100 lump sum or

£25a month.

CT Junior Investment Account (JIA)

This is a flexible way to save for a chitd in our range of
Investrment Trusts. There are no maximum contributions, and
the plan caneasily be set up under bare trust {where the child is
noted as the beneficial cwner} or kept in your name if you wish
{o retain controf over the investment. Investments can be made
from a £100 lurmp sum or £25 a month per account. You can
also make additional lump sum top-ups at any time from £100
per account,

Charges
Annua: managemert charges and other charges aciply according sothe
type of plar.
Annual account charge
fE0Al
A0 VAT
fRYAT
You car pay the anrual charge from your account, or oy cirect debut
fin adcetion to any annJal subschption nmts?
Dealing charges
£12 per fund (reduced to £0 ‘or deals placed through the or ine
Columbia Threadneedle invesior Porta)) for iSA/GIALISA. JIA
ard JISA. There are no deal'ngcharges ona CTF

Cealing charges app'y wher shares are bought or so'd but not
on the reinvestrrent of dividerds or the investment of monthly
direct denits Government stemp duty of J 5% also spp' es on
the parchase of shares (where applicable).

The value of investments can go down as well as up and you
may not get back your original investment. Tax benefits depend
on your individual cireumstances and tax allowances and rules
may change. Please ensure you have read the full Terms and
Conditions, Privacy Policy and relevant Key Features documents
before investing. For regulatory nurooses, please ensure you have
reac the Pre-sales Cost & Charges disclosure related to the oroduct
vou are applyirg for, anc the relevant Key Irformation Documents
(KIDst for the investment frusts you want to invest into.

How to invest

To cpen a new Columbia Threadneedle Investrments plan, apply
onhne at ctinvest.co.uk

Onlire apolications are net avar ahle f you are transferning

an existng planwith anather proviger to Columtia “hreacneedle
Irvestments, or if you are applying for a new plan in more than ore
name but paper applications are availab.e at ctnvest co.uk.
docurnerts or by contacting Coiumnbia Threadneedie Investrments
New customers

Caf 0800136420~ - . -7 >

Emat: invest(columbiathreadneedle.com

Existing plan holders

Cal" 0345 6003030** - "= T ek
Email: nvestor enguresiicolumbiathreacnesdle com

Bypost  Columbia Threadneed e Managemer: Limitea, © =

investorenguinesid columbiathreadneed.e.com

Vounan mse nvesiin e Company hirough on ne dea’ ng prastoris for or vite vesiors hat offer share dea ng and 1948 Compares ocade Barclays
Stockbrokers, EQi, Halifax, Hargreaves Lansdown, HSBC, Interactive Investor, Lioyds Bank, The Share Centre

* The CTF and JISA accounts are opened in the child's name and they have access 10 he money at age 18

=* Cal's may be recorded or mon tored for fraining and quality purposes

fofmdoo moe, v s ctinvest.co.uk

03456003030 T 0ar — 5 Mipr weekdays Chos reay herecoraed oo e ioreo fon g nng and g iy purposes
207 Courb g Thieadnecd e nvestroms Coumb a Thieatdrees ¢ ivestmiest sgpcha brand name
of the Court aand Threadtesd'c groap of rompan s F nans g promonens aee sgued for miarker ng ane
ot s o anpoges by Cournl g Theeanneed'e Managemen' Lo e anrhee sectanbieguared nonedkK oy
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